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Chairman’s Statement

=

GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS C{

A COMPANY LISTED ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG W

F % Chairman
EX:q-¢ %0

Mr. Wong Yam Yin

BRI & IR Dear Shareholders,

ARNGER RS IR RA R ([ 28K ] 5 On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Golden Wheel Tiandi
(AR w]]) BULH A ] (SR (A% ]) #5 e Holdings Company Limited (“Golden Wheel” or “Company”) and its

(T ]) KA w0 BRI 2 Sl R 2 — subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), I am pleased to present the annual results
F—ANETZAZT—HIEEE ([FR]) M 2E of Golden Wheel for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”) to our
ES g shareholders.

Bt 5 ol FINANCIAL REVIEW

o ] PR ) K R A B rh SR BURT RO T - 80 5 Economic growth in mainland China was in line with the central government’s
PRS2 TR I S e 458 8 0 7 4 7 7 ) JEC expectation, that is partly due to the successful implementation of policy
TN o BESR —F— 7N AR B A A AR R A measures designed to support a stable economy and a long-term economic
126.7% > J9264F LAS A SR (IR 28 - {H 55 10 2= 1t 34 2 transition. While overall GDP growth for 2016 was 6.7%, which is the slowest
] F+226.8% > Mo JIMAE AR E R LTt rate in 26 years, growth in the fourth quarter accelerated for the first time in

two years to 6.8%.
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Golden Wheel Star-cube (Nanjing)

During the year, the property market in China has been recorded the highest
sales volume and average selling price in history. Benefiting from this, together
with the completion and delivery of three projects, the Group’s revenue has
increased by 310% from RMB229.5 million in 2015 to RMB940.8 million
in 2016, its gross profit has increased by 226% from RMB110.4 million in
2015 to RMB360.0 million in 2016. Net profit has increased by 19.4 times to
RMB265.4 million over the same period last year.

Net assets as at 31 December 2016 have increased to RMB3,929.4 million
from RMB3,688.7 million as at 31 December 2015. Net asset value per share
has increased from RMB2.05 as at 31 December 2015 to RMB2.18 as at 31
December 2016.

The net gearing ratio of the Group has decreased to 26.2% (2015: 42.4%) as at
31 December 2016. The decrease was due to the record high contracted sales

achieved during the year which also resulted a high sales proceeds received in
2016.

SN (15 5%)
Golden Wheel JinQiao Huafu (Nanjing)
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property development

During the period under review, the mainland China property market
continued its steady progress to improvement with positive developments
on the regulatory policy and supportive policies to reinforce healthy long-
term development of the property market and reviving the sluggish property
market and slowing economy. Home-prices continued to rise with polarized
performance in different tier cities. During the period under review, the Group

made steady progress on our property projects.

At the beginning of 2016, the Group has seven projects under development,
three projects were completed and started to deliver in the last quarter of 2016,
the completion and delivery of the remaining projects were expected to be

continuing during 2017 and 2018.

In addition, the project developed by the joint venture with Powerlong Real

Estate Holdings Limited was also completed and delivered in 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the contracted sales amounted to RMB2,359.0
million, including RMB133.0 million contributed by a joint venture in which

the Group has 49% equity interest.

\ 201G4EBE# % \ ANNUAL REPORT 2016 \ 7



TS

Chairman’s Statement

A AE [ A 3t fot e 1 AR R SRR R 2 £0976,108°T- K
(ELIE BT a5 A ) M TR ) m] 4t o B Y A 2
[k Y EOPNERL LS

VEZ
REF=ANEF A=A —H R EBEEA B
TR 134,600°F- 15 K ) B35 R H > B4 < i 1 AR B
AE AR AR A p & L N R
JESETR E o BLIR I - 52 725 7 0 B LA St 2L
BEMEEAS A E > AL T B0 i
Rikiroow  MEWARFREH R AR AR
SRR o AR R

T ERE

TERREF T ARG B W E A TR F
(THEA ) 2 5 B R 2 7] R s S e
P8R A PR R A — ] B v DASE [R] B 3 e o
) — R o WL TS S B — LA T B 9
BVEHGLE R R o & 0w S SR S o
R T A B — B o B HE M PR PR ) ([
FEL) 9 I AR LR RE SR » 4%
AT HR N AR AR R AR 133,07
BT

Sl 8 T RS ()
Golden Wheel Binary Star Plaza (Nanjing)

The Group has a land bank of a total GFA of approximately 976,108 sq.m.
(including the pre-sold GFA) and expects the amount of total GFA for sale to
be approximately RMB22.8 billion.

Property leasing

As at 31 December 2016, the Group commanded a GFA of more than 134,600
sq.m. under its shopping mall projects, which include plaza projects such
as Golden Wheel International Plaza, Golden Wheel Waltz, Golden Wheel
New Metro, and Golden Wheel Time Square. Meanwhile, benefitting from
prime geographical locations of the shopping malls and a high quality tenant
portfolio, our shopping malls almost achieved an average occupancy rate of
90% and maintained a steady year-on-year growth in terms of rental income,

creating favorable conditions for the Company’s long-term profit gains.

JV business

In December 2016, the Group set up a joint venture with group member of
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. (“Longfor”) and Nanjing Hongyang Yemao Real
Estate Co., Ltd to jointly develop a piece of land parcel in Nanjing. This is the
Group's second joint venture with another listed developer. The joint venture
is in line with the business development strategies and plans of the Group.
The first joint venture project with Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited
(“Powerlong”) was a good harvest in this year, the delivery was in-line with our

plan, its recorded sales in 2016 was amounted to RMB133.0 million.

S S (D)

Golden Wheel Star City (Yangzhou)
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Chairman’s Statement

Metro leasing and operational management business

Building on our success essence and seasoned experience in commercial
property management project at Nanjing metro station, the Group secured
commercial property leasing and operational management contracts of 12
metro stations of four cities namely Nanjing, Suzhou, Wuxi and Changsha. As
at 31 December 2016, 9 metro station malls were under operations and overall

occupancy rate had reached to 95%.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total GFA under its operation and
management at metro stations remarkably increased to over 70,000 sq.m.
This reinforced our confidence in the continuing development of the relevant
business, while giving new impetus to the sustained growth of the overall

business.

T R K 3
Nanjing Longmian Road Land Parcel
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#’E Investments

WAk 2 B T A O A s v B A P SR AT £ In addition to placing surplus funds as time deposits in banks in Hong Kong
TE AR » AR BTN A RS B = and mainland China, the Group also invested in corporate high yield bonds
Wi A RS N ZF—ANET A=+ —H AR with good credit rating. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bond
AR E S AR 1418 8T ZF RN investments amounted to RMB14.1 million. These bonds bear coupon rates
EERNT495%F6.75% o &5 & A B4 B4 ranging between 4.95% and 6.75%. These investments could facilitate the
U ) 5 4 T R B S M i R o Group in preserving its liquidity while enhancing interest yields.

WA > 7 5 A I P R R A T s > A AR 108 Also, invited by Xiamen International Bank, the Group has subscribed the
T o 2 AR B B SR AT Y I bR AR unlisted equity shares of Xiamen International Bank at the consideration of
1 o WAL E T3 By R & BTN Al — 20 s A 4 RMBI108 million. The investment is for long term purpose and it can also
V] L 11 2 P R A T 2 P B S5 6 VR AR further enhance the business relationship between the Group and Xiamen

International Bank.

H 2 4R T
Courtyard by Marriott Nanjing Jiangning
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Nanjing Jinlun Yaduo Hotel
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Chairman’s Statement

Financing

In November 2016, the Group successfully issued senior notes of USD100
million in Singapore. The new senior notes will be matured in 3 years with a
coupon rate of 8.25% which is lower than our first, second and third senior

notes which have a coupon rate of 11.25%, 10.8% and 9.5% respectively.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In 2016, the contracted sales of the property market in China achieved a record
high, especially in first and second tier cities. With the booming market
sentiment, the inventory level of these cities reached a historical low level,
which inevitably lead to a substantial increase in land prices. This trend also
started to spread to third and fourth tier cities. Authorities in more than 20
Chinese cities (including Shenzhen, Nanjing and Suzhou) have implemented a
series of tightening measures in order to curb the overheated housing market
since the fourth quarter of 2016. However, the Group is optimistic that
China’s property market will remain on a track of stable growth since the PRC
government will continue to implement a series of policies to stabilise the

property market from the current high level.

It is a challenging year in 2016 for shopping mall operators in China, who
faced with the rising costs of holding land, the impact on bricks-and-mortar

stores of e-commerce, and the over-supply of shopping mall area.

RW A o4 e
Changsha Golden Wheel Star Plaza
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For the above measures, we believe that China’s property market is likely to see

a flat or slightly narrow down in 2017.

Despite the uncertainties still clouding the China’s property market, the Group
remains optimistic that the property industry will remain a track of stable
growth since the PRC government will continue to implement a series of

policies to stabilise the property market from the current high level.

The Group has completed four projects (including a project developed by a
joint venture) during 2016. In order to replenish its land bank, the Group has
been actively identifying potential projects over the past year. In November
2016 and January 2017, the Group acquired two land parcels, one in Yangzhou
and one in Gulou District, Nanjing. In December 2016, the Group entered
into a joint venture agreement to acquire and develop a land parcel in
Jiangning District, Nanjing. In addition to these three projects, the Group has
also identified a few potential projects in the cities which the Group is familiar
and has existing presence. It is expected that the tenders of these projects will
be launched to the market in the coming months and the Group is confident

that the Group will further increase the size of its land bank in 2017.

For our leasing business, the Group will continue to retain our completed
properties with attractive locations and potential growth for long term leasing
purpose. There were three new completed investment properties in 2016 and it
is scheduled that these newly completed investment properties will commence
operations in the second half of 2017. The Group’s strategy is to continue
build up its investment property portfolio so as to maintain a stable return to

its shareholders.

For the Group’s metro leasing and operational management business, after
the successful application for quotation and open transfer of its shares of
Nanjing Golden Wheel Commercial Management Corporation Limited* (74
b EE IR A MRAT) on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations System (# =4 ) in the PRC in July 2016, the Group has to put
more resources on this business and been actively participating in the tender
of projects in our target cities, with an aim to further expand its geographic
reach and market share in the metro station commercial property leasing and

operational management business.
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Chairman’s Statement

Last but not the least, the Group has adopted a strategy to further develop
hotel operation business as our new business segment. In 2016, the Group
entered into two hotel operation and management agreements with Marriott
and Atour respectively. The two hotel operations and management projects
are Courtyard by Marriott Nanjing Jiangning* (¥ 5% 4 ¥ & 1618 5 ) and
Nanjing Jinlun Yaduo Hotel* (F 5 & 52 45 ) . It is scheduled that
Nanjing Jinlun Yaduo Hotel will commence operation in the second half of
2017. In March 2017, the Group further entered into a sales and purchasing
agreement to acquire a hotel in Hong Kong. Subject to the shareholders’

approval, the acquisition is expected to be completed in May 2017.

Looking ahead, other than the property development business, the Group will
continue to build up our investment properties portfolio. In addition, more
resources will be invested into the metro leasing and operational management
business and hotel operation business. All these three segments, namely
investment properties leasing, metro leasing and operational management and
hotel operation and management will not only enable the Group to generate
a stable and sustainable recurring income in the future but also diversify its

concentration risk in the PRC property development market.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to take this opportunity to
express heartfelt appreciation to shareholders and partners for their trust in and
long-lasting support to the Group. I would also like to thank the management
team, the Board of Directors and all the staff for their diligence, dedication and
contribution over the past years. Looking forward, we will strive for taking us
to a higher level of business performance, and rewarding our shareholders in a

higher returns gradually over times.

Wong Yam Yin

Chairman

24 March 2017
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3 CHANGSHA
¥ zHuzZzBHOU

¥ CHANGSHA

P vh gy 3 Properties under development
o V&4 B Changsha Golden Wheel Star Plaza

Hy AL B Metro leasing
o U (A2 6H) 1 Metro Station (has not engaged)

B zHUZHOU

©% T3 Completed properties

o GimRECEE S Golden Wheel Time Square
o PRMBERERLE (=)
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Jade Garden (Phase I)

PH 8% H1 4 3 Properties under development

o HRMEERERAE ()
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Jade Garden (Phase II)

JIANGSU

i % NANJING

%M YANGZHOU
8 WUXI

# M suzHOU

i % NANJING

2% T4 ¥ Completed properties

4B P55 Golden Wheel International Plaza
BT 2% Golden Wheel Waltz

£ K Golden Wheel Building

&3 JE [# Golden Wheel Green Garden

¥ 5 35 7% 44 [ Nanjing Jade Garden

LW B E Golden Wheel New Metro

& 264 Golden Wheel Star Plaza

Wi 5L Golden Wheel Star-cube

BH 85 1 4 3 Properties under development

o G EREEERF Golden Wheel JinQiao Huafu
o Gl R B 5 Golden Wheel Binary Star Plaza

o IRHEROCHEHBEE (i)
Nanjing Longmian Road Land parcel (newly acquired)

T AL R B (B3

Hotel operation and management (under development)

o PR E BT 5 Courtyard by Marriote Nanjing Jiangning
o B 4T 528 JE Nanjing Jinlun Yaduo Hotel

Hi 5 H B Metro Leasing
o U342 1 Metro Station
$iM YANGZHOU

C% T4 ¥ Completed properties
o BNaEREN (—H R E)
Yangzhou Golden Wheel Star City (Phase I & II & I1I)
o BN T4 Y Yangzhou Powerlong Golden Wheel Plaza

BH 85 4 2 Properties under development

o BPMIRFIE B OGFTAE) Yangzhou Molihua Road Land Parcel (newly acquired)
B M suzHoU

L Metro Leasing

o Gl 2 6 Metro Stations

8 wux1

2% T4 ¥ Completed properties

o eSS OLA JE Wuxi Golden Wheel Star Plaza

Hi$5H B Metro Leasing
o 4fE3 % 4 Metro Stations
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Sl 8 7 R BH (W)
Golden Wheel Binary Star Plaza (Nanjing)

Sl R4 ()

Golden Wheel Jade Garden (Nanjing)

515 ol i BUSINESS REVIEW
1t Overview
BRI ER Contracted sales

AR B F N AR A 4 B B BRI T JRE Sk The Group achieved a record high contracted sales in 2016. Six out of seven
B o REEE - FE - CAEBARNLMIER PAE S projects which the Group acquired since 2013 launched for sale in 2016. Total
MR F—RNFREEE T ANFHHEL contracted sales for the year 2016 amounted to RMB2,359.0 million, of which
A ERER AR 2,359.0F B G Hhais RMB133.0 million was contributed by a joint venture in which the Group has
EBMFH0nBEZ EECEEMARK133.0  49% equity interest.

H#ETT.

ZE-ANEMRETIHHA Projects completed during 2016

ZERARFEAZMEE TR R A i R L Three projects were completed during 2016, namely, Golden Wheel Star-cube,
&G RZE (—0) MESSRE A Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Jade Garden (Phase I), and Wuxi Golden Wheel Star
JAE > R S B A ST A 168,664 K o A T F Plaza, with an aggregate saleable total GFA of approximately 168,664 sq.m..
“AFEF AT H O ZEMER LEAC S As at 31 December 2016, a total GFA of approximately 72,936 sq.m. of these
B s AR B SR AR £72,936°F oK - three newly completed projects were sold and delivered.
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7K 5 [ 1 1= L 1 Land bank of the Group

AR —NET A=t AREH L As at 31 December 2016, the Group has a total land bank of 976,108 sq.m.,
5 £4976,108°FJ7 K > Hdrf#E108,989°F K22 T including 108,989 sq.m. of completed but unsold properties, 2,535 sq.m.
EARE WY 2,535°F K B IWIZE - 134,675°F 7 of own used properties, 134,675 sq.m. of completed investment properties,
KR LTHREWE - 478,587°F 7 K B 8 h i 3£ Jo 478,587 sq.m. of properties under development and 251,322 sq.m. of
251322 F K GBI E - properties under development by the joint venture.

TREGAEMR - ANFTZA=1T—HK The following table sets forth an overview of the Group’s property projects as

[ M T AR - at 31 December 2016:
U V2T | V4 T REWR ARAHAM® REmE
HH i wEEE ERETAM  ERELAM b ANz 4] EAy Y h L0 L0
Actual/ Actual/
estimated estimated
construction construction Total unsold GFA held for Investment
commencement completion  Percentage of GFA/ Company’s properties
Project City Site area date date completion Total GFA own use GFA
VRS %/R %/R FIik Flik Flik
sq.m. month/year month/year sq.m. sq.m. sq.m.
W% aX/E S
Completed properties
4 B PR R M EWELA ENF—A
Golden Wheel International Plaza Nanjing 11,341 Jul-04 Jan-09 100% 2,022 2,535 33,197
SRETL M FENE—A —FER
Golden Wheel Waltz Nanjing 2,046 Jan-08 Feb-10 100% - - 2,444
Ed YN [i:08 FEEA F=gE]
Golden Wheel Building Nanjing 4,918 May-01 Feb-03 100% - - 1,454
SRR M F—ENAH EZHERA
Golden Wheel Green Garden Nanjing 10,334 Aug-01 Sep-02 100% - - 1,021
SEEMR (— ) B ENEAR —ZHEZRA
Golden Wheel Star City (Phase I) Yangzhou 42,803 Aug-08 Mar-12 100% 5,906 - -
SwEM (ZH) B FHETA — AN
Golden Wheel Star City (Phase II) Yangzhou 27,423 Oct-09 Aug-12 100% 1,457 - -
B4 LI R FRFELA —ZFNA
Golden Wheel Time Square Zhuzhou 13,501 May-09 Apr-12 100% 3,,446 - 45,105
AR AR 23 ——%—-4 —=ZFtZ/
Nanjing Jade Garden Nanjing 7,212 Jan-11 Dec-13 100% 2,820 - 3,328
S E [i:08 ——HEAR TN
Golden Wheel New Metro Nanjing 9,218 Aug-11 Dec-13 100% - - 18,437
S ENLL N M ——f+—H —EARA
Golden Wheel Star Plaza Nanjing 29,540 Nov-11 Jun-14 100% 6,915 - 525
AN (=) ol —FERN —ME=A
Golden Wheel Star City (Phase I1I) Yangzhou 11,389 Jun-10 Mar-14 100% 15,695 - 4,164
i EwmERARE (—H) M —WEFZH —REF T
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Jade Garden (Phase I) Zhuzhou 23,530 Dec-14 Dec-16 100% 17,480 - 4,000
iR 1SSl i3 —“mEFZH —AEFZA
Wuxi Golden Wheel Star Plaza Wauxi 31,981 Dec-14 Dec-16 100% 36,431 - 12,000
WA M A —mEFZA AT
Golden Wheel Star-cube Nanjing 18,300 Dec-14 Dec-16 100% 16,817 - 9,000
it
Subtotal 243,536 108,989 2,535 134,675
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REHR Fife
BW M ER wEmR AAEAMH E/8 C/ES
JH W WREE ERETHY  ERRTAH SRLIA A T s T S
Actual/ Actual/
estimated estimated
construction construction Total unsold GFA held for Investment
commencement completion  Percentage of GFA/ Company’s properties
Project City Site area date date completion Total GFA own use GFA
ik %/R %/R Ik BRI BRI
sq.m. month/year month/year sq.m. sq.m. sq.m.
SR/ ES
Properties under development
SRR [i:0 —WEFZH —EEFEA
Golden Wheel JinQiao Huafu Nanjing 46,228 Dec-14 Dec-17 80% 124,400 - 2,500
SRETEEY M —E+=A —NEAN
Golden Wheel Binary Star Plaza Nanjing 9,588 Dec-14 Jun-19 15% - - 55,754
R E&HELHE 304 2 S o e
Changsha Golden Wheel Star Plaza Changsha 37,152 Dec-14 Dec-17 65% 172,579 - 12,000
LRUEA k)] 3l —MEF=A —JUE=A
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Jade Garden (Phase 1I) Zhuzhou 22,115 Dec-14 Mar-19 30% 79,308 - -
B MRATE B il —tEAH —NEAN
Yangzhou Molihua Road Land Parcel Yangzhou 10,682 Jun-17 Jun-19 0% 32,046 - -
it
Subtotal 125,765 408,333 - 70,254
5
Total 369,301 517,322 2,535 204,929
BB WS (d9% ) il —WEFZH AT
Yangzhou Powerlong Golden Wheel Plaza
(49%) Note' Yangzhou 30,025 Dec-14 Dec-16 100% 114,522 - 65,400
MR I (339 ) M 3E H —tEAA UEFTA
Nanjing Longmian Road Land parcel
(33%) Note? Nanjing 23,810 Jun-17 Dec-19 0% 71,400 - -
it
Total 53,835 185,922 - 65,400
B 5 - Notes:
1) HIHH A B A49% R GB R LR 1) The project is developed by a joint venture which the Group has 49% equity interest.
2) FHIE H m A AT 339% A 2 BB A 2) The project is developed by a joint venture which the Group has 33% equity interest

REE=AET A= —H o REEA#1478,587 As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a land bank of approximately
ST OKI e A IEAE B E o ARESE L E R 4 478,587 sq.m. under development. Among these lands, approximately 332,236
332,236 711 K~ 76,097°F I K K70, 254°F 5 K4 Rl sq.m., 76,097 sq.m. and 70,254 sq.m. are for residential, commercial and
B T A B L RBCE Y % office and investment properties purpose respectively.
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REF—AREF A= —H KRt REERAT
TR BB AR Z 499 W RE LA K HEW B i st LB 365
R PR PR AR IO 6 AR 2 339
AR Ttk R S R 49836,510F I K

REWE
RoF—NEF A=+ AEBE TR
FEE AN 134675 TR BEW - = F
—NEFZA = —H AEEIFHYEY T
51 R L R AR A B2 909 1) 7K o

H B B R EE PG

TRl A 4 8 2 A2 AE Pl R 1 SR O
T A T v BRI M AR o S S
PR BREK 7% EL B > AR SE A P B MY ~ 485~
RV B iV 3R i 75 2 0t B AL B
JOEEEIAH R F—NFET A=+ —H>
72 B L b SRR B R A SR A T LR
FREETAE A 3L4170,000°F 7K o TEHAR% 5 h B
T TR A B S A R AR AR A K R B A 4
EEE R (NG

SRR E RIS RIE I > AR B AR AT AR i
TR Y DA B R B A I
AROHR B RBREZ RO ER G-

As at 31 December 2016 taking into account the 49% interest in the joint
venture with Powerlong, and 33% interest in the joint venture with Longfor
and Nanjing Hongyang Yemao Real Estate Co. Ltd., the Group had a land
bank of a total GFA of approximately 836,510 sq.m..

Investment properties

As at 31 December 2016, the Group completed investment properties with a
total GFA of approximately 134,675 sq.m.. The investment properties held
by the Group maintained an average occupancy rate close to 90% as at 31
December 2016.

Metro leasing and operational management business

Leveraging on its rich experience in the leasing and operational management of
the Nanjing Xinjiekou Metro Mall over the years, strong professional operation
team and extensive client base, the Group obtained leasing and operational
management contracts of metro shopping malls in four cities in China, namely,
Suzhou, Wuxi, Changsha and Wuhan. The Group had a total leasable GFA of
over 70,000 sq.m. for its metro leasing and operational management business
as at 31 December 2016. It is expected that the metro leasing and operational
management business will substantially increase the Group's recurring leasing

rental income in the coming years.

In view of its potential higher growth, the Group will continue to actively
bid for more leasing and operational management contracts of metro station
shopping malls in different cities and has confidence in obtaining more such

contracts in the future.
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TS = AP e SR Y B2 B 269,59 o

5 SR A 18 B b L

Yangzhou Molihua Road Land Parcel
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Investments

In addition to placing surplus funds as time deposits in banks in Hong Kong
and China, the Group also invested in corporate high yield bonds with good
credit rating. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bond investments
amounted to approximately RMB14.1 million. These bonds bear coupon rates
ranging between 4.95% and 6.75%. These investments could facilitate the

Group in preserving its liquidity while enhancing interest yields.

Also, as invited by Xiamen International Bank, the Group has subscribed the
unlisted equity shares of Xiamen International Bank with a cost of RMB108
million. The investment is for long term purpose and it can also further
enhance the business relationship between the Group and Xiamen International
Bank.

Financing

In December 2016, the Group successfully issued senior notes of USD100
million in Singapore. The new senior notes will be matured in 3 years with a
coupon rate of 8.25% which is lower than our first, second and third senior

notes with a coupon rate of 11.25% 10.8% and 9.5%, respectively.

i H S S R R

Yangzhou Powerlong Golden Wheel Plaza
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operations

Revenue
The Group’s revenue consists of revenue derived from (i) sale of the Group’s
developed properties; and (ii) rental income from property leasing. The

following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue and the

iR percentage of total revenue for the years indicated:
RET A=+ —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
TR N ZE R
2016 2015
A BRH T AR#T T

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
5 Hh 7 B Property development 794,466 84.4 100,319 43.7
ESTN-Y Property leasing 146,299 15.6 129,195 56.3
At Total 940,765 100.0 229,514 100.0

) ERRE 7 Z W E BB Property Sales in terms of Property Type

HE4E Residential 35.8%

W3 Commercial 30.8%

40.7%
B S X 3 179%
2015

414%

AR Office 33.4%

i b 3 4 Z W 2 85 B Property Sales in terms of Location

92.8% i A% Nanjing 35.0%
1.4% M Zhuzhou 18.8%
. 5.8% B Yangzhou 9.0%
0% S Wuxi 37.2%
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WM E - F-HFE T+ A =T HIEFEN Revenue increased by 310% from approximately RMB229.5 million for the
AR W20 5 E T IN310% 2 W E —F — R 4F year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB940.8 million for the
THA=T—HIEFERNAH AR08 HE TG £ year ended 31 December 2016, primarily due to a increase in revenue derived
LA AR B 7 i B B S I U o from the property development business.

17 I

J75 i e B i g 2 =R — A
=t HIMFEEMA AR 10035 #oo s
WE T —ANET A= —HIEEERL
NEW794.5 0 # 0 738 0 £ 2y R A4 ]
AR IR TG 38 =8 IE H > R & dm 35
R (—1) - BRSO B K SR
S5 e

RZFE=REFZA =+ —H o AL
ARHERONRE235000 &0 Kb a
fi—MaBEhRERNAARTE133.00
ﬁo

EZ Y

WM BB E =T -
A=+ —HIEERER AR 120277 # T £
BWE L ANEF A= HIMEERA
R 146,311 #5IC © %A T 7 FRAM 6 FE A
HD SO D R R AR BT L
B R b o

. Property development
Revenue derived from property development increased from
approximately RMB100.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2015
to approximately RMB794.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. The main reason for the increase was that the Group has three
projects completed and delivered during the year, namely Zhuzhou
Golden Wheel Jade Garden (Phase I), Wuxi Golden Star Plaza and
Golden Wheel Star-cube.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group achieved contracted sales
of approximately RMB2,359.0 million, including approximately

RMB133.0 million contributed by a joint venture.

. Property leasing
Revenue derived from property leasing business increased from
RMB129.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB146.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The increase was due to
the increase of overall occupancy rate of our shopping mall and metro

station malls, and the lunching of the new metro station malls.
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7 E A Cost of sales
R B A B A A ) 8 6 A A The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales for the

years indicated:

BEF A=+ —HILFE

For the year ended 31 December

CENE “E-hE
2016 2015
ARW T ARW T
RMB'000 % RMB000 %
7 B Property development

it Rl AR Land acquisition costs 197,775 34.1 15,122 12.7
A Construction costs 273,538 47.1 43,997 36.9
EAL R A Capitalized finance costs 50,024 8.6 8,015 6.7
BLIARA Tax expenses 18,269 3.1 5,560 4.7
INgE Subtotal 539,606 92.8 72,694 61.0

WER & SR Property leasing and operational Note Note
management 41,164 it 7.1 46,453 it 39.0
gt Total 580,770 100.0 119,147 100.0

ek HeBammE - F—-nFEL _F—RFTH Note: This amount includes rental expenses of RMB29.3 million and RMB30.3 million for
= HORAR 2 S A A SE 00 A 4 S 4 il the properties under operating lease for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2016,
R NR¥E29.3 1 80 M N R¥E30.3H 80 respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s cost of sales increased from RMB119.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 to RMB580.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. This increase was primarily due to the increase of revenue arising from

sales of properties.

The Group’s percentage of average land acquisition costs over average selling
price decreased from approximately 15.1% in 2015 to approximately 24.9% in
2016.

Gross profit and gross profit margin
Gross profit increased from RMB110.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 to RMB360.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, primarily

due to increase in the sales of properties.

Gross profit margin decreased from approximately 48.1% for the year ended
31 December 2015 to approximately 38.3% for the year ended 31 December
2016, primarily because the proportion of property sales to property leasing
has increased substantially in 2016. The gross profit margin of property sales is

lower than the property leasing.

The gross profit margin for property development business increased from
approximately 27.5% in 2015 to approximately 32.1% in 2016. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in average selling price of properties sold in

2016 as a result of the boom of property market in China during the year.

Gross profit margin for property leasing increased to approximately 71.9%
in 2016 from approximately 64.0% in 2015. The increase was mainly due
to the increase of gross profit margin of our metro station shopping malls as
the overall occupancy rate had been increased to 95% (2015: 83%) as at 31
December 2016.

Other income, expenses, gains and losses

The Group had a net loss of approximately RMB47.2 million for other income,
expenses, gains and losses for the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared to
a net loss of approximately RMB72.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. The net loss was mainly consisted of interest income of approximately
RMB32.8 million, net foreign exchange loss of approximately RMB95.2
million and realized gain on changes in fair value of derivative financial assets/

liabilities of approximately RMB6.2 million.
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Selling and marketing expenses
Selling and marketing expenses primarily consist of advertising and

promotional expenses.

Selling and marketing expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to approximately RMB39.4 million (2015: RMB18.6 million),
representing an increase of about 111.8%. The increase was primarily due to
the fact that there were more sales activities carried out during last year which

were evidenced by the record high contracted sales achieved by the Group.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses primarily include staff salaries and benefits,
depreciation and amortization, office expenses, traveling expenses, professional

fees, utilities and property tax, land use tax and stamp duty.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately RMB117.9 million (2015: RMB119.6 million), representing
a slight decrease of about 1.4% as compared to last year. The Group has
maintained a very tight cost control policy during the year. As a result, even
though the Group has carried out more selling activities and increased its
operating scale, the Group was able to maintain a similar level of overall

administrative expense as last year.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist primarily of interest expenses on borrowings net of
capitalized finance costs. Finance costs decreased from approximately RMB65.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB51.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 primarily because more finance
costs were qualified to be capitalised to properties under development for sales
and investment properties under development in 2016. As at 31 December
2016, the Group had total borrowings of approximately RMB2,825.5
million, while as at 31 December 2015, the Group's total borrowings were

approximately RMB3,031.0 million.

Share of results of joint ventures

The Group's share of profits of joint ventures amounted to approximately
RMBS82.8 million in 2016 compared with an amount of RMB11.9 million
in 2015. The increase was mainly contributed by a joint venture, namely
Powerlong Golden Wheel Plaza which the Group owned 49% equity interest.
The project was completed and delivered during the year. It included a 65,000
sq.m. shopping mall which had been commenced operation in the last quarter
of 2016.
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Changes in fair value of investment properties

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a fair value gain on
investment properties of approximately RMB264.4 million (2015: RMB229.7
million). The revaluation gain resulted from the increase of market value of
the investment properties under development, the completed construction of
certain investment properties as well as the increase in average rental value
of existing investment properties. The Group's investment properties are

revaluated on a market value basis by an independent property valuer.

Profit for the year

Mainly due to the increase of revenue arising from sales of properties, the
revaluation gain of properties investments, and the result of joint ventures,
profit for the year increased from approximately RMB13.0million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB265.4 million for the year

ended 31 December 2016, representing an increase of 19.4 times.

Financial guarantees
The face value of the financial guarantees issued by the Group is analysed as

below:

TR N S
2016 2015
ANRH T AR T
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR Sy K P AR A Mortgage loan guarantees provided by the Group
18 B G R TR AT to banks in favour of its customers 1,101,024 296,329

A IR MBI R A AT
BIATHEATL -

BLIH

AEBZHEHELHEBEE -F—HLFET A
St —HIEEEZ NRWEG2HE M AR
W23 11 B or 19480 B | E —F—ANF T+ A
= H IR 2 A N R 1863 H B C o 3N Y
A B B A 2 s B TR

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the financial guarantee

contracts at initial recognition is not significant as the default rate is low.

Taxation

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by approximately RMB123.1
million or 194.8 % to approximately RMB186.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 from RMBG63.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The increase was primarily due to the increase of revenue arising from the sales

of properties.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Position

The Group had bank deposits and cash of approximately RMB1,795.6 million
as of 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB1,400.1 million), including restricted
cash of RMBG678.5 million (2015: RMB523.8 million) and structured bank
deposit of RMB325.9 million (2015: RMB81.7 million). The increase in cash
and bank balances was mainly due to the fact that the Group had issued senior
notes of US$100 million in November 2016, as well as the increase of sales

proceeds received from property sales.

Bank and Other Borrowings

The Group had outstanding bank and other borrowings (including senior
notes) of approximately RMB2,825.5 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB3,031.0 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's net gearing ratio was approximately
26.2% (2015: 42.4%). The net gearing ratio of the Group is calculated by the
interest-bearing liabilities net of bank deposits and cash and then divided by

total equity attributable to the owners of the Company.

Cost of Borrowings

The Group’s average cost of borrowings (calculated by dividing total interest
expenses paid and payable by the average total bank and other borrowings
during the relevant year) was approximately 7.2% in 2016 as compared with
6.8% in 2015.

The following table sets forth the net cash flow of the Group for the years

indicated:

BETZA=Z1T—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December

Ba KB &EEY (WD) /i R4 Nec (decrease)/increase in cash and

e L

2016 2015

ARETI AR BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 1,193,523 (126,687)
Net cash (used in) investing activities (599,393) (108,584)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (623,976) 776,000
cash equivalents (29,846) 540,729
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash Flows from/(used in) Operating Activities

Cash generated from operating activities resulted primarily from pre-sales and
sales of developed properties and rental income; while cash used in operating
activities resulted from our cash costs for the development of properties, costs
of land purchases and costs of operating completed properties held for sale and

taxes paid.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, net cash from operating activities was
approximately RMB1,193.5 million, which was mainly attributable to (i)
an increase in properties under development for sale of RMB641.9 million,
(ii) a decrease in completed properties for sale of RMB516.8 million, (iii) an
increase in deposits and prepayments received from pre-sale of properties of
RMB1,357.7 million; and (iv) an increase in prepayments for leasehold land
held for development for sale of RMB81.2 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, net cash outflow from operating
activities was approximately RMB126.7 million, which was mainly
attributable to (i) a decrease in completed properties for sale of approximately
RMB57.8 million, (ii) an increase in deposits and prepayments received from
pre-sale of properties of approximately RMB174.2 million offset by an increase

in properties under development for sale of approximately RMB348.8 million.

Cash Flows used in Investing Activities

Cash generated from investing activities resulted primarily from disposal
of available-for-sale investments, interest received from available-for-sale
investments, derivative financial instruments and bank deposits while cash
used in investing activities have been primarily driven by additions of property,
plant and equipment, investment in investment properties, investments and

structured and restricted deposits.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, net cash used in investing activities
was approximately RMB599.4 million, which was primarily attributable to (i)
net increase of structured and restricted deposits of approximately RMB333.0
million; (ii) advance to a joint venture of approximately RMB16.2 million; (iii)
an increase in investment properties of approximately RMB151.9 million; and
(iv) payments on disposal of derivative financial instruments of approximately
RMB43.4 million, and (v) purchases of available-for-sale investments of

approximately RMB96.0 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, net cash used in investing activities
was approximately RMB108.6 million, which was primarily attributable to (i)
interest income from deposits and investments of RMB47.1 million; (ii) net
purchase of investments approximately RMB9.9 million, partially offset by
(i) an increase in investment properties of approximately RMB57.5 million;
and (ii) net purchase of property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB5.3 million and (iii) net Increase of structured and restricted deposits of

approximately RMB84.8 million.

Cash Flows (used in)/from Financing Activities

For the year ended 31 December 2016, net cash used in financing activities was
RMB624.0 million, which was primarily attributable to (i) repayment of bank
loans of RMB1,258.4 million; (ii) interest payment of RMB195.9 million; and
(iii) dividends payment of RMB24.9 million partially offset by (i) proceeds
from new bank loans of RMB871.6 million.

The Group had net cash outflow from financing activities of approximately
RMB776.0million for the year ended 31 December 2015, which was primarily
attributable to (i) repayment of bank loans of approximately RMB964.7
million; (ii) interest payment of approximately RMB150.7 million; (iii)
dividends payment of approximately RMB35.1 million; and (iv) repurchase of
senior notes of approximately RMB108.4 million partially offset by (i) proceeds
from new bank loans of approximately RMB1,132.7 million; and (ii) proceeds
from issued senior notes of approximately RMB641.5 million; and proceeds
from Issue of bonds of RMB221.3 million.

Net Current Assets

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB403.6 million as of
31 December 2016, and net current assets of RMB1,183.2 million as of 31
December 2015.

Gearing Ratio

The Group had outstanding bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB2,825.5 million as of 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB3,031.0 million).

As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s net gearing ratio was approximately
26.2% (2015: 42.4%). The net gearing ratio of the Group is calculated by the
interest-bearing liabilities net of bank deposits and cash and divided by total

owners’ equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Restricted Bank Deposits

A portion of the Group’s bank deposits is restricted for usage. These deposits
are either a) placed with certain banks in the PRC and the usage of which
are restricted to certain of the Group’s property development projects in the
PRC, or b) pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted
to the Group, in which case the use of the restricted bank deposits, subject
to the banks’ approval, is restricted to the purposes as set out in the relevant
loan agreements, or ¢) as security for certain mortgage loans granted to our
customers, in which case the restricted bank deposits will be released upon
receiving the building ownership certificates of the respective properties by
the banks from the customers as security for the mortgage loans granted. As
of 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s restricted bank deposits were
approximately RMBG678.5 million and approximately RMB523.8 million,

respectively.

Working Capital

As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, The Group's cash and cash equivalents,
excluding restricted bank deposits, amounted to approximately RMB1,117.1
million and approximately RMB876.3 million respectively. The Group receives
cash inflows from pre-sales of its properties and project-specific bank loans.
The Group is permitted to pre-sell its properties under development when it
obtains the relevant pre-sale permits. In addition to cash inflows from pre-
sales, the Group typically obtains project-specific bank loans once it receives
the work commencement permits for its projects or project phases, using the

relevant land use rights and properties as security.
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B% Indebtedness

7 b E B % R K e AR R AT b R Property developments require substantial capital investment for land
% AT REZE BT SUBUE e A BB B IR o A SR acquisition and construction and may take months or years before positive cash
AR T E A AT RO A K & flow can be generated. The Group principally funds its property developments
TS T Y SE TR 508 » DL RCBAT R8s SRR from internal funds, borrowings from banks and other parties, proceeds from
Fr A IR L b B o i =R — NI sales and pre-sale of its developed properties and proceeds from issuance of both
CER-TAETZHE T H o AR B M R R R debt and equity securities. As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had

11 B HA A 0T the following outstanding bank and other borrowings:
BEFZA=t—H
As of 31 December
L
2016 2015
ANR¥ T ARWT T
JHE G BRAT i K Unsecured bank borrowings RMB’000 RMB’000
RARE—4F Within one year 228,921 107,144
228,921 107,144
A HEAT BRAT i Secured bank borrowings
AR (K Within one year (note) 643,479 867,388
— 4D EHR 2 M 4E After one year but within two years 61,665 87,442
WAL EHAR R fAE After two years but within five years 113,700 315,472
818,844 1,270,302
At Total 1,047,765 1,377,446
BT R B (NS ER IR Senior notes and bonds (Exclude interest payables) 1,777,748 1,653,507
At Total 2,825,513 3,030,953

B &+ B e R AR R 2 SR AT B T N L B Note: Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “Within one year”

Hr i 2 [ & —4F |5 B AR o R =% — R4 time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate
ToAZT B EEMIT R ASRE A principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to RMB455.5 million (2015:
RM4sssHE I (ZF—HAE: NRME731.00 8 RMB731.9 million). The Group believes that such bank borrowings will be repaid
TC) o AR RS % 55 SRAT 18 O AR 45 5 5 after one year in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates.

JATA — AR R

A E 2 BT HE R ARE Eu R TR E A The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in RMB, US$ and HKS.
BRI SRAT Y AR B0 R A R Details of the assets pledged and guarantees for the secured bank borrowings
SR AR R 0 14 18219825 © are set out in the notes 13, 14, 18, 19 and 25 of the consolidated financial

statements.
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B AR Capital Commitments
TREI R R B A B S KRS - The following table sets forth the Group’s contractual commitments as of the

dates indicated:

RYZA=+—H
As of 31 December
=
2016 2015
A RWT X ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
MFIKHTH A Commitments contracted for but not provided in
BRI R 55 6 I & the audited consolidated financial statements in
T I 2RI - respect of:
BB Construction of properties under development
for sale 536,864 521,603
AT 2 E Investment in an associate 240,900 -
FEAE B 8% DAL 8 65 9 FHL & ot Leasehold land held for development for sale 81,237 -
859,001 521,603

N 45 [H] 1) 4 4 R 3 R A 4 [t HCIE B A9 e L ) 5 The Group’s contractual commitments represented its commitments to third
BN FIE IR o arty construction companies with respect to the construction of its projects.
party p p proj
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Capital Expenditures

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group's capital
expenditures were primarily related to the acquisition of land use rights, the
construction of properties, and purchase of property, plant and equipment. The
following table sets forth a breakdown of its capital expenditures for the years

indicated:

BETZA=Z+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December

RN e S

2016 2015

ABRWTF T AR T T

RMB’000 RMB'000

1 5 - A5 Acquisition of land use rights 81,249 -

e eyES Construction of properties 641,856 348,806
WEYE (AFEBICRT Purchase of property, (including transfer from

FEEH EWE) -~ F5 Rt completed properties held for sale) plant and
equipment 4,875 5,260
At Total 727,980 354,066

B RSN RIE Rk

BRAAEHR BT 2 4 > A I S AT S AT A B
TR IME PR Ab RIS LU AR 36 =7 I 3R
AR RS DR o A% G2 0 0 S A 1) FLR PR~ 0
By & i R e fE B SR s LA A
T CH A MR B 1Y A R o A A AT

S
f2 °

A ) A B R DL e A e 2 TR R
ARG ) B IR DL ~ S SR 365 IR AT RERZ
BT R AN THEE TR 2 28 - DA I AR ik
Sl ) = R B AN HERE R R = 351 > AT e HLA A
A T oy A B T T RE R EEORAH AR
HORHA R B AT AE R R

i 4 JEL Bk

AR K S5 MR T 25 R A e LA
HIE R~ R i BB ~ VD R B
FBA (B B o A 5 B8 2 S8 B8 % B 2 J
LA £ B I 280 B M A0

Off-balance Sheet Commitments and Arrangements

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, the Group has not entered into
any off-balance sheet guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the
payment obligations of any third parties. It does not have any interest in any
unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit
support to it or engages in leasing or hedging or research and development or

other services with it.

Possible Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The
following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group. There
may be other risks and uncertainties which are not known to the Group or

which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risks

The Group is exposed to various types of market risks, including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk
in the normal course of our business. It manages and monitors these exposures
on a regular basis to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

The primary economic environment which most of our principal subsidiaries
operate is the PRC and their functional currency is RMB. The Group's
exposure to foreign exchange risk is principally due to its US$ and HK$
denominated debts and bank deposits in foreign currencies, mainly US$
and HKS$. As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at each reporting date are

as follows:

ZRNE “E—HAE
2016 2015

AR EFIL NRWTT
RMB'000 RMB 000
358,382 380,917
48,040 13,711
406,422 394,628
1,611,801 894,965
701,199 537,444
2,313,000 1,432,409

Appreciation of the RMB against the US$ and HK$ generally results in a gain
arising from the Group’s US$ and HK$ denominated debt and a loss arising
from its bank deposits in US$ and HK$. A depreciation of the RMB against
the US$ and HK$ would have the opposite effect.

Fluctuations in the foreign exchange rate have had and will continue to have
an impact on the business, financial condition and results of operations of the
Group. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
but the management monitors foreign exchange exposure closely and will

consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the
variable rate bank borrowings, structured bank deposits and bank balances of
the Group. The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to its fixed rate restricted bank deposits, bank borrowings and senior notes
and bonds. The Group currently does not have a specific policy to manage its
interest rate risk, but will closely monitor the interest rate risk exposure in the

future.

Credit Risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to it due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising

from:

(a)  the carrying amount of the respective recognized financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position at the end of

each reporting period; and

(b)  the amounts of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee

issued by the Group.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in respect of trade

receivables, with exposure spread over a large number of customers in the PRC.

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in connection with its
customers’ mortgage loans to finance their purchases of the properties. If
a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the term of
guarantee, the bank may demand the Group to repay the outstanding amount
of the loan and any accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstance, the
Group is able to forfeit the customer’s deposit and re-sell the property to
recover any amounts payable by it as to the bank. In this regard, the Group

considers that its credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of bank balances. As
of 31 December 2016 and 2015, approximately 61% and 69% of its bank
balances were deposited at three banks, representing deposits at each bank with
a balance exceeding 10% of total restricted bank deposits and bank balances.
The credit risk of these liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are state-owned banks located in the PRC or banks with high credit ratings

assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TREE 4 B Liquidity Risk

AEECHENME R RHESEATRELE The Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework
VAL e A A o AR B AR A T for short-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group
Al AR A T R B U AR A AL ) manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously

4 L o monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows.

BB T2 B S IB R M 5E37B - For further details, please refer to note 37B to the consolidated financial

statements.

A BAASE BRI G SR AE AR REG - dE 2 Please refer to notes 13, 14, 18, 19 and 25 to the consolidated financial
A AR EE13 2 14 > 18~ 195425 © statements for details of the pledges on the assets of, and guarantees provided
by the Group.

HAKRE Significant Investments
TN AEEERBCE W FERER [ £ During the year 2016, details of the Group's significant investments are set out
PR ] — 8 N 2065207 in pages 206 to 207 under section headed “Schedule of Principal Properties”.
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The Group believes that sound environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
performance is critically important to the sustainable development of its
business and community. The Group is committed, not only to achieving
strong financial results, but also to promoting environmental protection, social

responsibility and effective corporate governance.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The
Group has established an ESG working team to engage the management and
employees across all functions in order to identify relevant ESG issues and
to assess their materiality to the Group’s business as well as the Company’s
stakeholders, through reviewing our operations and internal discussions.
Disclosures relating to the material ESG issues identified have been included
in this ESG Report pursuant to the requirements of Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules (the “ESG Guide”).

The table below shows the ESG issues which were determined to be material
to the Group, together with the aspects on the ESG Guide to which they
relate, based on the assessment performed by the ESG working team. This ESG
Report mainly covers the policies, initiatives and performance of the Group’s
business in relation to these issues, for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the

“Reporting Period”):

ESG ASPECTS AS SET FORTH IN ESG GUIDE
MATERIAL
ESG ISSUES FOR THE GROUP

A. Environmental
Emissions
Use of resources

The environment and natural resources

B.  Social
Employment
Health and safety
Development and training
Labour standards Anti-child and forced Labour
Anti-corruption
Community investment
Shareholders

Consumers
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group has established environmental policies and has communicated
measurable environmental objectives to employees. The Group
proactively encourages the staff to protect the environment. The
ultimate goal is to have all employees adopting environmentally-

responsible behavior in both the workplace and their daily lives.

The Group always keeps itself up-to-date on developments in local
legislation and standards for environmental protection and is committed
to achieving a level of environmental performance that goes beyond
compliance. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience
any cases of non-compliance relating to environmental laws and

regulations in Hong Kong and PRC.

The Group recognizes the importance of both business development and
environmental harmony. In view of the increasing urbanization along
with the country’s modernization process, we endeavour to meet the
needs of social development, while gradually exemplifying our green
competitiveness. In line with its dedication to the protection of urban
environment, Golden Wheel takes concrete actions for environmental
protection by participating in the construction of the “Overseas
Chinese Cultural Plaza” (# 1% 3C{t & ¥7) in Nanjing and financing
the establishment of green belts and sculpture landscape. The plaza
has become a preferred place for entertainment as well as morning and
evening fitness exercises among the public. Golden Wheel’s development
goal is to achieve more organic growth. On the basis of the development
of green features, we constantly improve people’s living quality and
standards and accelerate the pace of green construction, in an effort to
bolster the prosperity of the society and the beauty of the environment.
As such, each of the buildings becomes a part of the nature, giving a
higher touch of harmony between human beings and the nature. With
our commitment to the harmony between urban areas and the nature,
together with our responsible approach of urban development, we

witness the development of urban areas as a city builder.
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Emissions

Carbon dioxide emissions
The major source of carbon dioxide emissions is the use of energy. The
Group has developed various energy-saving initiatives to reduce the

carbon footprint (please refer to the “Use of energy” section below).

Waste management

Waste generated from the Group’s business activities mainly consists of
paper (e.g. office paper) during the Reporting Period. No substantial
hazardous waste was produced by the Group during the Reporting
Period.

The Group has launched a number of waste management programs,

including:

- Recycling of glass, cardboard, paper materials, metal, printing
cartridges and batteries, with collection facilities placed across the

properties; and

- to encourage staff to reduce paper consumption by double-sided

printing and reusing papers printed on one side.

The Group is now considering making use of recycled materials, from
internal sources, to produce corporate stationery for internal use, where
feasible.

2 A5 0 2 i R R

Golden Wheel Overseas Chinese Heart

Health Center - Opening Ceremony
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Use of resources

With the vision of helping to protect the planet and of incorporating
environmental sustainability into its business functions and processes,
the Group proactively seeks opportunities for increasing operating

efficiency in order to reduce the use of resources.

The Group also closely monitors the utilisation of resources and reports
to senior management on this aspect of performance. Appropriate
remedial actions to improve efficiency in the use of resources are taken,

whenever necessary.

In our shopping mall, both IP and leasing properties:— Energy saving
initiatives: reduced electricity consumption by retrofitting “air system”
monitor the usage of air-conditioning, heating, “listing system,
installing LED lights, raising awareness among employees about
electricity saving. Implement a water reuse/recycling program, aiming
to improve water efficiency by recycling for sanitary toilet flushing,
adopting frequency conversion retrofits of water systems and automatic

flushing.

Our construction projects are carried out according to the indicators
set by the green construction model project of local government which
effectively control the consumption of energy, resources and materials.
The aim is to achieve sustainable development and environment-
friendly construction and to reduce the negative impact of the project
to the surrounding environment during construction. The designs of the
projects have already taken into consideration the aspects of land saving
and outdoor environment, energy saving and energy use, water saving
and water use, indoor environment quality and relevant improvement

and innovation.
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Use of energy
To achieve higher energy efficiency, the Group implemented the

following key initiatives during the Reporting Period:

- Blinds for windows to reduce solar heat in air-conditioned areas

and hence the strength of air-conditioning required;

- an optimal air-conditioning control program to select the best
configuration automatically, based on the in-door requirement and

out-door condition;

- to switch off lights and air-conditioning in the meeting room and

computers at work stations where not in use; and

- LED lights in most parts of the Group’s properties which save the

energy usage as compared with fluorescent lights.

Use of water
During the Reporting Period, water consumed by the Group was not
material. Nevertheless, the Group actively promotes water efficient

practices.

The environment and natural resources

Air quality

In order to improve air quality, the Group aims to reduce air emissions
generated from its properties by green initiatives. The Group is
committed to fulfilling and complying with the regime of smoking

prevention and control requirements.
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Donation Ceremony - Golden Wheel

Overseas Chinese Heart Primary School
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SOCIAL

Employment

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 500 employees (2015: 470
employees) in Hong Kong and PRC. The Group also attaches great
importance to employees’ rights and benefits, and offers competitive
remuneration packages to its employees based on factors such as market
wage rates, responsibilities, job complexity as well as the Group’s
performance. Meanwhile, the Group is committed to paying all
employees in full on a timely manner, while the contributions to social
security funds for its employees are made according to local regulations.
The Group has also adopted a share option scheme to recognize and
reward the contribution of its employees to the growth and development
of the Group. In addition, the PRC employees are entitled to maternity
leave, marriage leave and other leaves, as well as the rights to apply for

other casual leaves in accordance with the Labour Law of the PRC.

All of our employees have employment contracts that cover matters
such as wages, benefits and grounds for termination. The Group’s
remuneration policies and packages are reviewed by the management
on a regular basis. The Group grants discretionary bonuses to qualified

employees based on operation results and individual performance.

The Hong Kong employees are also entitled to medical insurance,
participation in the mandatory provident fund (under which a fixed
percentage (subject to statutory cap) of an employee’s salary will be

contributed toward the scheme).

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare during the reporting

period.

During the reporting period, the Company did not have any problem of

child labor nor did it violate employees’ legitimate rights.
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Work force by Gender
Percentage (%)
R4
54.5
Female 45.5
Workforce by Age Group
18-30 31-40 41-50 50 and above

18E305% 31 E405% 41F508% SO KM L

28.1% 34.8% 22.2% 14.9%
The staff turnover rate during 2016 is 11.8%.

Employee Health & Safety

The Group endeavours to provide a safe working environment for its
employees. The Company is committed to ensure employees have safe
working conditions, adheres to the safety management principles of
comply with safety regulations, improve safety facilities, raise safety

awareness, and improve occupational environment.

During the reporting period, these were no material injury case and nil

death case.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to providing a safe working environment & protecting

employees from occupational hazards during the reporting period.
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Development & Training
During the reporting period, we organised over 864 hours training for
our employees (including health and safety, fire protection, construction

work and service campaign for our building managers.)

All new employees are required to attend orientation training to ensure
the employee is aware and familiarizes themselves with the Group’s
values and goals and to ensure the employee understands their role in the
Group. Employees are encouraged to attend seminars relevant to their

position to enhance their role within the Group.

Labour Standard
All employees are recruited through the Human Resources Department
to ensure they fulfill the job requirements underlying their respective

positions.

The Group regularly reviews its employment practice and Group’s
guidelines on staff recruitment to ensure that it is in full compliance
with regulations related to, among other things, prevention of child

labour and forced labour.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

Group relating to prevention of child and forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Property Maintenances and Personal Data Practices

The Group endeavours to ensure all properties are kept well maintained.
Spot checks as well as annual review by an Authorized Person is performed
on all properties to ensure properties are in line with government rules and

regulations.

The Group's policy on Privacy of Personal Data provides guidelines for
managing different kinds of personal data and the establishment of a privacy

framework that secures the personal data of our tenants.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to health
and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.
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Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to good corporate governance practices and strictly
prohibits its employees from engaging in acts of corruption. A policy has been
set up to deal with anti-corruption complaints in a view to prevent corruption,
reduce operational risks and protect the legitimate interests of the Group.
All complaints regarding alleged corruption cases can be reported through
specific channels (including email, telephone or mail) either on a named basis
or anonymously, which will then be investigated and handled by the legal
department and internal audit department under the guidance of the vice

chairman of the Group.

The Staff Handbook has including an Anti-Corruption section. The Group
is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to bribery,

extortion, fraud and money laundering during the reporting period.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to repaying the community and taking a vigorous
part in love spread charity events. We financed the construction of the
“Overseas Chinese Cultural Plaza” (#{&3XfLE ) in Nanjing, and made
donations for the building of the “Golden Wheel Overseas Chinese Heart
Primary School” (4 #i f-C>/N8) in Hunan Province, receiving much praises

from the people in the region.

During the year 2016, Golden Wheel Tiandi Community Care Fund ( % ¥
R Hh B % E 4 ) | which set up by the Company and mainly caring for people
live in backward areas in mainland China, financed the building of Dagao Ping
Miaozu Golden Wheel Overseas Chinese Heart Health Center ( K 15 5 1 i 4
S E OR A FE) in Hunan 9 5 19241 %0 15 53 Besides, Golden Wheel and
our Zhuzhou Times Square’s tenant organized a campaign named “ Give warm
clothes, love in the winter “ ( KBEH K » BAEFEAL) with cheir support, this
time we donated more than 600 pieces of clothes to the children in Gan Tian
Ba Dou Primary School (3 H /\ 3% /N2 ) and the elder in Homes for the
elderly (#P#HEPL) in Zhuzhou.
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Shareholders

The Group is more focused than ever on sticking to a business philosophy
that is aimed at fuelling long-term business growth through well-established
strategies. Based on a prudent financial management strategy, we take full
advantage of the international capital market as a platform for tapping
more funds and reinforcing stronger confidence for our long-term corporate
development. We are more determined than ever to innovate our business
model relating to the real estate development and leasing and management.
We also spare great efforts on training an internal team of elite management.
Strategically, we retain the long-term ownership of shopping malls on
a selected basis, in order to generate recurring rental income for us and
consolidate our long-term financial strength. Also, through the disposal of
development projects, we attain capital growth, while maintaining a reasonable
rate of revenue from our real estate development business as well as operational
management business by retaining mall assets and operational management, so
as to drive long-term corporate growth. Meanwhile, in praise of the enduring
support of investors, we endeavour to share the fruitful results of our business

development by reaping prominent performance.

Consumers

Leveraging on its proven track record in the aspects of commercial and
residential real estate development and operation in China, and thanks to
its values of quality, integrity and excellence, Golden Wheel focuses on the
development and operation of shopping malls and integrated commercial
projects in Jiangsu Province and Hunan Province. With the successive
development of over a dozen of projects in a number of cities including
Nanjing, Yangzhou, Wuxi, Changsha and Zhuzhou, the Company has paved
a solid path for its development. With adherence to its concept of social
justice, Golden Wheel is well aware of the interdependence between itself
and its stakeholders. Thanks to its dedication to the building of high quality
properties for consumers, the provision of superb services and the protection
of the interests of consumers, consumers have cast a vote of the strongest

confidence in the Company.
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Company is under the leadership of an effective board to optimize return for

the shareholders.

As a responsible business enterprise, the corporate governance standards of
the Company are built on the principles of independence, accountability,

transparency and honesty.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Board firmly believes that conducting the Group’s
business in an transparent and responsible manner and following good
corporate governance practices serve its long-term interests and those of
shareholders. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code to

govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company during the financial year
ended 31 December 2016, has adopted, applied and complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provision”) contained in the Corporate

Governance Code.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintain and improve its high standard of

corporate governance practices.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2016 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yam Yin (Chairman),

Mr. Wong Kam Fai (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry (Standing Vice President),

Mzr. Tjie Tjin Fung (Vice Chairman),

Mzr. Janata David

Non-executive Directors
Mzr. Suwita Janata (Vice Chairman),
Mr. Gunawan Kiky

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Moon,

Mr. Wong Ying Loi,

Ms. Howe Sau Man,

Mr. Lie Tak Sen
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(D)

Mr. Wong Yam Yin is the husband of Ms. Hung So Ling, the father of
Mr. Wong Kam Fai (an Executive Director) and Mr. Wong Kam Keung,
Barry (an Executive Director), and the brother of Ms. Julia Oscar (the

wife of Mr. Suwita Janata, a Non-executive Director).

The Board currently comprises a total of 11 Directors, being 5 Executive
Directors, 2 Non-executive Directors, and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors. The number of Independent Non-executive Directors
represents more than one-third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. The biographies of the Directors are set out from

pages 57 to 64 of this Annual Report.

All Directors entered into formal letters of appointment with the
Company for a term of one year or two years, subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the articles of association of the Company

(the “Articles of Association”).

The Articles of Association provides that at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Also, pursuant to the Articles of Association, any
Ditector appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
is subject to re-election at the next following general meeting or next

following annual general meeting of the Company respectively.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

NON-

The Company has four independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”),
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise in

compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the INEDs in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
is of the view that all the INEDs are independent in accordance with the

Listing Rules.
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ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company
in a responsible and effective manner. It is responsible for formulating
strategies and management policies of the Company, approving the
strategic objectives of the Company and ensuring the availability of
necessary financial and other resources to meet such objectives. The
Board also constantly supervises and reviews the Company’s regulations
and rules. The Directors perform their duties in a faithful and diligent
manner and act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders

as a whole.

Moreover, the Board is also responsible for presenting a clear and
balanced assessment of the Company’s performance and prospects,
preparing accounts that give a true and fair view of the Company’s
financial position on a going concern basis and disclosing other price-

sensitive information.

The management is responsible for implementing the policies and
strategies as determined by the Board, and is delegated with the daily

management, operations and administration of the Company.

DIRECTOR TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under the relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company
Secretary and our legal advisors also provide the Directors with updates
on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and other

relevant legal and regulatory requirement from time to time.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged in-house trainings for the Directors to update and

refresh their relevant knowledge.
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The Company has arranged for liability insurance to indemnify its

Directors for their liabilities arising out of its.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman, Mr. Wong Yam Yin, has executive responsibilities and
provides leadership to the Board in terms of establishing policies and
business directions. He ensures that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issue
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. He also ensures that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board
meetings. Mr. Wong Kam Fai, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible
for overseeing the day-to-day management of the Group’s business. Mr.
Wong Yan Yin is the father of Mr. Wong Kam Fai.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has established three committees with respective
responsibilities, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). All Board
committees are empowered by the Board under their terms of reference
which have been posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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Name of Director
HITEH
Executive Directors
EHE

Wong Yam Yin
EXi

Wong Kam Fai

ES L

Wong Kam Keung, Barry
Tjie Tjin Fung
Tjie Tjin Fung
Janata David
Janata David

HHITHEH
Non-executive Directors
Suwita Janata

Suwita Janata

Gunawan Kiky
Gunawan Kiky

B HHTEE

Independent Non-executive
Directors

ERR]

Hui Yan Moon

AR

Wong Ying Loi

i) 75 5

Howe Sau Man

FEE

Lie Tak Sen

J)

Y
Full
Board

4/4
414
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
414
4/4
4/4

414
4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
414
4/4
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ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year. Special
meeting of the Board will be convened whenever necessary. The Board

convened a total of five meetings for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Details of the directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board
committee meetings and the annual general meeting during the year

were as follows:

BT K
Meeting Attended/Held
EHEZAG FMZAE REZHGT RAREERT

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee AGM
N N 1/1 11
N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
N 212 N 1/1
N/A 212 N/A 1/1
N N Y b 1/1
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
N N N 1/1
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
N vy bl N 1/1
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
N AN N 1/1
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
N vy bl N A 11
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
3/3 212 N 1/1
3/3 212 N/A 1/1
N Vbl 1/1 1/1
N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
313 AN 1/1 11
3/3 N/A 1/1 1/1
3/3 212 N 1/1
3/3 212 N/A 1/1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process, half-yearly and annual results,
risk management and internal control system and provide advice
and comments to the Board. The Audit Committee consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Howe Sau Man,
Mr. Hui Yan Moon and Mr. Lie Tak Sen. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee is Ms. Howe Sau Man, an Independent Non-executive

Director.

During the year, the Audit Committee held the meetings to review the
interim results and annual results and recommended the Company’s risk
management and internal control system. The Chief Financial Officer
and representatives of the external auditor of the Company attended the
meetings. Prior to the commencement of 2016 final audit, the Audit
Committee held a pre-audit meeting with the external auditor to discuss
the nature and scope of the audit, together with its reporting obligation

and other audit matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Directors on the Company’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies on such remuneration; to assess performance of each Executive
Director; to determine the terms of the specific remuneration package
of each Executive Director and senior management; and to review and
approve performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by Directors from time to time. The
Remuneration Committee consists of two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Hui Yan Moon, Mr. Lie Tak Sen and an Executive
Director, Mr. Wong Kam Fai. The Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee is Mr. Hui Yan Moon.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held the meetings
to review the remuneration terms of executive directors service
contracts and the remuneration policies of the Company, and made its

recommendations to the Board.
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(M) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes; to
identify, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors; and make recommendations
to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The
Nomination Committee consists of an Executive Director, Mr. Wong
Yam Yin, and two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Ying Loi and Ms. Howe Sau Man. The Chairman of the

Nomination Committee is Mr. Wong Yam Yin.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has assessed the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and reviewed the

re-appointment of Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a board diversity policy, setting
out the approach to diversity on the Board. It is believed that a truly
diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
regional and industrial experience, background, race, gender and other

qualities of members of the Board.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and clear assessment
of the Group’s performance and prospects. The Directors acknowledged
that their responsibility for preparing the accounts that give a true
and fair view on the Group's financial position on a going-concern
basis and other financial disclosures. Management of the Company
provides all relevant information to the Board, giving its members
sufficient explanation and information that it needs to discharge their
responsibilities. A statement by the auditor of the Company in respect
of their reporting responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’

Report section contained in this Annual Report.
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The fees for audit services provided by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
Company’s auditor, for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to RMB1,130,000. Non-audit services fees RMB705,000 was paid
by the Company during the year under review. The Audit Committee
considered that the non-audit services will not impair their audit

independence or objectivity.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication and the

compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the internal audit department of the Group has
conducted assessment on the effectiveness of the internal control system

of the Group and the assessment result was positive.

The internal control are reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by
the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at

least once each year by the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company
Secretary reports to the Board and is responsible for advising the Board
on governance matters. Ms. Ng Yee Man, Fiona has been appointed as
the Company Secretary in August 2013. Ms. Ng has confirmed that for
the year under review, she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training. The biographical details of Ms. Ng is set out on

page 64 of this Annual Report.
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(Q SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012
Revision). However, pursuant to the Articles of Association, it provides

that:

Procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the

Company.

Procedure for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director at a general meeting

If a shareholder intends to propose a person for election as a Director
at any general meeting, he must sign a notice (the “Notice”) stating
his intention to propose such person for election. The Notice must
include the personal information of the proposed person as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and the proposed person must sign a
letter of consent stating his willingness to be elected shall have lodged
with the Company's principal place of business in the Hong Kong
located at Unit A, 18 Floor, @Convoy, 169 Electric Road, Fortress Hill,
Hong Kong; or the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, located at Shops
1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, with at least (7) days notice period is given. If the Notices
are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed such election, the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days

prior to the date of such general meeting.
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The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of information in order to ensure all shareholders as well as the public
are equal access to information. The management of the Company has
proactively taken and will continue to take the following measures to

ensure effective shareholders’ communication and transparency:

. Maintain frequent contacts with shareholders and investors

through various channels such as meetings, telephone and emails;

. Regularly update the Company’s news and developments through

the investor relations section of the Company’s website;

. Arrange on-site visits to the Group’s projects for potential

investors and research analysts.

Through the above measures, the Company endeavors to communicate
with the investment community and provide them with the latest

development of the Group and the PRC real estate industry.

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public
in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary
focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors

as well as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

In addition, shareholders and investors are welcome to write their
enquires directly to the Board a) by mail to the Company’s principal
place of business, b) by fax on (852) 2566 3070 or ¢) by email at
IR@gwtd.com.hk.
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Below are biographies of the current Directors and senior management of the

Group.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yam Yin ( E8LE ), aged 75, is an Executive Director, the
Chairman of our Board and Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong is one of the
founders of our Group and our controlling shareholders. He is responsible
for our overall strategy, business and investment planning. Mr. Wong was

appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012.

Mr. Wong has over 30 years of experience in business management. He
established Golden Wheel Trading Company Limited (4w % 7 H R 2>
A]) in 1983 in Hong Kong to engage in hardware trading business. He,
together with his wife Ms. Hung So Ling and his elder son Mr. Wong Kam Fai,

established our Group in 1994 to engage in real estate development business.

Besides his role in our Group, Mr. Wong is involved in various associations,

including being:

. a consultant of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese*;

o a standing committee executive of China Oversea Exchange
Association®;

o a standing vice president of Oversea Chinese Merchant Association®;

. a Life-time Honorary Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Hong

Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Association*;

. a Life-time Honorary Chairman of the Chiao Yao Association*;
U a Chairman and Director of Hong Kong Qiao Foundation*;
. a Standing Director of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations™;

. a Standing Director of Hong Kong Federation of Guangdong

Community Organizations*; and

. the Honorary Principal of Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Qiaoxin School*.
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Mr. Wong received various awards in recognition of his contribution to the
society, including the “Chief Executive's Commendation for Community
Service (TR B EMRFEAEM) ” by Hong Kong government in 2004,
the “Prize for Outstanding Contribution to Beichuan Middle School*” by All
China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese*, the “Manufacturer with
Honesty and Integrity of 2010” by All China Federation of Industry and
Commerce, Hardware and Electromechanical Chamber in 2010, the “Award of
Outstanding Chinese jointly held by Global Outstanding Chinese Association
and Chinese Literature Publishing House in 2014, and the Honor of Serving

Chinese Society by Overseas’ Chinese Office of the State Council* in 2014.

Mr. Wong received his bachelor’s degree in physics from Huaqiao University in
1967.

Mr. Wong Yam Yin is the husband of Ms. Hung So Ling, the father of Mr.
Wong Kam Fai (an Executive Director) and Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry (an
Executive Director), and the brother of Ms. Julia Oscar (the wife of Mr. Suwita

Janata, a Non-executive Director).

Mr. Wong Kam Fai ( ES##) | aged 46, is an Executive Director, a Vice
Chairman of our Board, the Chief Executive Officer of our Group and a
member of our Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wong is one of the founders of
our Group and our controlling shareholders. Mr. Wong held several positions
within our Group immediately after completion of his bachelor’s degree. He
has been the General Manager of Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate since 1
May 1994, Nanjing Jade Golden Wheel since 1 July 2002, respectively. Mr.
Wong is responsible for our overall business operation and management. Mr.
Wong was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012. Mr. Wong has 20 years of

experience in the real estate industry.
Mr. Wong is involved in various associations, including being:

o a Chairman of the Executive Committee of All China Federation of

Industry & Commerce Real Estate Commission, Jiangsu Province*;

U a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee of

Hunan Province®;
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. a member of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese
Association®;
o a standing committee member of All China Federation of Industry &

Commerce of Jiangsu Province*;
U a Deputy Chairman of Jiangsu Overseas Exchange Association*;

o a Standing Deputy Chairman of Nanjing Overseas Chinese Chamber of

Commerce*; and
o a Chairman and Director of Hong Kong Qiao Foundation*.

Mr. Wong was awarded as an “Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” of Jiangsu
province and a “Top Ten Outstanding Entrepreneur” of Qinhuai, Nanjing,

respectively.

Mr. Wong received his bachelor’s degree in computer science from The
University of New South Wales of Australia in June 1994.

Mr. Wong Kam Fai is the elder son of Mr. Wong Yam Yin (an Executive
Director) and Ms. Hung So Ling, and the elder brother of Mr. Wong Kam

Keung, Barry (an Executive Director).

Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry (E8®), aged 43, is an Executive
Director and the Standing Vice President of our Group. He is also one of our
controlling shareholders. He is responsible for administration, human resources
management and projects development in Hunan province. Mr. Wong joined
our Group in 1996. Mr. Wong has been the General Manager of Zhuzhou
Golden Wheel Real Estate Limited since 1 August 2004 and Zhuzhou Golden
Wheel Business Management Limited since 1 February 2010, respectively.
Mr. Wong was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012. He has 18 years of

experience in the real estate industry.
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Mr. Wong is involved in various associations, including being:

o a member of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese Youth
Committee*;
U a standing committee member of the Overseas Chinese Association of

Guangdong Province*;

o a Deputy Chairman member of Returned Overseas Chinese Association

of Shenzhen*;

. a Deputy Chairman of China Federation of Overseas Chinese

Entrepreneurs of Hunan Province*;

. a Director of Hong Kong Overseas Chinese Social Association®;
o a member of the Hunan Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese*;
U a standing committee executive of Changsha Overseas Friendship

Association®; and

o a standing committee executive of Nanjing Overseas Friendship

Association®.

Mr. Wong completed the Foundation Studies Certificate Course of Unisearch
Limited (now known as New South Innovations Pty Limited, an entity
controlled by the University of New South Wales) in 1993.

Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry is the younger son of Mr. Wong Yam Yin (an
Executive Director) and Ms. Hung So Ling, and the younger brother of Mr.

Wong Kam Fai (an Executive Director).

Mr. Tjie Tjin Fung, aged 67, is an Executive Director and a Vice Chairman
of our Board. Mr. Tjie is responsible for overseeing our operation, and
formulating our investment strategies. He joined our Group in 2002. Mr. Tjie

was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012.

Mr. Tjie is an Indonesian Chinese. Being an entrepreneur, he established his

own manufacturing business in Indonesia in the 1970s.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Tjie is involved in various associations, including being:

a Vice Chairman of Indonesia Kota Bandung Social Welfare Fund*;

o a Deputy Chairman of Indonesia Bandung Hakka Chinese Association*;
J a Charter President of Indonesia Bandung Lions Clubs International*;
o an Honorary Chairman of Guangdong Province Federation of Indonesian

Social Institutes*;

. an Honorary Chairman of Indonesia Hakka Chinese Association*; and

U an Honorary Chairman of Indonesia Mei Zhou Club*.

Mr. Janata David, aged 35, is an Executive Director. He is responsible for
managing our investors’ relationship. He joined our Group in 2005. Mr. Janata

David was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012.

Mzr. Janata David is an Indonesia Chinese. He also served as a general manager
of The Royal Beach Seminyak Bali, a company running a resort hotel in Bali,
Indonesia, from 2010 to 2011. He and his family members established PT
Golden and Mitra Property in Indonesia in August 2009 to engage in property

development business in Indonesia.

Mr. Janata David received his bachelor’s degree in business from Monash
University in Australia in December 2002 and his master’s degree in business

systems from the same university in December 2004.

Mr. Janata David is the son of Mr. Suwita Janata (an Non-executive Director)
and Ms. Julia Oscar who is the sister of Mr. Wong Yam Yin (an Executive
Director). Therefore, Mr. Janata is also a nephew of Mr. Wong Yam Yin (an

Executive Director).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Suwita Janata, aged 66, is a Non-executive Director and a Vice Chairman
of our Board. He joined our Group in 2002. Mr. Suwita was appointed as a
Director on 26 April 2012.

Mr. Suwita Janata is an Indonesian Chinese. He commenced his career as an
entrepreneur by establishing his own trading company in the 1970s. Mr.
Suwita Janata and his family members established PT Golden and Mitra
Property in Indonesia in August 2009 to engage in property development

business in Indonesia.

Mr. Suwita Janata has been involved in various associations, including being:

o the former Executive Chairman of Chinese Committee of Indonesia

Chamber of Commerce (West Java)*;

o the former head of the Indonesia Chamber of Commerce (West Java),

Commerce Division*; and

. an advisory council member of Indonesia Bandung Yayasan Dana Welfare

Foundation*; and

. The Vice Chairman of Indonesia Bandung Minnan Gonghui*.

Mr. Suwita Janata is the father of Mr. Janata David (an Executive Director) and
the husband of Ms. Julia Oscar. Ms. Julia Oscar is the sister of Mr. Wong Yam

Yin (an Executive Director).

Mr. Gunawan Kiky, aged 69, is a Non-executive Director. He joined our

Group in 2002. Mr. Gunawan was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012.

Mr. Gunawan is an Indonesian Chinese. In the 1980s, he established his own

trading business.

Mr. Gunawan joined Indonesia Bandung Lions Clubs International® in
1989. In 2000, Mr. Gunawan founded Indonesia Bandung Hakka Chinese

Association* and has been a financial supervisor of the association.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hui Yan Moon (#F123#) , aged 46, is an Independent Non-executive
Director appointed on 10 December 2012 and a member of our Audit
Committee and the chairman of our Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hui has
over 10 years of experience in finance and management. He has held the
position of the Chief Executive Officer of Swing Media Technology Group Ltd.,
a company listed on Singapore Stock Exchange, since May 2003.

Mr. Hui obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration from Baruch
College, the City University of New York in the United States in June 1995
and his EMBA from Tsinghua University in Beijing, China in January 2007.

Mr. Wong Ying Loi (#%2K) | aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive
Director appointed on 10 December 2012 and a member of Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in business management.
He has been operating his own trading and manufacturing business since the

1980s.
Mr. Wong is involved in various associations, including being:
. the Chairman of Chiao Yao Association Limited*;

U a member of the Ninth and Tenth sessions of the Chinese People’s

Political Consultative Committee of, Hubei province*; and
. a member of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese*.

Mr. Wong obtained a diploma in English from Huaqiao University in July
1968.

Ms. Howe Sau Man (fi7552) | aged 45, is an Independent Non-executive
Director appointed on 10 December 2012 and the chairman of our Audit

Committee and a member of Nomination Committee.

Ms. Howe obtained her bachelor’s degree in commerce from University of
Tasmania, Australia in December 1997. She is a practicing member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2012 and a

Certified Practising Accountant of CPA of Australia since July 2003.
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Ms. Howe has over 10 years of experience in auditing, accounting and taxation.
Ms. Howe worked with a number of Hong Kong CPA firms for over 10 years,
including Ernst & Young from March 2000 to October 2001.

Mr. Lie Tak Sen (ZEHEA) | aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive
Director appointed on 10 December 2012 and a member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lie has over 20 years of experience in
business management. He has been operating his own trading business since

1990.

Mzr. Lie is involved in various associations, including being:

o a member of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese*; and
J a consultant of Beijing Returned Overseas Chinese Federation*.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yiu Chi Man (Bk% 3C) is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
Mr. Yiu is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial management and
regulatory compliance. He has approximately 20 years’ experience of providing
audit and advisory services to listed companies and multinational companies

with a focus on properties and financial services industries.

Mzr. Yiu joined the Group in 2013. Before joining the Group, Mr. Yiu was a
partner of KPMG China.

Mzr. Yiu obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1993. Mr. Yiu is a fellow member of Chartered
Association of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Ng Yee Man, Fiona (5%i52) is the Company Secretary of the Group.
Ms. Ng is responsible for overseeing corporate governance, regulatory
compliance and investor relation. She has approximately more than 20 years’

experience in finance, accounting and corporate secretarial functions.

Ms. Ng joined the Group in 2013. Before joining the Group, Ms. Ng was a
financial controller and company secretary of a company listed on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

64 \ Zrf KP4 R AW\ GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED \



SAMABFFAREHMAGERE
é%ﬁ%%“ﬁiﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%ﬁfﬂ
BREBHAHE A TEA -

=

)m]n
il 5‘2
> &=

P B AT AT« Sk B
BEORLFL AT« 9 5k = R A A S
H 5 TS A i A
BT 9 0 (S LMK 4 4 £
SR A B £

Wi S5 25 S — JL LI AR A5 SR R K B T3 B
BB - W%éﬁ*iiﬁﬁﬁﬁm»
T A R g% AT R B

— BT A

BEAL L AEFEHBAR A& WHE

B B LR BT IEMAAREE - EIMAAK

EERT R LG AERT A AHER > SI5EERE
(FATT) B 40A BR /s w) S 5 4 B T AT K 3 v L

CETE S R YNl s (S

P — BT — A A 1 S A o

B 6 A A SR [ AT R A AR B R

o BB T — AR AR M - FE AR

%@m>ﬁﬁiﬁrxﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ BB

TR TSR I I A MR 4 I A S A

B o A 1 — S AR BRI ol R B A 3 A B
B SR o B R BT AR P e AT
i o

T8 e A A B2 T G A AR 4 O < o R AR
B BRI B R TR A B R - ROEAE
A =T NAF AL o B A A SE i > 7
B R AR AN IR 2 R AR 6L 45 9 AE F A R
BB A B 8 R R R AR

EFREF RS REREE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Ng is a fellow member of Chartered Association of Certified Public
Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators,

and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr. Tao Kang (M) is the Standing Deputy General Manager of the
Group. Mr. Tao is responsible for overseeing our project management. Mr. Tao
joined the Group in 2006 and was appointed as the Standing Deputy General
Manager of Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Real Estate. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Tao worked at various companies, including being the Deputy Director of

Nanjing Science and Technology Hall*.

Mr. Tao obtained his diploma degree in industrial and civil construction
from the Southeast University* in 1994. Mr. Tao obtained his senior engineer
qualification in 2007 and is a Registered Supervision Engineer and a Certified

Constructor.

Ms. Sun Hui Hong (R 4L) is the Assistant Vice President of the Group.
She is responsible for the financial management. Ms. Sun joined the Group
in 2009. Before joining the Group, Mr. Sun worked at various companies,
including being the financial controller of Xinshi (Nanjing) Textile Co., Ltd*

and the audit supervisor of Ren Tianhua Zhongxing CPA, Jiangsu Branch*.
In 2001, she obtained her certified accountant qualification.

Mr. Chen Gang (B8 ) is the Deputy Financial Manager of the Group. He is
responsible for the financial management. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2012.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked at various companies, including
being the Financial Controller of Jiangsu Joyque Information Industry Co.,

Ltd* and the financial manager of Intech Group*.

Mr. Chen obtained his diploma degree in economic management from
Hehai University in 1999. In 2000, he obtained his middle level accountant

qualification.

Mr. Sun Yang (%% ) is the Sales Director of the Group and Deputy General
Manager in Yangzhou. Mr. Sun is responsible for overseeing our sales and
marketing. Mr. Sun joined the Group in 2008. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Sun worked in various companies including being the sales supervisor and vice

president of Nanjing Haoliyi Real Property Consultancy Company Limited*.
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Mr. Sun holds the Real Estate Sales Qualification by Training Center of

National Real Estate Trade*.

Mr. Sun obtained his diploma in real estate operation and property

management from Yangzhou Polytechnic College* in June 2002.

Ms. Gu Xiaofang (W75 ) is the General Manager of Golden Wheel Time
Square. Ms. Gu is responsible for overseeing the operation of Golden Wheel
Time Square. Ms. Gu joined the Group in 2010. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Gu worked at various companies, including being the assistant to the
general manager and marketing manager of Zhuzhou Dajiang Property Service
Management Company Limited* and a deputy general manager of Jindi

Property Management Company*.

Ms. Gu is a member of Hunan Province Apparel Industry Association Ladies

Apparel Committee*.

Ms. Gu obtained her diploma degree in business management from Hubei
Radio and TV University* in July 1996.

Ms. Jiang Jian (M) is the Standing Deputy General Manager of Golden
Wheel Xintiandi Mall. Ms. Jiang is responsible for overseeing the operation of
Golden Wheel Xintiandi Mall. Ms. Jiang joined the Group in 2006. She has
over 15 years of experience in the management of large scale shopping mall.
Before joining the Group, Ms. Jiang worked at various companies, including
being the vice general manager of Nanjing Shangmao Shopping Center*
and the general supervisor of Zhongnan Holdings Group Company Limited

(subsidiary commercial company).

*  For identification purposes only
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The Board is pleased to present the Annual Report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC are primarily engaged in property development and
property leasing. The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries
are shown under note 41 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis
of the Group's revenue and operating profit for the year by principal activities
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this

Annual Report and note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

on page 92 of this Annual Report.

PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB2.5 cents
(equivalent to HKD2.815 cents) per share (the “Proposed Final Dividend”) for
the year 2016. Subject to the approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on Friday,
19 May 2017. It is expected and, if approved, that the Proposed Final Dividend
will be payable on 20 June 2017 to the shareholders whose names are listed on

the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 9 June 2017.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a)

(b)

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 16
May 2017 to Saturday, 20 May 2017 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to
determine the identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote
at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 15 May 2017.

For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final
Dividend

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 6 June 2017
to Friday, 9 June 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the Proposed
Final Dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for

Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,

registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 June 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AR A A A AR W 2 RS KRR A S B T
BRI G A RN 13 -
JBe AR
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B LM 5E30 -

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group

during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are

set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ISSUANCE OF SENIOR NOTES

During the year 2016, the Company has issued USD100 million senior notes

bearing interest at a rate of 8.25% per annum and due in November 2019.

SET UP AND MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has set up and/or acquired
a total of 44 subsidiaries, the details of which are set out in note 41 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company did not have
any material disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies for the year

ended 31 December 2016.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of the distributable reserves of
the Company was RMB593.1 million.

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and

note 31 and 40, respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this Annual Report and notes 27, 28 and 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For RMB600,000,000 11.25% senior notes due 2016 (the “2016 Notes”), the
Company repurchased and cancelled part of the 2016 Notes in the amounts of
RMB33,800,000 and RMB86,000,000 on 31 December 2015 and 30 March
2016, respectively. The Company has redeemed the remaining outstanding

principal amount of the 2016 Notes on maturity in April 2016.

Save for the redemption and cancellation as disclosed herein, there was no
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries since the listing date and up to the date

hereof.
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BLOWR 5 B TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
000 2 M R R R A A A O T AR AT The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Aoy 0 T B e B A Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
i Dk L PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

A ) AL R AN R BB 2 R (B A G There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
A Y ] T M [ ) 5 AR AOE A R e O R R Association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
A SCRRLE A 2 W) ZE 4% LU A9 1) A BRCOR B 2 Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

WA o shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

A 45 % A B W CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

A R A 5 I A A B T i A 4 AR A Details on the charges of the Group's assets and guarantees provided by the
TR A A B R FEME13 21418~ 19 K25 ° Group are set out in notes 13, 14, 18, 19 and 25 to the consolidated financial

statements
R DIRECTORS
REMBHEEARE AN ESS - The Directors during the Relevant Period and up to the date of this report are:
T ESE Executive Directors
TERB S () Mr. Wong Yam Yin ( £ 3E) (Chairman)
T SRR (BT T A ) Mr. Wong Kam Fai (ESR¥E) (Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer)
T (H AR Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry ( £ %) (Standing Vice President)
Tjie Tjin FungdCE (% /) Mr. Tjie Tjin Fung (Vice Chairman)
Janata David /6 2E Mr. Janata David
FHfTESR Non-executive Directors
Suwita ]anataflﬁi (&2 5E) Mr. Suwita Janata (Vice Chairman)
Gunawan KikyJt Mr. Gunawan Kiky
BoL AT E S Independent Non-executive Directors
A 58 4 Mr. Hui Yan Moon ( #H{Z1#)
RS Mr. Wong Ying Loi (#{ % 5¢)
fil 7% & 4o+ Ms. Howe Sau Man ({75 52)
A e Mr. Lie Tak Sen (42 /E)
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at AGM and be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Wong Kam Fai ( E#8#) , Mr. Tjie Tjin Fung,
Mr. Wong Ying Loi (#%%%) | and Ms. Howe Sau Man ({1 55E) shall retire
from office at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence confirmation
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our Executive Directors has entered into a service contract. The
principal particulars of these service agreements are for a term of two years
commencing from listing date, and may be renewed for a term of two years
by agreement between the parties and in accordance with our Articles of

Association and the applicable rules.

Each of the Non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with our
Company. The principal particulars of these appointment letters are for a term
of two years commencing from listing date and may be renewed for a term of
two years in accordance with our Articles of Association and the applicable

rules.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with our Company. The principal particulars of these appointment letters
are for a term of two years commencing from listing date and may be renewed
for a term of one year in accordance with our Articles of Association and the

applicable rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who are proposed for election or
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company

which is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation.

\ 201G4EBE % \ ANNUAL REPORT 2016 \ 71



E£FEBWS

Directors’ Report

o B A A P

BE_E-ANFR-Z—-HF+HA=1+—H
IEERE A TEROHM (BiEHE - HFaek
FoAt Az A~ ARARAE I B0 B 3L A 25 A
Ric7a B L AR 7880

BE-E-ARNFER-Z—-HAF+-A=+—H
1L BE > SOA T A 42 1B 4 o BN 1
T (/6045 387 4 T L b g ) ~ B O AR AR B R R0
G RIE B NR o 28 Bx k NRH155H
BTG

RBREZF-ANFT+H=Z+—HILFEE &
AR MR A0 ) A 7 ) A o] 2 S A o 42 S B
PO N~ S A o] P 6 > 2 o R B o R A 4
V] Ry ) 4 b o1 7 BT A A o A B E
Ft-A=Zt+ AR F—-HLE+_A=+—
H 1k 4F B2 > A0 0 2 S S TRUAT: o] M 465 o

B LSO i &0 MR —F — N+ A
Zt—BERCF-REL A= HIRERE
ﬁ%@%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%$ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%$iﬁﬁ
A ASF A L At 3K T

BT EFN KL RKBER

AR JE AT > A A T AU A0 R ) S R )
TR PR R BB OR B A Y B 4R
AT o] B K R R

o026 J R A B o A4 B f A

ﬁ%@ﬁ&ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂ¢ﬁ
W TE R R LR R

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and other benefits, retirement
benefit scheme contribution) paid to our Directors in aggregate for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were approximately RMBG6.7 million and
RMB13.7 million, respectively.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits, retirement benefit
scheme contribution) paid to our Group’s five highest paid individuals in
aggregate for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were approximately
RMB9.2 million and RMB15.5 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, no emoluments were paid by our Group
to any Director of the Company or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors has waived any emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are payable, for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, by our Group to or

on behalf of any of the Directors.

LOAN OR GUARANTEE FOR LOAN GRANTED TO THE
DIRECTORS

During the year, the Group had not made any loan or provided any guarantee
for any loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior management, its

controlling shareholders or their respective connected persons.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief profiles of the current Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management”of this Annual Report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the“Share Option Scheme”) adopted by
the Company on 10 December 2012, the Directors may invite participants to
take up options at a price determined by the Board provided that it shall be
at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an offer is made by the
Company to the grantee (which date must be a business day, “Offer Date”); (b)
a price being the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of a share of

the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as of the date of this Annual Report unless the Company obtains

a fresh approval from the shareholders to refresh the limit.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total number of
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue unless otherwise approved by the shareholders at a

general meeting of the Company.

The option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during the option period which may be determined and
notified by the Board of Directors to the grantee at the time of making an offer

which shall not expire later than 10 years from the grant date.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share options were granted,
exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme. There

was 8,700,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the year ended 31 December 2016 and the date of this report, the total
number of shares of the Company available for Issue under the Share Option
Scheme was 171,300,000 shares, representing 9.5% of the issued shares of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the

Listing Rules, were as follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company:

A

JBE 7 s A B BT R AR 22

HELW LA St/ RE A E JBe 3 48 WA A b

Aggregate Approximate %

number of of interest in

shares or the issued

underlying share capital

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest shares of the Company

Tk B 15k i 637,985,600 35.39%
Wong Yam Yin" Interest of a controlled corporation

F R ik A 4 637,985,600 35.39%
Wong Kam Fai® Interest of a controlled corporation

FEHHmO Z A B 637,985,600 35.39%
Wong Kam Keung, Barry" Interest of a controlled corporation

Tjie Tjin Fung®? YRR R £ 80,268,950 4.45%
Tjie Tjin Fung® Interest of a controlled corporation

Suwita Janata® Pk B AR 0 R AR 128,539,400 7.13%
Suwita Janata® Interest of a controlled corporation/

Interest of Spouse

Gunawan Kiky® YRR R A 86,118,950 4.77%
Gunawan Kiky® Interest of a controlled corporation
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Note:

(1) Shares owned by Mr. Wong Yam Yin, Ms. Hung So Ling, Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr.
Wong Kam Keung, Barry consist of 637,985,600 shares held by Golden Wheel Realty
Company Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Wong Yam Yin and his family (the
“Wong Family”). Mr. Wong Yam Yin and Ms. Hung So Ling are husband and wife.
Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry are sons of Mr. Wong Yam Yin
and Ms. Hung So Ling.

(2) Shares owned by Mr. Tjie Tjin Fung consist of 80,268,950 shares held by Chun Hung

Investments Limited, a company owned by Mr. Tjie and his family.

3) Shares owned by Mr. Suwita Janata consist of (i) 80,268,950 shares held by Golden
Era Forever Holding Company Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Suwita
Janata, and (ii) 48,270,450 shares held by Golden Joy Forever Holding Company
Limited, a company wholly owned by Ms. Julia Oscar. Mr. Suwita Janata is the

husband of Ms. Julia Oscar and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Yam Yin.

4) Shares owned by Mr. Gunawan Kiky consist of i) 80,268,950 shares held by Fire Spark
Holdings Limited, a company owned by Mr. Gunawan and his family ii) 5,850,000
shares held by Mr. Gunawan.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31
December 2016, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as of the date hereof, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of its interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO are

as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares

ST Ve %]

Name of Shareholder(s)

B
Wong Yam Yin"
EESag
Hung So Ling
F RO
Wong Kam Fai®

Emae

Wong Kam Keung, Barry®”

(1)

Suwita Janata?

Suwita Janata®

Oscar Julia®

Oscar Julia®

& HEA R A
S E

Golden Wheel Realty Company Limited
Golden Wheel Realty™

B0/ 5

Capacity/Nature of Interest

el £

Interest of a controlled corporation
P R 4

Interest of a controlled corporation
XY T e 1

Interest of a controlled corporation
X eI W AR

Interest of a controlled corporation
Rk R 4T 168 E 4
Interest of a controlled corporation/

Interest of spouse

2k R 4T 16 E 4
Interest of a controlled corporation/

Interest of spouse

A A

Beneficial owner
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Notes:

(1) Shares owned by Mr. Wong Yam Yin, Ms. Hung So Ling, Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr.
Wong Kam Keung, Barry consist of 637,985,600 shares held by Golden Wheel Realty
Company Limited, a company controlled by the Wong Family. Mr. Wong Yam Yin
and Ms. Hung So Ling are husband and wife. Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr. Wong Kam

Keung, Barry are sons of Mr. Wong Yam Yin and Ms. Hung So Ling.

2) Shares owned by Mr. Suwita Janata consist of (i) 80,268,950 shares held by Golden
Era Forever Holding Company Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Suwita
Janata, and (ii) 48,270,450 shares held by Golden Joy Forever Holding Company
Limited, a company wholly owned by Ms. Julia Oscar. Mr. Suwita Janata is the

husband of Ms. Julia Oscar and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Yam Yin.

(3) Shares owned by Ms. Julia Oscar consist of (i) 48,270,450 shares held by Golden Joy
Forever Holding Company Limited, a company wholly owned by Ms. Julia Oscar,
and (ii) 80,268,950 shares held by Golden Era Forever Holding Company Limited,
a company wholly owned by Mr. Suwita Janata. Ms. Julia Oscar is the wife of Mr.

Suwita Janata and the younger sister of Mr. Wong Yam Yin.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as of the
date hereof, no person had an interest or a short position in the shares or the
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the
SFO and no person was, directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or of any other company
which is a member of the Group, or in any options in respect of such share

capital.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as adopted on 10 December 2012 and the
redemption of debentures as stated under the section headed “PURCHASE,
SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES” of
this Annual Report, at no time during the year under review was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance (as defined under note 15.2 of Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rule) to which the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the applicable laws and regulations,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in the execution of
their duties in their offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force throughout the year. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers” liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the

Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business that competed or might compete with the businesses of the Company

and its subsidiaries.
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Directors’ Report

Refer to the non-competition deed (the “NCD”) dated 10 December 2012,
the details of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholders — Non-Competition Deed” of the prospectus issued
by the Company dated 31 December 2012. Each of the covenanters of the
NCD, being Mr. Wong Yam Yin, Mr. Wong Kam Fai, Mr. Wong Kam Keung,
Barry, Ms. Hung So Ling, Mr. Sjaifudin Aman, Mr. Tjie Tjin Fung, Mr.
Hafandi Lijaya, Mr. Lili Somantry, Mr. Jamin Haryanto, Mr. Gunawan Kiky,
Mr. Suwita Janata, Mr. Hadi Gunaman, Mr. Atjen Tanuwidjaja, Mr. Bambang
Trisna and Ms. Julia Oscar, Golden Wheel Realty Company Limited, Aman
Atlantic Holdings Limited, Chun Hung Investments Limited, Kang Fu Ming
Investment Limited, Green Paragon Investment Limited, Keita International
Limited, Fire Spark Holdings Limited, Golden Era Forever Holding Limited,
Fa Xing Limited, Tien Shan Di Hai Limited, Propitious Winds Limited
and Golden Joy Forever Holding Company Limited, declared that they
have complied with the NCD. The Board has also reviewed the relevant

undertakings and has not noticed any non-compliance incident.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance (as defined under note 15.2 of Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rule) to which the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, purchases from the Group’s single largest supplier accounted
for approximately 16.6% of the Group’s total purchases, and the percentage
of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers combined was
47.2% of the Group's total purchases. The percentage of turnover attributable
to the Group's five largest customers combined was 10.1% of the Group’s total
turnover. To the Director’s best knowledge and belief, none of the Directors
nor his connected persons and none of the shareholders possessing over 5% of
the interest in the capital of the Company possessed any interest in the above-

mentioned suppliers and customers.
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EMPLOYEES

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of approximately 500 (2015:
470) full-time employees in Hong Kong and China. The Group enters into
employment contracts with its employees to cover matters such as position,
term of employment, wage, employee benefits and liabilities for breaches and
grounds for termination. Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes
basic salaries, allowances, pensions, performance bonus, share options and
other employee benefits. Remuneration is determined with reference to the
performance, skills, qualifications, and experience of the employee concerned

and the prevailing industry practice.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total remuneration of the

employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based incentives.

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the Board

on the basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group's

operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of related party entered into
any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which should be

disclosed pursuant to the requirements of rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS” stated in note 39 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, no contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Group was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year ended 31
December 2016.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS RELATING
TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the following disclosures are included in respect of the Company’s
term loan facility, with contains covenants requiring specific performance

obligations of the Company’s holding company.
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Directors’ Report

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had a US$33 million term loan facility,
which was obtained in 2016. The loan agreement includes certain conditions
requiring the Company's controlling shareholders, Wong Family (Mr. Wong
Yam Yin, Ms. Hung So Ling, Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr. Wong Kam Keung,
Barry), to own, directly or indirectly, at least 30% of the beneficial interest of
the Company, failing which would constitute an event of default on the loan

facility.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing Rules

during the Relevant Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance policies and procedures in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations, in particular, those have a significant
impact on the Group. The Group would seek professional legal advice from
its legal advisers to ensure transactions and business to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations. During the
year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with any

relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board and management of the Company are committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. The Board firmly believes that
conducting the Group’s business in an transparent and responsible manner and
following good corporate governance practices serve its long-term interests
and those of shareholders. The Company has adopted the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

DONATION

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB69,000.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to promoting awareness and decisions that contribute
to achieving environmentally sustainable development. The Group will comply
fully with all applicable environmental laws and regulations. We will use fuel,
water and other natural resources efficiently and conservatively. We recognise
this to be a continuous process of improvement and we seek to actively look for
environmental friendly options and carry out environmental friendly practices

whenever appropriate and possible.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

Employees are remunerated equitably and competitively. Continuing training
and development opportunities are provided to equip them to deliver their
best performance and achieve corporate goals. During the reporting period, our
staffs continuously pursue training and career development through our policy
on top of mandatory training on anticorruption, safety and health awareness.
They also work within motivating remuneration and reward schemes and are
provided with a smoke-free, healthy and safe working environment. Customers’
feedback and advice could be taking into account via customer communication

channel.

The Group uses suppliers that reflect its values and commitment. The Group
has policies and procedures to select suppliers and contractors who share our
social, environmental and labour practice standards. Appropriate steps to be
taken to ensure that our partners and suppliers do not employ child labour or

abuse human rights.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company had the following important events after the end of the reporting

period:

1. Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 December 2016 entered into among
Golden Wheel International Glory Limited (“Golden Wheel Glory”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and two independent third
parties, Golden Wheel Glory will obtain 33% interests in B i 24 5 &
EARAF ([HEEE]) by capital injection at a cash consideration
of approximately RMB240,900,000. £ 8 % is a limited liability
company established in the PRC and is engaged in property development

and property leasing. This acquisition was completed in January 2017.

2. Pursuant to a sales and purchase agreement dated 3 March 2017 entered
into among Golden Wheel Jasper Limited liability Company Limited
(“Golden Wheel Jasper”), a wholly subsidiary of the Company and three
independent third parties, Golden Wheel Jasper will purchase (1) the
entire issued share capital of Double Advance Group Limited (“Double
Advance”), an independent third party; and (2) the Shareholder’s Loan,
which represents all the outstanding amounts owed by the Double
Advance to its existing parent company (“Proposed Acquisition”) for an
approximately cash consideration of HK$450,000,000. Details of the
sales and purchase are set out in an announcement dated 3 March 2017
issued by the Company. Double Advance is a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is engaged in hotel
operation business. This Proposed Acquisition has not been completed

up to the reporting date.
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Directors’ Report

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company and further discussion and
analysis of the Group's activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2016, and an indication of likely
future developments of the Group’s business, can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement, the Management Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 5 to 13, pages 14 to 35 and pages 46 to

56 of this Annual Report, respectively.

In addition, the Group's environmental, employee, customer and supplier
matters and compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company can be found in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, and the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages
36 to 56.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
EXPECTED SOURCES OF FUNDING

Save as discussed elsewhere under the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group had no future plans for

material investments as at the date of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as auditor of the Company since
listing and will retire at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Yam Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
S K M A R A R

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Golden Wheel Tiandi
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 92 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters
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Valuation of investment property
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We identified the valuation of investment property, referring
to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on page 147, as a key audit matter due to
its significant balance at 31 December 2016, combined with the
judgment and estimation associated with determining the fair

value.
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At 31 December 2016, the carrying value of investment
properties amounted to RMB5,028 million and the fair value
adjustment in respect of investment properties recorded in net

profit for the year was RMB264 million.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

WA B BB 4
Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment property

included:
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Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent valuer (the “Valuer”), and verifying the
qualifications of the Valuer. In addition, discussing the scope
of the Valuer's work with management and reviewing its
terms of engagement to determine that there are no matters
that affect its objectivity or impose scope limitations upon

the Valuer.
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Evaluating management’s judgment and estimation,
in particular the models used by management and the
significant assumptions including capitalization rate, daily
unit rent, level adjustment, estimated redevelopment plan

and estimated allowance of profit.
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The Group's investment properties comprise completed
properties and properties under development and have been
valued individually, on market value basis. The Group uses an
independent valuer to determine the fair values for all of the

investment properties held.
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The inputs with the most significant impact on these valuations
are disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements,
and include, capitalization rate, daily unit rent and level

adjustment.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters
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Comparing these data inputs to market data and entity-
specific historical information, including rental income,
comparable allowance of profit and square meter details
against appropriate supporting documentation, to assess
the accuracy, reliability and completeness thereof and the

reasonableness of management judgment and estimation.
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Performing sensitivity analysis on the significant
assumptions to evaluate the extent of impact on the fair

values and assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s

disclosures relating to these sensitivities.
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B BB (40) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
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Key audit matters
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Accuracy of land appreciation tax calculations

We identified the accuracy of land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
calculations in the PRC, referring to note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements as a key audit matter since significant
judgment is required in estimating the amount of LAT to be paid
by the Group within each of the property development projects.
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LAT amounting to RMB62,853,000, which arises in the PRC
when properties are delivered to the buyers and revenue is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2016. The LAT calculations are highly dependent on the
appropriateness of the rates used, which are determined by the
appreciation of land value. The amount of the land appreciation
is determined with reference to proceeds of the properties less the
estimated deductible expenditures, including the cost of land use
rights and all property development expenditures.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the accuracy of

management's LAT calculations included:
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J Assessing the reasonableness of the related deductible

expenditure used in the LAT calculations.
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o Engaging our tax specialists in the PRC to assess the accuracy
of the land appreciation amount calculations, and to assess
the appropriateness of the LAT rate used for each of the
property development projects by comparing it to the LAT
rate announced by the State Administration of Taxation in
the PRC.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appeats to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

U Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Lo Kin Cheong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BHE-_Z—"E+=-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

TR e S
2016 2015
W 5 ANRW T AR T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB 000
W 4 Revenue 5 940,765 229,514
B i A Cost of sales (580,770) (119,147)
EA Gross profit 359,995 110,367
HoAtbie A~ B SZ  dits K 1B Other income, expenses, gains and losses 6 (47,199) (72,589)
B8 BB X Selling and marketing expenses (39,374) (18,579)
ﬁﬂﬂﬁi Administrative expenses (117,862) (119,560)
Al & A Finance costs 7 (51,039) (65,173)
JEAL & 8 W R (1) Share of profits of joint ventures 16 82,832 11,943
REWERN T HED Changes in fair value of
investment properties 14 264,368 229,738
I 5 T 3 Profit before tax 8 451,721 76,147
BiA Taxation 10 (186,345) (63,168)
A A e Profit for the year 265,376 12,979
A 2 T WL A Other comprehensive income:
AEEHPBEREMNIEH : Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
EX XY & Gain on revaluation of properties - 22,175
AEGEH T FIEEMBARMTEB Income tax relating to items that
will not be reclassified - (5,544)
- 16,631
WREEN B EREMIEA Items that may be reclassified to
o profit or loss:
AT o B Rl AT (B 1 Fair value loss on available-for-sale
financial assets - (922)
B REE A BIHE Income tax relating to items that
HH B B 58 may be reclassified subsequently - =
- (922)
A PR Al 4 TR A Other comprehensive income for the year,

EANER TR net of income tax - 15,709
AF TRy Lt 4 T W g AR Total comprehensive income for the year 265,376 28,688
EN/NEIE DN R N Profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company 265,376 12,979
AN E A NEMG 2T U % Total comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the Company 265,376 28,688
(53 &kl EARNINGS PER SHARE
— AR (HERARKIT) — Basic (RMB per share) 11 0.147 0.007
— B (HERARK L) — Diluted (RMB per share) 11 0.147 0.007
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZZF—RF+=-H=+—H AT 31 December 2016

I B & A

ERY T
BEYE

A — R 2w 2 HE R
RaERE
EIEB IR K &

CIEE Y-8 <

3 PR SR AT A7 3K

B

B 8% fr SR
ERTHEYH

B 5 B At Wi 3KO0R
51 B 8 DA 81 65 19
M+ 4 2 AT SR
JE Wi — ] & 7 4 R IH
TR & Ho 38 (S B % B 75 B

it & E
FEHREEE
AT R
A5 MR SRAT 773K
2 PR A AT 77 3K
Be kB ESEY

i B AL

B 5 B HAb A 5OR

TR

T8 W S WOR AR % 4 I T A SRR

JEASS — ] & 4 A SRR
+ (B K BT B R R

it & AR

HRAT i 5K — —4F 1 21 )
BB —— M E

LB A E A
REEBE AR

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Interest in an associate
Interests in joint ventures
Deferred tax assets
Available-for-sale investments
Restricted bank deposits

Current assets

Properties under development for sale

Completed properties for sale

Trade and other receivables

Prepayments for leasehold land held
for development for sale

Amount due from a joint venture

Land appreciation tax and income
tax prepaid

Derivative financial assets

Held-for-trading investments

Available-for-sale investments

Structured bank deposits

Restricted bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Rental received in advance

Deposits and prepayments received from

pre-sale of properties
Amount due to a joint venture
Land appreciation tax and
income tax liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Bank borrowings — due within one year
Senior notes — due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Wt sk
NOTES

13
14
15
16
17
24
25

18
19
20

21

22
23
24
25
25
25

26

22
27
28

SNk
2016
ARMTIE
RMB’000

75,427
5,028,622
278,600
41,617
108,400

5,532,666

1,518,783
701,029
335,189

81,249
16,164

40,102

3,697
14,088
325,911
678,457
791,238

4,505,907

418,660
38,264

1,532,996

269,780

51,266
872,400
918,905

4,102,271
403,636

5,936,302
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2015
ARBTT
RMB 000

79,101
4,568,422
195,768
30,419
12,400
65,850

4,951,960

1,707,204
271,257
120,934

6,616
2,161
18,262
14,088
81,707
523,784
794,629

3,540,642

287,710
35,049

175,286
69,161

185,306

71,510
974,532
558,922

2,357,476
1,183,166

6,135,126
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
MZZ—RF+=H=+—H AT 31 December 2016

—g—-XE  —E—LF
2016 2015
Wi &E AR FL AR ¥F T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
FETH A H Non-current liabilities
it H=R Derivative financial liabilities 22 - 31,549
WATHE K — — F R B Bank borrowings — due after one year 27 175,365 402,914
AU A 4 Rental received in advance 12,700 28,594
B = Senior notes 28 682,668 866,041
i Bonds 29 176,175 228,544
R S L TH A f Deferred tax liabilities 17 959,976 888,797
2,006,884 2,446,439
&R (E Net assets 3,929,418 3,688,687
A % A A Capital and reserves
e A Share capital 30 113,099 113,099
B 4 3 1 % i Share premium and reserves 31, 32 3,816,319 3,575,588
EN/NCIE: ZEDN Ay E Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 3,929,418 3,688,687
M 45 Total equity 3,929,418 3,688,687

FERGRFNFEZH AT H AR
B 203 H M AR MBS b AR AR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 203 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2016 and are signed
on its behalf by:

TF EH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZZT—R"F+=_A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

EAE 2N 3
Attributable to owners of the Company
LUES ¥
BeA RmuE ARRIREM EARE OWRMERG  WARE  ABEE  REEA it
Properties Share  Investment
Share Share Special  revaluation options  revaluation Surplus Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

ABHTFE ABWTT ARMTT ARWFT ARWTT ARWTT ARWTFT ARWTZ ARKTL
RMBO00O  RMB000  RMBU0O — RMBO00  RMB0O0  RMBUOO — RMBO00 — RMB000  RMBUOO

(Bisn)  (Make)  (HEREs2) (FiF=E31)
(note 31) (note 14) (note 32) (note 31)
MEZ—HFE—~H—H  Atl January 2015 113,099 476,143 390,614 = 177 = 81,428 2,633,457 3,694,918
1 3 A Profit for the year = = = = = - - 12,979 12,979
AE R H At 2 T i 25 Other comprehensive income for the year = = = 16,631 = (922) - = 15,709
AF- A i ) B A THT I 45 B8 BH Profic and total comprehensive income
for the year = = - 16,631 - 922) - 12,979 28,688

S (BfsE12) Dividends (note 12) - - (35,148) - = = = = (35,148)
THERR DA Je A 55 58 i A Recognition of equity-settled

AT IR (K 3E32) share-based payments (note 32) - - - = 229 = = = 229
R _F—RF

+=H=+—8 At 31 December 2015 113,099 476,143 355,466 16,631 406 922) 81,428 2,646,436 3,688,687
A 1A 35 ) e Profit and total comprehensive income

2 T W 5 A for the year = = = = = = = 265,376 265,376
MRS (BifsE12) Dividends (note 12) - - (24,874) - - - - - (24,874)
B0 B8 T A 9 Surplus reserve appropriation - - - - - - 7,220 (7,220) -
TERR DA PR A 455 L e 1 Recognition of equity-settled

A EIE (K 5E32) share-based payments (note 32) - - - = 229 = = = 229
RF—ANE

+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2016 113,099 476,143 330,592 16,631 635 922) 88,648 2904592 3,929,418
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE-_Z—"E+=-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

REEHE

PR B A 4 A
BFLUT & T th i 5

VE NG L

BB N TFH2H
MEEMER ARATEED

FERERANFEZY
MEEMERE/AEMBKA
A i 6 B A B A
ATk R B A
FEREBRERERA

DA B A i O FBLAE B 2
g s k2 kR

fAal Sk ¥4 i
AT SR B A
il B A

HEE A 8 b SE 0 i

BEECHPHAERERE

B 8 v 5 65 1) 36

LR TR EY R D

B 5 BAABRE WA (34 n) 8
FHER UM ENHE T
AT SR

B 5 B HoA et SRR

T8 ) SE O $32 4 J  STELBE n

T Wi — R & 7 e SE SR
T & (B)) %

mams (R B
B B 580 & 1 4 (L

AEWB A (BT ) 34838

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Changes in fair value of investment properties
Changes in fair value of
derivative financial assets/liabilities
Changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments
Interest income from derivative financial assets/
liabilities
Interest income from available-for-sale
investments
Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments
Investment income from held-for-trading
investments
Equity-settled share option expenses
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on repurchase of senior notes
Interest income from banks deposits
Finance costs
Share of profits of joint ventures
Unrealized net exchange losses

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in properties under development for sale

Decrease in completed properties for sale

(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase in prepayments for leasehold land held for
development for sale

Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in deposits and prepayments received from
pre-sale of properties

Decrease in amount due from a joint venture

(Decrease) increase in rental received in advance

Cash from (used) in operations
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid

NET CASH FORM (USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
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2016
ARWFI
RMB 000

451,721

8,464
(264,368)

(6,204)
2,834
(7,741)
(909)
(624)

(817)
229

(24,141)
51,039
(82,832)
89,856

216,507
(641,856)
516,798
(214,255)

(81,249)
127,923

1,357,710
(12,679)
1,268,899

(75,376)

1,193,523

“F-
2015
ARWTT
RMB 000

76,147

10,565
(229,738)

74,911

1,037
(17,810)
(1,137)

(583)

229

254
260
(27,611)
65,173
(11,943)
22,041

(38,205)

(348,806)
57,803
12,649

79,436
174,224
247
3,358
(59,294)
(67,393)

(126,687)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_T—

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received from bank deposits

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Interest received from available-for-sale investments

Dividend income from available-for-sale investments

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Interest received from derivative financial assets/
liabilities

Payments on disposal of derivative financial
instruments

Purchases of held-for-trading investments

Investment income from held-for-trading
investments

Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading
investments

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Increase in investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits

Placement of restricted bank deposits

Withdrawal of structured bank deposits

Placement in structured bank deposits

Advances to a joint venture

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of senior notes

Payments of expense attributable to
issue of senior notes

Net proceeds from issue of bonds

Redemption of bonds

New bank borrowings raised

Payments of expense attributable to bank borrowings

Repayments of bank borrowings

Repurchase of senior notes

Repayment of principal of senior notes

Advances from a joint venture

Repayments to a joint venture

Interest paid

Dividends paid

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

Effects of exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER

\ 20164

o L

2016

ARE T

RMB 000

24,141
(96,000)
909
624

7,741

(43,428)
(861)

817
12,592
(4,875)

(151,947)
85
1,797,321
(1,886,144)
660,889
(905,093)
(16,164)

(599,393)

693,700
(11,592)
19,064
(87,168)
871,579
(1,258,446)
(561,200)
(69,161)

(195,878)
(24,874)

(623,976)
(29,846)
794,629

26,455

791,238

NE+=—A=+—H8I1-%FE For the year ended 31 December 2016

“F-
2015
ARWTT
RMB 000

27,611
(18,630)

1,137

583

28,040

17,810

(19,299)

(5,260)
(57,537)

1,794
386,127
(472,729)
458,185
(456,416)

(108,584)

641,508

(13,472)
221,324

1,132,731
(3,244)
(964,701)
(108,433)

69,161
(13,064)

(150,662)
(35,148)

776,000
540,729
250,597

3,303

794,629
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—E—RNFE+ZHA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 26 April 2012 and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) with effect from 16 January 2013. The address
of the registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111, Cayman Islands and principal place of
business of the Company is Unit A, 18th Floor, @Convoy, 169 Electric
Road, Fortress Hill, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 (the Company and its

subsidiaries collectively referred as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied for the first time in the current year the
following amendments to IFRSs.

Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment Entities Applying the Consolidation
IFRS 12 and International  Exception
Accounting Standard
(“IAS") 28

Amendments to [FRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

and IAS 38 Depreciation and amortisation
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and IAS 41

Amendments to IFRS Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosure set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+=A=1+—BI-FEE For the year ended 31 December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (Continued)

2.2 New IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

TFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

R -

AR R EN S0 SHIR
RBHEREENSYE  FFANRER
e fBET
BBMEREEARIE AR
ARuHRERRZES SRR
REE0Y
REREREEAESE  LRBARRE IS
UL LR E
RBHEREENSEE  ERRBEREE
S AL MTAR
B 7 A o
Fag R A4
RERER A 0%E REEERBEATS
AR EHER sk AELEZMINERE
S HERTE
B S R 1 A BT R %
VS —~EE=F-RE
A EENE
RREEAEEETA  BUARENR
B PR ot I 1% R E R
S ERRALRE
B PR &5 Bl 0% L EHUES
UEIES

IFRS 9

IFRS 15
Amendments'

IFRS 16

IFRIC 22

Amendments to
IFRS 2
Amendments to

IFRS 4

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to

IFRSs

Amendments to
IAS 7

Amendments to
IAS 12

Amendments to
IAS 40

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

Leases®

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2014-2016 Cycle’

Disclosure Initiative®
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses*

Transfers of Investment Property’
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HE-Z—E+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (Continued)

2.2 New IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)
- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Eftective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1

January 2018, as appropriate

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge

accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_ZT—XF+-B=+—HI-%FE For the year ended 31 December 2016

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are

described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend

income generally recognised in profit or loss.

o In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses

are recognised.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described below: (Continued)

Application of IFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
Group’s financial assets. The Group’s available-for-sales investments,
including those currently stated at cost less impairment, will either be
measured as fair value through profit or loss ot be designated as FVTOCI
(subject to fulfillment of the designation criteria). However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS9 until
the Group performs a detailed review. In addition, the expected credit
loss model may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at amortised

cost.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16, introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangement and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees,
IFRS 16 will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replace
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and

leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Coatinued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for may remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payment, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst other. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use and those classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under the IFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing

cash flows.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB598,391,000 as disclosed in note 33. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under IFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of IFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the financial effect until the directors of the Company

complete a detail review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments require the following
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)

other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted. The application
of the amendments will result in additional disclosures on the Group's
financing activities, specifically reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided on

application.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of other new and revised IFRSs in issue but not effective
will have no material effect on the Group's consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”). In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“Hong Kong CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each

reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in TAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of

Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described

as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and

its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this

results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate ot a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of IAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity

method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-Z—E+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or

joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates

and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group's activities, as described below.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position under

current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that economic benefits will flow to Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income
The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is

described in the accounting policy for leasing.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of income can be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into an operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-

line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-Z—E+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. HREEHBOR (4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
ME (%) Leasing (Continued)
&1 R T Leasehold land and buildings
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When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the

inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortized over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as land

and buildings under property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not re-translated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to
assets under construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an

adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

. exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge
certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting policies below);

and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment
in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or

loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-Z—E+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

WA RHBOR ()
B i B

AR A B % < R AR 4 B ST A B
W 245 2 A1 % MR B 5 5 T R

SERC T A 0 ) R R e 2 A o S (LS Al
S T AR B S ) S T R AR IR 4R
i FERE « LA 5 DABORAE MR - 2
SRS U E A SR AR BURT A D
T AR IR DL R S R AR Wi 2 A% AR A
A BEREE FPAH B O T AR S AR 2 4R
e

1 o 0 A ) Sl 4R 2 Al R e A 4R
A RV B 5 S By (Sl 48 4 B RS ) T ]
WSCER ) SR A Bl > T I B T AR 2 3
JA TR 1 R o

{8 5 5 A1

B 1 7 F A

1 A FAR AR R 3 ) £ R B B A A
B A T A KRR A B SRR -

R 1 F

FE I EAR A T4 S (R B4R P R By TS
SCRHARA 2 AR B BT T A JEL 0 0 B
AR T RAERR 5 B S » e R R A o Y A
7E B AR A ARSI B AR S o

SR B ERHRR A (40 T K - R Ko
&) SEMBRALATE A SFR MR A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and

that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational

basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in

the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-bashed payments to employees and other providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments

at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled

employee benefits reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options

reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-Z—E+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition

of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realized, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose business objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the

investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below), are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended

use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of assets
(other than properties under construction) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant

revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained earnings.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair values. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Leasehold land held for development into investment property,
representing leasehold land located in the PRC for development into

investment properties, is stated initially at cost.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development and leasehold land held for development into investment
properties are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the

investment properties under development.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Leasehold land held for development for sale

Leasehold land held for development for sale, representing leasehold land
located in the PRC for development for future sale in the ordinary course
of business, are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
comprises the costs of land use rights and other directly attributable
costs. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price based
on prevailing market conditions less estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. Leasehold land held for development for sale is transferred
to properties under development for sale upon commencement of

development.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale, representing leasehold land and
buildings located in the PRC under development for future sale in
the ordinary course of business, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost comprises the costs of land use rights, construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalized and other direct development
expenditure. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Properties under
development for sale are transferred to completed properties for sale

upon completion of development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-Z—R"FE+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost comprises the costs of land use rights, construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalized and other direct development
expenditure. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When a completed property for sale is transferred to property, plant
and equipment as evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the carrying amount of such property is the deemed costs at the date of
transfer.

When a completed property for sale is transferred to investment property
when there is a change of intention to hold the property to earn rentals
or/and for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course
of business, which is evidenced by the commencement of an operating
lease to another party. Any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any .

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflect current market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the assets for which the estimated of future cash flows
have not been adjusted,

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit and loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ (“FVIPL”), loans
and receivables and available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instrument, other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of

which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
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HE-Z—E+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is
either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. A financial asset
is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the

near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and
losses” line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in

note 37c.

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS
or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity

investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to changes
in foreign currency rates (see below) and interest income calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign cutrency and translated at the
spot rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period. The foreign
exchange gains and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are
determined based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial

assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amount due from a joint venture, amount due
from an associate, structured bank deposits, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would

be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-Z—R"FE+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. EREFEOR ) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
ST H (4) Financial instruments (Continued)
EHEE () Financial assets (Continued)
2B I Impairment of financial assets
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Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest ot

principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

= disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.

For an AFS investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of that investment below its costs is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivable and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent

recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss

will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to

an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue cost.

Eftective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is

recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including senior notes, borrowings, bonds, amount
due to a joint venture and trade and other payables) are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group initially measured at
fair values and, if not designated as at fair value through profit or loss,

are subsequently measured at the higher of:

(1) the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets; and

(i)  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognised in accordance with the

revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to
manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks,
including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and

Cross currency rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the

hedge relationship.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, ot in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, as well as source of estimate
uncertainty thereof, that the directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment properties and concluded
that the Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in determining the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors have determined that the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered through

sale is rebutted.

As a result, the Group has recognised the deferred taxes on changes in
fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to enterprise
income tax. The carrying amounts of deferred taxation on investment
properties at 31 December 2015 and 2016 were RMB870,666,000 and
RMB936,758,000 respectively.

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key source of estimation uncertainties at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainties (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on
the valuation report, the management has exercised their judgement
and is satisfied that the assumptions used in valuation have reflected

the current market conditions. The carrying amounts of investment

N R H5,028,622,0007C © properties at 31 December 2015 and 2016 were RMB4,568,422,000 and
RMB5,028,622,000.
1A Land appreciation tax

g T IS (R (E 2 MR 10) T3/ F
i3 AF309% 2 6000 1) 2 HER 2 0k > K4 (3R
By B W S P AS RE U T G B S (A 8
B S (RS T 5 e B S BR S o

7R S 78 S A B S (B - 5 T B
T Z T BB = B A M ELREE 1 » SR> AR4E
T oA B v R 7 5 3 i 2 0y B SR T H
T I (EBLR I ST ke R - A2 BIZR
A TR DA 3 (R S AR BB
TE o 7 42 F AR A I 4 HLS B 5 1 ) 38
AR B d el A % 8 B MR R 2
TR Z Bk BUBS 4 A R B3k 5 2 &3
SR 35 2 RN R BB S 1 2 I TR 2 B B
e

The PRC LAT (as defined in note 10) is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including sales charges, borrowing costs and all property development

expenditures.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC. The details
of implementation have been announced by local tax bureau in certain
major cities, however, the Group has not finalised its LAT calculation
and payments with local tax bureau in those cities in PRC. Accordingly,
significant judgments are required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these liabilities
based on management’s best estimates according to the understanding
of the tax rules. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+ZA=1+—BILEE For the year ended 31 December 2016

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainties (Continued)

Net realizable value of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale

Properties under development for sale and completed properties for
sale are stated at the lower of the cost and net realizable value. The net
realizable value of properties under development for sale is determined
by reference to the estimated selling price less estimated selling
expenses and estimated cost of completion, which are estimated based
on directors’ best available information and the prevailing market

conditions.

Where there is any decrease in the estimated selling price arising from
any changes to the property market conditions, the leasehold land held
for development for sale, properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale may be written down. There is no write-
down of leasehold land held for development for sale, properties under

development for sale or completed properties for sale in current year.
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5. Wi B2 I EEORH 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
WL i B B D S 2 T A TR A I M B Revenue represents the gross proceeds from sale of properties and gross
WeHH 4 A B rental income received and receivable.
] % B 5 e 5 8 I S5 885 [ 4858 700 ) e 48 IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to be
B TES (EEAERRE ([£ identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
BERBIORE D) ) EER A RA LA Group that are regularly reviewed by the executive directors, the chief
TR ) AR R A TR DA 1) 5 R operating decision maker (the “CODM"), in order to allocate resources
S Be BRI AR B - F AR PR TE to the segments and to assess their performance. No operating segments
ST AL 2 T 2 IR A A D EL B identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in
sl I ) % 0 8 o A ) 2 AL oy T SR T arriving at the reportable segments of the Group. The Group’s operating
SRAFIT and reportable segments are as follows:
FHEMRE — BBEMEEREE Property development —  Development and sale of properties
S/ EiiN-Y - VEHE(EFHLMHA Property leasing —  Property leasing (including lease of self-owned

AWER AR EY properties and sub-lease of rented properties)

*)
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HE-_ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended
31 December 2016

Segment revenue

Segment gross profit

Allocated corporate expenses
Segment results

Other income, expenses,

gains and losses
Finance costs
Unallocated corporate expenses
Share of profits of joint ventures
Changes in fair value of

investment properties

Profit before tax

5 i B % /E ZiiNCY At
Property Property

development leasing Total

ANRHETL  ARWTT  ARWETT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

794,466 146,299 940,765

254,860 105,135 359,995

(35,598) (48,254) (83,852)

219,262 56,881 276,143

(47,199)

(51,039)

(73,384)

82,832

264,368

451,721
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5. W B MR () 5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
L E Y ES W) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
5 i 7€ B %% /E i HEt
Property Property
development leasing Total
ANRWTLT ARETT AR¥TE
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000
wWE TN For the year ended
ToAZ+T—HIEFE 31 December 2015
oy il 4 Segment revenue 100,319 129,195 229,514
5 B F Segment gross profit 27,625 82,742 110,367
BB 7 B S Allocated corporate expenses (16,084) (46,277) (62,361)
I ELR Segment results 11,541 36,465 48,006
HAthl A~ B3 Other income, expenses,
Wi i K s 48 gains and losses (72,589)
Tl AR Finance costs (65,173)
A Be A v B 32 Unallocated corporate expenses (75,778)
a0 A SE I Ui A Share of profits of joint ventures 11,943
BREMENTHES Changes in fair value of
investment properties 229,738
W i i Profit before tax 76,147
bR R o FR UL AR A5 2R B AR & UL Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
B o A A 7 48 7 P B s o external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the

reporting year.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
information are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, changes in fair value
of investment properties, other income, expenses, gains and losses,
share of results of joint ventures and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM, for the purposes of resources allocation and

performance assessment.

Segment information reported to CODM of the Company for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment does not
include any assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no segment assets and

liabilities are presented.

Other segment information

Depreciation of property and equipment included in the measurement of

segment profit or loss:

ZRNE —E R
2016 2015
AR ANBRBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
4,400 3,170
4,064 7,395
8,464 10,565

No single customer of the Group contributed 10% or more to the

Group's revenue for both years.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived solely from
its operations in the PRC, and non-current assets of the Group are

substantially located in the PRC.
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6. FLABWOA ~ BA S~ Wi K i 6.

(1)  HAlA

ATAE A A

mMESMEE A K
FLE A

o ikt BE A S A

Ak i SR AR A

FEREREZHERA

P A LT 4 2 A A

BR G B (fiTa)
HAth

@ Hbless KiEHE

RN 0
ki

F R B B
AR

MESMERE RBEATE

SE)FE (HMEE22)
HE 52, s 1L A

(1) Other income

Interest income from bank deposits
Interest income from derivative
financial assets/liabilities
Interest income from AFS investments
Dividend income from AFS investments
Investment income from held-for-trading
investments
Compensation income from early termination of
leasing contract
Government grants (note a)
Others

(2) Other gains and losses

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments

Net changes in fair value of derivative financial
assets/liabilities (note 22)

Net foreign exchange losses
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2016
AT
RMB’000

24,141
7,741

909
624

817

2,596
7,420
1,593

45,841

e L
2016
ARMETIE
RMB’000

(2,834)

6,204
95,213)

(91,843)

OTHER INCOME, EXPENSES, GAINS AND LOSSES

SEHE
2015
ARBTT
RMB’'000

27,611

17,810
1,137
583

3,739

2,278

53,158

SEHE
2015
ARBTT
RMB'000

(254)

(1,037)

(74,911)
(46,391)

(122,593)
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JEB O ~ B3 ~ Wi B s 4R 6. OTHER INCOME, EXPENSES, GAINS AND LOSSES
(#) (Continued)
3)  HAbp (3) Other expenses
SERE SEHE
2016 2015
ARH T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
B Y EREZ Penalty expense incurred on late delivery of
2 A (FHEEb) properties (note b) (952) (816)
W ] (S A E AR 2 s 1R Loss on repurchase of senior notes - (260)
HoAth Others (245) (2,078)
(1,197) (3,154)
At Total (47,199) (72,589)
Bifika 5% R LA WSO £ 1B G O 16 Note a:  The amount mainly represented the unconditional subsidies received
TCIRT 2 0 7 5 D) e SE T R TS )y from the local governments where the Group entities were located for
AR A1 Bl 462 o encouragement of business development activities in the local areas.
Bakb © R%4 B A i 7E B E T RT W 2 W e Note b:  The amount represented compensation paid to customers as a result of
YRR A% 58 A 4 S 1 B B0 % P A 2 4 delivery of properties after the agreed period as specified in the sales and
1 o B4 RE IR B Wk 2 R purchase agreements. The amount was calculated in accordance with the

terms of the sales and purchase agreements.

A E R AR 7. FINANCE COSTS
SR A B Sl T2
2016 2015
ARBTE — ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
SRAT B A Interests on bank loans 57,423 50,762
18 I ZE 98 1 ) L Interests on senior notes 128,236 119,706
B FE Interests on bonds 25,558 3,150
B BEALERETEEWER  Less: Amount capitalized to properties under
e PR EWEN EH development for sale and investment
properties under development (160,178) (108,445)
51,039 65,173
N B AL S B RUA i — MRS B E A 3 Borrowing cost capitalised during the year arose on the general
A B G B 2 B AR A 2%8.09% borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of
(ZF—T47.15%) 5 E - 8.09% (2015: 7.15%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying assets.
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8. BRBL A 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
R BRI A T A EE (FEA) B A& JEA 1S Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):
ik 8
e L
2016 2015
AR T ANR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB000
RS (FEo) Directors’ remunerations (note 9) 6,717 13,682
HoAth B T A - Other staff costs:
— ¥ & R oAt AR A — Salaries and other benefits 54,799 43,216
— IR RAR A FHH 4 3R — Retirement benefit scheme contributions 8,296 7,403
B T A Total staff costs 69,812 64,301
W BEALERETEEMER  Less: Amount capitalized to properties under
BEE R EYERN S development for sale and investment
properties under development (20,485) (9,260)
49,327 55,041
BEYEHSBA Rental income in respect of investment properties (110,915) (104,651)
W EATHSRANBEWEN  Less: Direct operating expenses of investment
RSB properties that generated rental income 10,877 17,130
(100,038) (87,521)
SR AR & W E PR A Sl A Rental income from sub-lease of rented
properties (35,384) (24,544)
W o FL Y SE AR 4 B XX Less: Rental expenses of properties under
sub-lease 26,644 23,152
B AR AL 2 Y AL B S Less: Rental expenses of properties subject to
sub-lease 3,643 6,171
(5,097) 4,779
CEMERE Cost of properties sold 539,606 72,694
1 il P 4 Auditor’s remuneration 1,310 1,150
ENY V&L RN Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,464 10,565
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EHELAE
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FHw L

Tjie Tjin Fung &/
David Janata3t

HUTEF
Kiky Gunawan/t 4
Janata Suwita G /£

B FHGTEE
EREEE
YA
MEELt
A

For the year ended
31 December 2016

Executive directors

Mr. Wong Yam Yin

Mr. Wong Kam Fai (note a)
M. Wong Kam Keung Barry
M:r. Tjie Tjin Fung

M. David Janata

Non-executive directors
Mr. Kiky Gunawan

M. Janata Suwita
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NE+=A=1+—BILFEE For the year ended 31 December 2016

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors” and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Hong Kong Listing Rules and Hong Kong
CO, is as follows:

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Hui Yan Moon
M:. Wong Ying Loi
Ms. Howe Sau Man
M. Lie Tak Sen

#B

ek  MEMH® BKRER
e AR (BaEb)  wREBE At

Performance  Retirement

Salaries, related benefit

and other payments scheme
Fees benefits (note b) contributions Total
ARWT ARWTFLT ARWTLZ ARWTT ARWTL
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
282 - 278 - 560
113 2,769 66 15 2,963
113 1,692 66 15 1,886
226 - 8 - 234
188 - 6 - 194
226 - 8 - 234
188 - 6 - 194
113 - - - 113
113 - - - 113
113 - - - 113
113 - - - 113
1,788 4,461 438 30 6,717
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9. WH-RHTBARKBHME o

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

(42) EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
# B
Hek o MBEMHK  BKREMN
e A (WHakb)  whal Btk it
Performance  Retirement
Salaries, related benefit
and other payments scheme
Fees benefits (note b) contributions Total
ARWTFE ARETLZ ARWTFEZ ARWETT ARWTFE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HEZZ N4 For the year ended
+-H=t+—HILEE 31 December 2015
HiTEH Executive directors
FHEEE Mr. Wong Yam Yin 265 = 4,913 = 5,178
FHAEE (M) Mr. Wong Kam Fai (note a) 106 2,597 1,175 14 3,892
Fomt Mr. Wong Kam Keung Barry 106 1,621 1,175 14 2,916
Tjie Tjin Fung /4 M. Tjie Tjin Fung 212 = 141 = 353
David Janata3t Mr. David Janata 177 - 106 - 283
FHITEF Non-executive directors
Kiky Gunawan/t 4 Mr. Kiky Gunawan 212 - 141 - 353
Janata Suwita’G4E Mr. Janata Suwita 177 - 106 - 283
BFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
A e M. Hui Yan Moon 106 - - - 106
HHR S Mt. Wong Ying Loi 106 - - - 106
%4+ Ms. Howe Sau Man 106 - - - 106
FRAgE M. Lie Tak Sen 106 - - - 106
1,679 4,218 7,757 28 13,682
B 5E - Notes:
a) EMMEEAETN AN B RITHAE  H a) Mr. Wong Kam Fai is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
T b S R O P 4 B AR 2 B AT BN emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the
B A RS M 4 o Chief Executive.
b) FBABBAT T2 % E B0 M N LB b) The performance related payment is determined by reference to the individual
JE o performance of the directors.

bR R A T B RS 1
AR BRI SRR T - -
B 2 ST B I T 2
AR TR A 2 T
fi-

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The non-executive directors” and independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their

services as directors of the Company.
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WY BT8O B KR B4 9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

(42) EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
AN > A 4 Fom B A B A 44 The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
H(ZF R L #EH) SR two directors (2015: three directors), details of whose remuneration
SCAFENEEG =S (SR W) R are set out in the above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
FriE B (AN R ESF R mEITEAR) remaining three (2015: two) highest paid employees who are neither a
ZMEFEFWT director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:
TR NE “EF R
2016 2015
A BT ANRHT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& : Employees:
— ¥ & X oAt AR A — Salaries and other benefits 2,582 2,306
— R B4 — Performance related bonuses 1,599 1,048
— B IRAE R 5 4t 3k — Retirement benefit scheme contributions 170 95
— DA A 5 55 1By S Ak — Equity-settled share-based payments 39 39
4,390 3,488
M JE A F 2 = H AT R SR 2 e The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of
HrEEBEWT the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:
TR i
2016 2015
No. of No. of
employees employees
RIHH AT#HH
%78 21,000,000 7T HKS$nil to HK$1,000,000 1 —
1,000,001 # 7T 21,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 -
1,500,001 7T £2,000,000% TG HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 1
2,500,001 7T %3,000,000%5 7C HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 1
3 2
A I » A B A0 o) A 2 ) A o] 5 A During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
T4 e B S AT 55 - A A 5| of the Company or any of the five highest paid individuals as an
JEC T S B o L A R ) P 4 A 2 G inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
AR o £F K » A% 208 5 S S 0B AT: e P 5 loss of office. None of the directors has waived any emoluments during
the year.
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10. BiH

10. TAXATION

e e
2016 2015
AR WFor AR¥TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

RV I Current tax:
—hE AR ([REFBEBI]) - PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) 63,511 6,765
— T (E B — Land appreciation tax 62,853 3,706
126,364 10,471
EIERLIA (B EE17) Deferred tax (note 17) 59,981 52,697
186,345 63,168

FE 7S T {17 B8 TR IS B 2 T 0 G S B S T
(S B Lt 5 | ) RE ML 2 A R S
(TR > Bl M R% 5 A ) R AT A B IR
Htfh

P AR 2 0 A 7 i 2 A ORI v 2
HEAN BRI > B A B BB R R O S
VM A3 BT Hh f88 4 -

Ry B R BLE (TR BLA])
R A BT B TG 9] > A< 52 P 2 v I
Ja 2 ) A 4 BE B 6 2596

WIEEH— JULNE— A — H A ik —
F—AE—HNHEERTH (e AR
B+ s (E R ([ (E R ) B AT )
URB—ULAEFE—H L HEAERM
Ceprae N R SLAN B £ b (B T A6 1) Bt
AR (HHE [T b3 ERGG ) AE > A
— UL AE— H — H L > 7 (B o 5 el o
7 b 7 2 A 1) i A SO ZE A {0 (A
300 22602 1) B IR 44N + Hb 4 (E B -
8 R ) S 5 5 T A SR TE IR 25 T 115
o (0 F55 sl i (D R T £ 0~ 1
PHEF B B T M R E R A AR R
S B RS A (L~ A BR R
F) FEELRERE T DA % FoF IS A R ) A T ek
H) o Bk Latodnisish » 55 e B a m s o] =4
FEANI - 25 A 5 I = 08 PR R S
BRI B £ A T R B e R AR Y
20% °

No provision for taxation has been recognised for companies
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands

(“BVI") as they are not subject to any tax during both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have assessable

profit which arises in, or is derived from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) ( R N RSB b e
LR AT effective from 1 January 1994 and amended on 8 January
2012, and the Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of
the PRC on LAT effective from 27 January 1995 (collectively referred to
the “LAT Regulation”), all gains arising from the sale or transfer of real
estate in the PRC with effect from 1 January 1994 are subject to LAT
at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties less deductible
expenditures including payments made for acquisition of land use rights,
costs and expenses for the development of the land or for construction
of new buildings and supporting facilities, or the assessed value for old
buildings and structures, tax payable relating to transfer of the real
estate and other deductible items prescribed by the Ministry of Finance.
Apart from the aforementioned deductions, property developers enjoy
an additional deduction, which is equal to 20% of the payment made
for acquisition of land use rights and the costs of land development and

construction of new buildings or related facilities.
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A AR o A ZE RSBl R+ 4 (B A ST
ANEEA WFR R [+ b (G K 5 &
&) o

L BE B R S ) SRR B A i 1 S A
T

54

z —

E

10.

fon 0 ol B ¥R Bl 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+ZA=+—B 1% E For the year ended 31 December 2016

TAXATION (Continued)

During the year, the Group estimated and made provision for LAT
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon completion of the property development
projects, and the LAT determined by the tax authorities might be
different from the basis on which the provision for LAT is calculated.
The EIT and LAT liabilities are recorded in the “land appreciation tax

and income tax liabilities” of the consolidated financial statements.

The tax charge for the both years can be reconciled to the profit before

tax as follows:

ZER AR “E L
2016 2015
AR T ANR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB'000
W B 7 i A Profit before tax 451,721 76,147
15259 B9+ 18] 4 36 B 15 Bt Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25%
BLERGH R A BLE 112,930 19,037
AN AT A1 BH S B S i B Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 48,193 51,388
TR R WA 0 B S o 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (6,297) (7,852)
A B EEENBIL 2 Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures (20,708) (2,986)
i 14 (B LAT 62,853 3,706
48 (B O B S Tax effect of LAT (15,713) (926)
R A B 2 ) R 2 TV Withholding tax on undistributed profit of
AN TN B PRC subsidiaries 5,087 801
186,345 63,168
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HE-Z—R"FE+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

11.

12.

(320

AN TR NG A R B A T 1K
TR

11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable

to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

e
2016 2015
ANR¥ T ANRWT T
BRI Earnings RMB’000 RMB’000
RERH BB IR A Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted
A B A (AT earnings per share (profit for the year
WA NELEERH) attributable to owners of the Company) 265,376 12,979
SRNE SF Ak
2016 2015
T TH
Jie 4 8 H Number of shares ‘000 ‘000
RfEat BB IR A K Weighted average number of ordinary shares
25 ) Y 2 IR HE T 1) for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share 1,802,456 1,802,456

B =N R AR R M RAT
8 PO A {5 06 s S P 2 4 T £ »
SRR e el & P /N
1o RAT 5 i FBHE o [ L » A 1 47 2 2 4 M
e 2 M L AR L R -

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company's outstanding share options because the exercise
price of those options was higher than the average market price for
shares for both 2016 and 2015. Accordingly, the diluted earnings per

share was same as the basic earnings per share for both years.

JBe & 12. DIVIDENDS
=
2016 2015
ARH T ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
JRAE N RERR AN IR Z MR - Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
BE-FE—-AFEAA=TH Interim dividend for the six months ended
IEAE A 2 H 81 S ik 30 June 2016 of RMB0.0138
AR #0.013870 (= F— 4 (2015: final dividend for the year ended
HEFE—FEFT_H=1—H 31 December 2014:RMB0.0195) per share
IEEEZARBRE
A R ¥0.01957C) 24,874 35,148

REFE—RNET A=+ Esds®
HEE -FE—ANET A=+ —HIHEER
BEA WIS RN B 50,025 70 » 2R AR R
i IR T P RO A K B bt

Subsequent to 31 December 2016, a final dividend of RMB0.025 in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 per share has been proposed
by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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HE-_ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

13. 3%~ B Bt i 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
B K N
+ R H VYN LIES-T ; At
Computers
Land and Motor and office Leasehold
buildings vehicles equipment  improvements Total
AREFL  AREFLT  AREFLT  ARETFL AR BFr
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
BRA Cost
W_F—HE—H—H At 1 January 2015 97,736 8,686 4,410 14,662 125,494
NE Additions = 109 4,406 745 5,260
$§}ﬁ9§§ Eile g% % Transfer to investment
(HsEa) properties (note a) (14,582) - - - (14,582)
& Disposals (2,058) (14) (88) - (2,160)
WEE—HEFZA=+—H At 31 December 2015 81,096 8,781 8,728 15,407 114,012
NE Additions = 1,769 367 2,739 4,875
fig Disposals = (2,139) (86) - (2,225)
WEZE—=REFZA=+—H At 31 December 2016 81,096 8,411 9,009 18,146 116,662
e Depreciation
WoF—HFE—HA—H At 1 January 2015 11,663 4,105 2,413 9,220 27,401
RN Provided for the year 6,980 942 2,327 316 10,565
$§%§ ﬁ g% % Transfer to investment
(Pt 5Ea) properties (note a) (2,943) = = - (2,943)
o B IR A 2 Eliminated on disposals (104) (6) ) - (112)
RE-ZE—HET_H=1+—H At 31 December 2015 15,596 5,041 4738 9,536 34,911
RN ] Provided for the year 5,001 1,567 935 961 8,464
B R fi 8 Eliminated on disposals - (2,055) (85) = (2,140)
RoFE—ARE+_H=+—H At 31 December 2016 20,597 4,553 5,588 10,497 41,235
IR T P Carrying Value
WEE—HEFZA=+—H At 31 December 2015 65,500 3,740 3,990 5,871 79,101
N_F—ANEF_H=+—H At 31 December 2016 60,499 3,858 3,421 7,649 75,427
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13. W3- Wb Bt (40) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

ffita: BE-F—HAFET_A=+T—HILF
T 5 7% 4 [ 16 B T B 49 A R 11,639,000
T TR S R A R A e
E N G L XIS L E XY S
H A RS A B RRY
AR #22,175,00070 (AR TE A fif
Fy N R s, 544,00070) B 5 ARE £ 14 19
WEEMHHG - RE T ANET A
S BRI A ) S A
o

PRSI 1 - A LA o PR A
325 ) S S 88 7 B P S R BT e
i fe PR R AL B T b R T
8 Y EL AR 7 204F 22 3647 39 ] 79 77 LA 8 6 %

PrE o

PATR Al F 479 R s A 2~ =

Tk s -

1RE —  AFEE04FE

B & — 34

AT

MEwELEE — BHMSsE
(DABSE & 5 )

RoF—ANFE+A=+—H REEL
AR %9,753,0007C ( ~F—F4F: AR
10,119,0007% ) 1 - Hb S #F EL 4K 7 4R 47 >
AR A SR B 1 5 T SRAT B VRIS £ -

Note a:  During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group transferred certain
of its property interests held for short term leasing with carrying values
of approximately RMB11,639,000 from property, plant and equipment to
investment properties. The resulting revaluation surplus of approximately
RMB22,175,000 with the deferred tax liabilities RMBS5,544,000 relating
to such property interests as at the date of transfer had been credited to the
property revaluation reserve in equity. There is no such property interests

transfer during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The land and buildings of the Group comprising land use rights and
buildings in the PRC where the cost of land use rights cannot be
separated reliably. The land use rights is classified as a finance lease, and
the land and buildings are amortized and depreciated between 20 to 36

years using straight-line method.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation of

other property, plant and equipment:

Motor vehicles - 4or 10 years
Computers and office - 3 years
equipment
Leasehold improvements —  over the lease period or 5 years, whichever is
shorter

As at 31 December 2016, land and buildings with carrying amount of
approximately RMB9,753,000 (2015: RMB10,119,000) were pledged to

banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group.
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14. BHEWE 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BRI R
REME REE At
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
ANBH T AR¥T T ANRET T
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
RE-F—THE—H—H—-2FHE  Acl January 2015 - at fair value 3,769,500 390,000 4,159,500
NE Additions - 79,747 79,747
HPEAER LI EY % Transfer from completed properties
for sale 65,623 - 65,623
W AW RE R Transfer from property, plant and
(f5E13) equipment (note 13) 11,639 = 11,639
i 3¢ Transfer 6,524 (6,524) -
JA 18 4 T R 2 T B2 B 1 Net change in fair value recognised
in profit or loss 119,361 110,377 229,738
W B BRE B S I Net change in fair value upon transfer
i JEC A 2 T G i AR 2 from property, plant and equipment
8T (E 8 B i A recognised in other comprehensive
income 22,175 - 22,175
AZF—RAEFZA=Z+—H  At31 December 2015 3,994,822 573,600 4,568,422
NE Additions 5,932 170,368 176,300
BHEACRIGEYE Transfer from completed properties
for sale 19,532 - 19,532
Lt Transfer 226,882 (226,882) -
T8 4 AR 2 AP 5 B i AR Net change in fair value recognised
in profit or loss 238,013 26,355 264,368
BEZF—ANFEFZH=1—H  At31 December 2016 4,485,181 543,441 5,028,622

ZS S Evd<g/ESIFAS VR INT IR E
(i) A AT A A RA R ([ 35 (ERT))
TR AT B A (BT R B A7 B S A
EL Al 5 T80 S A (ELR AT - B 0 A
BEREEH  AEBN B TR
(EL LW 57 % (- W) S A (E R sk 2 75
S S A R 77 SR AR U oot -

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out at the end of the reporting by Crowe
Horwath (HK) Consulting & Valuation Limited (the “Property Valuer”),
who is a firm of independent valuer qualifications including member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The Group’s investment
properties have been valued individually, on market value basis. The
address of the Property Valuer is 9/F, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.
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14. BEWE 4) 14.

MER THREYHEN S > fHEIESEE
BTS2 IEALIR B BLA T
AR B Sy 2R 0E > I8 525 SR IN 1R
FROATE S (W) 8- B B AW
BFpfE B A s 2 B T ()
eI A R ES IR R L

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

For completed investment properties, valuation was arrived at by making
reference to the market transactions of comparable properties and on
the basis of capitalization of the rental income derived from existing
tenancies with due allowance for reversionary income potential of the
properties, where appropriate. The valuation of investment properties
under development and leasehold land held for development into
investment properties was carried at by making reference to the market

transactions of comparable properties.

TREMR -F—ARFE+ZA=t—HEZ
F-HFE+ A=t HABRRE A TER
AR A BRI S o R S A
BYIER P CRER BT A9 £ (R 1 K
AR > DR AR B 0 2 AF

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015 (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value

measurements are categorized (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to

E%H (F—2H =) MEHR -

which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

N F] L A\ B
BE R WA G PET L YN € BRI A% ST 1Y B R
Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
Investment property hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
SR B ES =% HEWEE LA Z G K REAHESRAE D WESE  ERMCERNE A PELE-
— AR A Level 3 A combination of direct B R E T ﬁfZISﬂ: W& £B525%  The higher the capitalization rate,
—CRTREME compatison approach and income (ZE—TF 5%) - the lower the fair value.
(TEEmE] method. Capitalisation rate, taking into account
Golden Wheel of the capitalisation of rental income

International Plaza

— located in Nanjing

— Completed Investment
property (“IP")

LR TR B B35
B2 BRI

Direct comparison approach which
is based on prices realized on
actual transactions

AR WEZ AR
LW AR

Income method based on
discounted cash flows with the
following key input:

(1) BEAM LR

(1) Capitalization rate
@ B A K

(2) Daily unit rent; and
(3) R T

(3) Level adjustment

potential, nature of the property,
prevailing market condition of 5.25%
(2015: 5%).

S R D ol 3 T B
AT e e B~ o7 8 IR A A ) 2% 0
B MR R RSN R -
BRI 28 HAT 05 R AR 2970
(L4 :GHEFHRARK
267C) ©

Daily unit rent, using direct market
comparables and taking into account
of time, location and individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB29/sq.m./day
(2015: RMB26/sq.m/day) for the base
level.

WS A5 T B0 A0 R S AR
A5%ETR (ZF—HF 1 45%
£75%) °

Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 45% to 75%
(2015: from 45% to 75%) on specific
levels.
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The higher the daily unit rent,
the higher the fair value.

T AP -
The higher the level adjustment,
the higher the fair value.



14. BEWE 4)

EiaE/ES

Investment property

AR M
— (LB
—ERTRENE

Zhuzhou Golden
Wheel Time Square
— located in Zhuzhou
— Completed IP

AFHEH
Fair value
hierarchy

=
Level 3
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HE-_ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)

(G YELT IN ¢
Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

BB A2 G

A combination of direct
comparison approach and
income method.

HE L Ty TR 5 B
SB 2 ERRER

Direct comparison approach which
is based on prices realized on
actual transactions

ERBBEREZ AR ¥
B ARES

Income method based on
discounted cash flows with the
following key input:

(1) EAfL R

(1) Capitalization rate
) B A K

(2) Daily unit rent; and
G) R

(3) Level adjustment

BB AR

Significant unobservable input(s)

BT RN B AN E RE T

BAM RS 25% (—F—H4E:
5%) o

Capitalisation rate, taking into account

of the capitalisation nature of the
property, prevailing market condition
of 5.25% (2015: 5%).

SR PR L g i 5y R

AT R R (4]~ for B B f 3 1R 2% A0

A E S Y TSR
e B HARF O R AR 27 e
(ZZ2—HE: GAGTIRARY

2778) °

Daily unit rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account of

time, location and individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB27/sq.m./day

(2015: RMB27/sq.m./day ) for the base

level.

W3 2% M T 9 239 2 1

H35%260% (—F—HF 13502
60% ) °

Level adjustment on individual floors of

the property range from 35% to 60%

(2015: 35% to 60%) on specific levels.

\ 201G4EBE R % \ ANNUAL REPORT 2016 \ 149

N F] L b A\ 4

LA A 4R
Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
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14. BEWE 20) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
N F] L b A\ 4
REm*E WS A g B T S A W 4 BB A B ST (B 1 B R
Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
Investment property hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
9 7 A F=0 HELBSE LA EZAR A R ER G AN B R AT EAMC AR AP E AT
=@ iﬁl&ﬁ%% Level 3 A combination of direct ERE RS 5% (ZF— R4 The higher the capitalization rate,
Golden Wheel New Metro comparison approach and 5.25%) the lower the fair value.
located in Nanjing income method. Capitalisation rate, taking into account of
— Completed IP the capitalisation nature of the property
BB TR ER 25 prevailing market condition of 5.25%
B L ERAEST (2015: 5.25%). S HARER AT o
Direct comparison approach which The higher the daily unit rent, the
is based on prices realized on B (7 H AL e LT A higher the fair value.
actual transactions AT IR~ A R 6 B

B~ W EARE RS E R B
ERMBEBEREZ /AL - £ BFHKAR6E (ZF—HEF:

A BHER FHETTRARST) «

Income method based on Daily unit rent, using direct market
discounted cash flows with the comparable and taking into account of  H I A A kg > A F{E M o
following key input: time, location and individual factors The higher the level adjustment,

such as road frontage, size of property the higher the fair value.

(1) BRI and facilities, of RMB6/sq.m./day

(1) Capitalization rate (2015: RMBS/sq.m./day)

@ ¥EHHE: R

(2) Daily unit rent; and 1) 3 4% R 0 45 7 5 4 5 1 T

() B M50%%75% (=% — 5 50%%

(3) Level adjustment 70%) °

Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 50% to 75%
(2015: 50% to 70%) on specific levels.
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BHEWE @) 14.

B YEX T N §i

Valuation technique(s)

B WS

Fair value
and key input(s)
BB LA Z 44 -

A combination of direct

Investment property

MR TR T

Other properties completed

hierarchy

£=H
Level 3
in Nanjing comparison approach and
income method.

BB TR A5 B
SB[k

Direct comparison approach which
is based on prices realized on
actual transactions

ERARMBB S WEZ WAL
TR AR S : GA(L R
Income method based on
discounted cash flows with
the following key input:
Capitalization rate

HAib b5 A e =8 R B - TR AR A
BRI EE/ES Level 3 B2 A R WA
Other properties under fre
development into IP Direct comparison approach which
is based on asking prices of
comparable properties with

location adjustments.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

N F] L b A\ 4
LA A 4R

Relationship of unobservable

BB AR

Significant unobservable input(s)

ot R G A R R
BRI RS %%5.75% (ZF— T
i SnEST5%) ©

Capitalisation rate, taking into account

inputs to fair value

EARA LR AT -
The higher the capitalization rate,
the lower the fair value.

of the capitalisation of nature of the
properties, prevailing market condition
of 5% t0 5.75% (2015: 5% t0 5.75%).

i BB R P
The higher the locations
adjustment, the higher the fair

WA B 2 B
AREAILE TS A F-5% £10%
(ZF—T4F: 109%20%)

Locations adjustment on individual value.
locations of the properties range from
-5% to 10% (2015: 10% to 20%) on
special locations

RBEMR  ALBRBEO AR
4,430,122,0007C ( =& — T 4E: N B
3,883,880,0007C ) ) 5 & H) 3£ 35 C HE 19 T 41
170 DA By AR 48 B R 432 10 255 T SR AT R 1 45
fio

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment properties
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB4,430,122,000 (2015:
RMB3,883,880,000) were pledged to banks to secure certain banking

facilities granted to the Group.
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15. FAE 2wl iR SR

3 A O M 1

ALEAEARWT

AR

Name of entity

0 3120 A A TR )

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
L
2016
A BT
RMB’000
RE S AT B ER A —JE LT Cost of investment in an associate — unlisted 3,000
Share of post — acquisition losses (3,000)
The Group's associate is as follows:
RERASEAZ
4 72 AL B % TEEEN Ak A A R R L )
Proportion of
Country of Principal place Registered ownership interest
Form of entity establishment  of operation capital held by the Group
ANRHTT “E-AE CFAF
RMB 000 2016 2015
HAAREEAR 8 B 7 10,000 30% 30%
Domestic limited PRC Nanjing, PRC

(MM AR )

Nanjing Pocui Jiudian Guanli Co., Led.
(AR AT R )
(“Nanjing Pocui”)

=

16. A48 4Rk W HE 4

A& AR IR TR A

7305 W A% i A

liability company

FHR L AR A I A

16.

Share of post-acquisition profits

Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures

“F A
2015
ARKTTE
RMB'000

3,000
(3,000)

FEE

Principal activity

RIS

Restaurant operations

In the opinion of directors, Nanjing Pocui is not a material associate to

the Group.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

e
2016
AR5
RMB’000

188,794
89,806

278,600

1 52 \ Zxd KP4 R AW \ GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED \

B
2015
ARIET T
RMB’000

188,794
6,974

195,768
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16. REBEENRELR @) 16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
R R - AR B BB RSB T Details of the Group’s joint ventures at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

At/ REMEHZ
(Y 22 EREA A E FEEEN A2 BB REE A P 2 b ) EEEH
Country of Proportion of
incorporation/ Principal place Class of Registered effective interest
Name of entity Form of entity establishment of operation shares held capital held by the Group Principal activity
A S S
000 2016 2015
HASRKRHEERARAT  BRERRELD T HEH R i g B 10,0007 60% 6% FHERE
(T48kR]) (Bt Domestic limited PRC Nanjing, PRC Registered capital RMB10,000 Property development
Nanjing Golden Wheel Coast Business liability company
Management Co., Ltd.
MAERARHEERARAR
(“Golden Wheel Coast”) (note 1)
HiEewmyARA AREA AT KRELHE E i Eaus s 50T 49% 9% BEER
(THEEWMAL) (Ki2) Limited liability ([HEBELHE]) Hong Kong Registered capital US$50 Investment holding
Powerlong Golden Wheel Coral company British Virgin Islands
Company Limited (“BVI")
EEeRMHARAR
(“Powerlong Golden Wheel Coral”)
(note 2)
Hs wERA R AR AREEAT i Eif Gali e 10,0004 72 9% d9%  EER
([HEEWAE]) (Kit2) Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong Registered capital HK$10,000 Investment holding
Powerlong Golden Wheel company
International Famous Limited
EEcRABARERAR
(“Powerlong Golden Wheel Famous”)
(note 2)
BNSREREEARAH HREREEAR  HE B Eaul s 61,0007 49% 4% FHRERE
(THEMEWEREE]) (M2  Domestic limited PRC Yangzhou, PRC Registered capital US$61,000 Property development
Yangzhou Golden Wheel Powerlong liability company

Realty Co., Led.
BMeREEEEARAR
(“Yangzhou Golden Wheel Powerlong
Realty”) (note 2)
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TRARNHELRE )

REZF-ANEF_A=+—-HFKk=%F
—hET A=t H AEESA S
i 7K 7 60% < B HEBEE < AR T - AR 4% &
BAR N R WROK R AR R —
AERESGE Ry 2 B8 it
7K 1R S5 [0 i 2 AR B A A T
SEIR] R A IR 5 — T 2907 2 — B
o Bt &K R TIA RS A S 2

HEMFE.

RAEEESE 2 T aEDE
B E — IR HE A —
W MAERETWE AL
HELA -

puslh s

5 S SRR i e SNy |
I 2 JBOR B s e 8% > IR e 1L 1
B/NELBI SRR E - AEBREIR
T IR 7 140 R S8 K

R-F—=RFEF_A=Z+—HE=F
—HEFZAZF R AERFAE
HE A S 1 49 92 IR AL > T B RE <
LB 5 5 T E < AR ) 4 WM 4 - T
HESHmAESAHNERETERERY
AR (A A (e ) -

AR £ 8 A 2 Bh k> I 4 L o A 4 P
B — il #07 SR 2> B R B2
SELS ) S 90 2 75 [ o 2 A B B T
SR B B A IR S —RT R T 2
— BRI SR 4E M T A SRS A AR
LMz aENE.

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group holds 60% of
the equity investments of Golden Wheel Coast. However, under the joint
venture agreement, Golden Wheel Coast is jointly controlled by the Group
and the other party because the relevant activity affecting its returns from
its involvement with Golden Wheel Coast requires the unanimous consent
of the Group and other party sharing the control. Therefore, Golden Wheel

Coast is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement, the joint venture
partner will contribute the land on which a commercial, office and
residential property will be built on, while the Group will be responsible

for the construction of the property.

Pursuant to the shareholder meeting minutes of Golden Wheel Coast dated
on 8 November 2016, the shareholders decided to set up a liquidation
group to close Golden Wheel Coast. Up to the end of the reporting period,

the liquidation procedure has not been completed yet.

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group holds 49% of
the equity investments of Powerlong Golden Wheel Coral, which holds
100% interests in Powerlong Golden Wheel Famous and which in turn
holds 100% equity interests in Yangzhou Golden Wheel Powerlong Realty

(collectively referred to as the “Coral Group”).

Under the joint venture agreement, the Coral Group is jointly controlled
by the Group and the other party because the relevant activity affecting its
returns from its involvement with the Coral Group requites the unanimous
consent of the Group and other party sharing the control. Therefore the

Coral Group is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.
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16.

T ICZ B B R o AR 0 R B 0 o
MR R 2 B R SE B R R BT S 23 -

B AR FERALR G IR RS A

FAREE R ABE AT
LI & JH
B e RBl&SEY

e 4
HRREXTER
A 1A i 1

A 1R 2 T Jis 1R K8

L ARAE R AL DA T R

FLE A

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Concinued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown

in the joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

Golden Wheel Coast

Current assets

Current liabilities

The above amounts of assets and

liabilities include the following:

Cash and cash equivalents

Revenue

Loss from continuing operations

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

RN S 2
2016 2015
ANRHET AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
8,534 9,179

430 430

4,530 5,176
RN —ZFLF
2016 2015

ANRH T ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(1,896) (1,251)
(1,896) (1,251)
(1,896) (1,251)

The above loss for the year include the following:

—F-AE  SR—EF
2016 2015

A BRH T ANRE T
RMB’000 RMB'000
569 270

Interest income
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16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

g e il E-3E Y

FEABMEFEIMBEERBRE 4)

WA

i) ¥
K

B0 2 0

3 B 0

L R
EFLLT 4R

e kB SRY

5 L O

i
AR R

45 3

CES Ot

A R M LA DA A0

788 T 4 8
FLE A

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(Continued)
Coral Group

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

The above amounts of assets and

liabilities include the following:

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current financial liabilities

Revenue
Profit from continuing operations

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

The above profit for the year include the following:

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest income

1 56 \ Zxd KP4 R AW \ GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED \

o L
2016
BT
RMB’000

465,871
578,494
329,155

156,562

47,739
144,000
ZERE
2016

AR T
RMB’000

307,567
169,834
169,834

169,834

e
2016

AR BT
RMB’000
395

766

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

R R
2015

AR BT
RMB 000

524,585
227,425
215,196

148,000

56,131
148,000
SF R
2015

ANBH T
RMB'000

25,904
25,904

25,904

—“E—HE
2015

AR BT
RMB 000

393

943
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16. REBEENRELR @) 16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
A BB R B B S 5 BB R R Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
Z &K R RO AR B A AR T B R carrying amount of the interest in Golden Wheel Coast and Coral Group

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

i —E—RF
2016 2015
KR i 381 45 14 K 3 351 £ 1
Golden Golden

Wheel Coast Coral Group  Wheel Coast  Coral Group
ARWFT AR¥TT ARETT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB 000

ABRCEERETFE Net assets of the joint venture 8,104 558,648 8,749 388,814
AEBREECEZ Proportion of the Group’s
P A RERE 45 L 1 ownership interest in
joint ventures 60% 49% 60% 49%

REBMREEREZ Carrying amount of the Group’s

HE 25 % 1] (8 interest in joint ventures 4,862 273,738 5,249 190,519
17. EEBH 17. DEFERRED TAX
HEINEE A MHRIERN S > & TR EBIA For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
B R A BT T - U A 1E 5w A position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.
AR AR AL B TE A5 B Y 20 - The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:
“®-E SRR
2016 2015
ARH T ANR#T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
iR A B T Deferred tax assets 41,617 30,419
0 AL B IR B Deferred tax liabilities (959,976) (888,797)
(918,359) (858,378)

\ 201G4EBE# % \ ANNUAL REPORT 2016 \ 15 7



fn o ol B SR B 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-Z—R"FE+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

17. BRI %) 17. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

i

A e M A B R 7E (08 2
AR 5ET)

P

WoE—HF—H—H At 1 January 2015
B (FEA) kR (Credit) charge to profit ot loss
Credit to other
A At 4 T i A comprehensive income
=t ¥
+-H=+—H At 31 December 2015
R (GEA) 0k (Credit) charge to profit or loss
REF— N
+=A=+—H At 31 December 2016

WA i FF/FE—H—H
BR b > BT\ AR T BRI Y ) B R I
RASH T H B ST A 2 T S BB 1 A
LR AR109 B A1 T A5 B o 76 s 5 Mt o
()BEEE S % B EBLR () o B
3t A 2 D ) i A A
R BRI RS A T —AE+
A=+—H > WEHRE T N\F—H—H
A B A R A AR E306H #ot (=%
— A AR 2738 #r) MR T Or B i Al
A4 AT o 08 E R TE A A » D R A SR 1
%5 SR N AT A 2R PR % - 37 T 4 o 4
(] 7 R 2 2 A R ] o L0 B 25 B W 9
PRAR A BE AN € 43 ]

The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and

movements thereon during the year:

B

BEME  AARDE
TMER  AFEEE BAAENHR  HEESR &t

Withholding

Changes in tax on

fair value of undistributed

investment profits of PRC
LAT properties  subsidiaries Tax losses Total
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
ARETT ARBETFT ARETT ARETLT ARKTL
22,227 (807,687) (17,330) 2,653 (800,137)
(3,898) (57,435) (801) 9,437 (52,697)
- (5,544) = = (5,544)
18,329 (870,666) (18,131) 12,090 (858,378)
9,091 (66,092) (5,087) 2,107 (59,981)
27,420 (936,758) (23,218) 14,197 (918,359)

Under the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned in year 2008 onwards and distributed to foreign investors for
companies established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong
Kong, a preferential rate of 5% will be applied where appropriate.
Other than the PRC withholding income tax provided in respect of
undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries as above, no deferred taxation
has been provided for the remaining retained profits of approximately
RMB396 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB273 million),
which was derived from the PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as
the Group has set aside such sum for non-distributable purpose, and is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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18.

19.

B HE B (4)

TR R AR A R B R BLE R A
N B %56,788,0000C (—F—H4E+ A
=+—H: AR ¥48,360,00070) AT F it 41 85
KA bk E MR E RIS A RK
14,197,0007C ( ~Z—HFE+ " A=+—H:
A B %12,090,0007C) °

A 3 s £ £ 0

RoZE—NEF A= AEEZY
GNP R - A BB R R E T
AR B ] 5 B I (2 AR B R o S
HAR > A 45 [ M 1 (40 A\ R H1,518,783,000
T(CE—RAEF+_A=Z+—H: AR%
684,959,0007C) Z # T B EE P e B W EC K
WT AT AR BB AT HRITRE
PEHEOR o BH B h A5 & 1) 36 N R 153,638,000
T(_E—hE+_A=+—H: AR¥
32,080,0007C) FUHAAN G 1A 1 Heth H 4SO
vt o et [ DENAAE 31710

B% SREELVES

RoZE—NEF A= AEEZY
EHEMN PR - TA %R TR EYE %
Ji A B ] 5 B VR (2 AR B R o #k
K AR BRI (49 A\ R ¥196,066,00000 (—
F—HFETZHA=1—H: AR¥s5,028,000
T6) 2 & TE R LB EC M T8R1T
AR AR B 2 & T SRAT B MR 1R -

17.

18.

19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—RNE+ZA=+—BILEE For the year ended 31 December 2016

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately RMB56,788,000 (31 December 2015: RMB48,360,000)
available for offset against future profits for which a deferred tax asset
of RMB14,197,000 (31 December 2015: RMB12,090,000) has been

recognised.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s inventories of properties are situated
in the PRC. All of the properties under development for sales are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. At the end of reporting
period, certain of the Group's properties under development for sale with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB1,518,783,000 (31 December
2015: RMB684,959,000) were pledged to banks to secure certain
banking facilities granted to the Group. Properties under development
for sales of RMB153,638,000 (31 December 2015: RMB32,080,000) are
expected not to be realised within twelve months from the end of the

reporting date.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s inventories of properties are situated
in the PRC. All completed properties for sales are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. At the end of reporting period, certain
of the Group’s completed properties for sale with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB196,066,000 (31 December 2015: RMBS,028,000)
were pledged to banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to the

Group.
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20. B 5 B S0 b ME ek o

B ) RE WA
HAt 1 i 3R
A R A RIEZ

AR RO i - 3 2R RO

N OV TIE TN
HoA A B A

B 5 REWGRIE £ B 5 8 B Y 2 T UE
DA K B BRCE Y R N A 4
B 2 RABZE AR B A B B W ek el
B fla— ke el A T & F gk
P IE S LS T30 H B DL L RO 0

UF 7 RASZ 92 H 1/ SR LR P H 407 (5
FERBUCA IR BR H SIARE ) 2R 0 - E4TBR
It 291 SR AR AR A 1Y) B 0 B A R Bl

T o

0230k
312 60K
612 180K
1812365k
14Dk

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Receivables from the land administration
authority in respect of the refund of
the prepayment for leasehold land

Advances to contractors

Other taxes prepaid

AL
2016
ARWETFTE
RMB’000

95,227
143,656

33,270
5,140
56,986

334,279

“E T
2015
ARWTTE
RMB'000

21,554
31,682

56,270
2,146
9,282

120,934

Trade receivables mainly comprises certain consideration for sale of
properties and rental receivable in respect of self-owned investment
properties and sub-leased properties. Consideration in respect of sale

of properties is receivable in accordance with the terms of related sale

and purchase agreements. Rental is usually received in advance, and a

credit period of 30 days, or more are granted to certain customers in a

discretions basis.

which revenue was recognised.

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days
61 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 1 year
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ZE A
2016
ANRWET
RMB 000
95,020
23
97
87

95,227

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for doubtful debts presented based on the date of delivery of properties/

date of rendering of services which approximated the respective dates on

=
2015
ANR¥ T
RMB000
20,754

79
215

506

21,554
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20.

31 to 60 days
61 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 1 year
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, included in the Group’s accounts
receivables are debtors with the following carrying amounts which
are past due for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss, as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
amounts are still considered recoverable based on historical experience
of the management. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

SERE CF R
2016 2015
ARMTLE — ARKTE
RMB’000 RMB 000

23 79

97 215

87 =

- 506

207 800

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since
the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. After reassessment,

the directors believe that no allowance is required.

PREPAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

At 31 December 2016, the amounts represent prepayments for leasehold
land held for development for sale, of which the land has not been

handed over to the Group at the end of the reporting period (2015: nil).
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22. fikLwERE M

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

RN e 8
2016 2015
AR F NEWFor
RMB’000 RMB 000
i &/ (86 /&&E (M3E)  Derivative financial (liabilities)/assets (note) (51,266) (100,898)
ST Analysed as:

TE G E Current assets - 2,161
TE) A Current liabilities (51,266) (71,510)
EI T IN=K Non-current liabilities - (31,549)
(51,266) (100,898)

B 5 Note:

REE—ZFMA > AN w BT RITF AR
W/ EUBEERMAA ([ZF—=FNAH
W) R ZFE=AFET_HA=Z+—ARZ_F—F
FHZH=T—H RIE_F =W H#M
BANREFrup B a2 48RS
Fy N R #600,000,0007C 5097,158,128.03F TG © #
WA B AN R B AR IR 5 U 4 A B R H AR
#29.98% 1%9.99% 3 1 [H & A& - M AR 45 N R 4
FEA G B R AE AR 11259 TRUE E LB - A =
F-=FEARE-ZZ—NFENA EHM, =%
— AR A IE T 2 FLE R AR R o i
IEAM =F—NENA R H > AN R HERTT
e RASHE B —F—=4F1H
WHIET 2 WA K 2 AT EEE A AR
17,101,0000C - HE R ABRE_Z—AF+_H
St —HIEEEZ RS (BEZF-L4F+2H
ZEt—HILFEZ AP EER - AR#32,471,000
JC) °

In April 2013, the Company entered into RMB/US$ cross currency rate swap contracts
(the “April 2013 Swap”) with certain banks. The notional amount of the outstanding
RMB/USS$ cross currency rate swap contracts under the April 2013 Swap as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 was RMB600,000,000 or US$97,158,128.03.
Through this arrangement, the Company is able to pay a fixed interest at 9.98%
and 9.99% per annum based on US$ notional amount and receive a fixed interest at
11.25% per annum based on RMB notional amount. The interest under the April
2013 Swap are settled on a semi-annually basis from April 2013 to April 2016.
On the termination date of 25 April 2016, the Company and the banks swapped
the currency at the agreed notional principal amount. The change in fair value of
currency rate swap contracts under the April 2013 Swap of RMB17,101,000 has been
recognised as gain for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Fair value loss for the year

ended 31 December 2015: RMB32,471,000).
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RF—ZFNH AN A B FRATE AR
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W) R _FE—-ARNE+ A=K _-F—
FHZA=Z+—H RE-F gzﬁ/\méﬁﬁv
BAANRYE /ExEEWEmNGhz aiise
B N R 285,000,000 546,638,953.59F 76 °
FEM B AN R REIRIEE TR RA S &
FI25.86% J5.90% 3 A+ [ 5 A&, » i AR 4% A R B
B EARGH AR T 369 M BUE EFE o R =
T NHBEE -E—NENA LK, %
— =N AT 2R B mEEEE— e R
KIEAMZFE—NENAHA T ILH > A2 ) LR AT
HinEm L EA SRR ER . —2—=F/\H
WIE T 2 BB A A2 A TEES AR
10,981,000C » HEHER A EE —F—A~FE+ 2
Et—HIEFEZAFEE (BE-F—X
FHZH=1—HIEFEZAFEER: AR
17,674,0007C ) ©

A ZFE—DAE A > A ] B T RATE LA
R/ ErulmEREmes ("2 L4+
A#EH]) R ZF—ANF+ZHA=+—HR_-%F
—HEF_A=Z+—H BRE_ZF-HFE+H
W A ANRW Eul BRI G2 4%
A 8 B N R 300,000,000 70 5k48,436,583.69 5
TR EHE AN ERRIER T RA R &
4 F #29.099% K 9.10% 3¢ A [ 78 A8 WAR 95 A R
W 4 AR B > R AE R R 10,89 ME L 22 IS - A
—E-RETCARE-F—LEF A LM
CE R ZAEMET 2 F B EEE—
W I A= ZF—HE+Z A+ /AH > RAF
% e ¢ LR 1T§Ci§%@&$%%ﬁ -% ﬂiJr#
'#%218780007137 EF@‘W%EEE: *ﬁ@’f‘:
H=E+—HILFEZAFHER (RE_Z—H
FrZHZ+—HIEFEEZRFHEER: AR
24,766,0007C ) °

HE-_T—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+ZA=1+—BILEE For the year ended 31 December 2016

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

In August 2013, the Company entered into RMB/US$ cross currency rate swap
contracts (the “August 2013 Swap”) with certain banks. The notional amount of
the outstanding RMB/US$ cross currency rate swap contracts under the August
2013 Swap as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 was RMB285,000,000
or US$46,638,953.59. Through this arrangement, the Company is able to pay a
fixed interest at 5.86% and 5.90% per annum based on US$ notional amount and
receive a fixed interest at 7.36% per annum based on RMB notional amount. The
interest under the August 2013 Swap are settled on a semi-annually basis from
August 2013 to August 2016. On the termination date of 19 August 2016, the
Company and the banks swapped the currency at the agreed notional principal
amount. The change in fair value of currency rate swap contracts under the August
2013 Swap of RMB10,981,000 has been recognised as fair value gain for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (Fair value loss for the year ended 31 December 2015:
RMB17,674,000).

In December 2014, the Company entered into RMB/US$ cross currency rate swap
contracts (the “December 2015 Swap”) with certain banks. The notional amount of
the outstanding RMB/US$ cross currency rate swap contracts under the December
2015 Swap as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 was RMB300,000,000
or US$48,436,583.69. Through this arrangement, the Company is able to pay a fixed
interest at 9.09% and 9.10% per annum based on US$ notional amount and receive a
fixed interest at 10.8% per annum based on RMB notional amount. The interest under
the December 2015 Swap are settled on a semi-annually basis from December 2015 to
December 2017. On the termination date of 18 December 2017, the notional amount
will be finally exchanged between the Company and banks. The change in fair value of
currency rate swap contracts under the December 2015 Swap of RMB21,878,000 has
been recognised as fair value loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Fair value loss

for the year ended 31 December 2015:RMB24,766,000).
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23. HAEHEHE

23. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

ZE-AE ZE— A
2016 2015
AR WFor AR¥TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
N PEGIEZ P BT Ss Listed securities in the PRC stated at fair value 3,697 8,262
N TPAET IR 2 B Fund in the PRC stated at fair value - 10,000
3,697 18,262
24, WM ERE 24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
e L =
2016 2015
ARWFor AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ETiES > HATAE (KsEa) Listed bonds, at fair value (note a)

— B EHAA — listed companies in Hong Kong 14,088 14,088
LA E > H A (HfFEb) Unlisted equity investment, at cost (note b) 108,400 12,400
#at Total 122,488 26,488
ST Analysed as:

E Current 14,088 14,088
E| Ul Non-current 108,400 12,400
122,488 26,488

Wista @ RAEIHAR A B SAIEA LB B
AT B R 2 B E R F— A
Et+-A=+—HAR-F-HE+ A
S H o SR 2 SR A A R A
F4.95%56.75% ° Fl BIERGLAF A

WEGED + %9 L TS o R S B — TR
SERAT L B B SR AT B A PR IR 2
TR > P R AT I A PR 7] S 32
FEBPATHRT BHERITRESHET - H
TR A5 AR A% A kLT R 2
BRI 23 1 (0 ff st o B o ot o 22 DA B EE
WA AR 5 Gt o A A Wl
HRR o AL BB A B o

Note a:

Note b:

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts represent the Group's
investments in listed bonds issued by listed companies. These bonds bear
coupon rates ranging from 4.95% to 6.75% per annum at 31 December

2016 and 31 December 2015. Interests are payable semi-annually.

The unlisted investment represents an insignificant portion of the equity
interests in J5 "] B BX SR 47 A% £ A FR A 7] Xiamen International Bank Co.,
Ltd., a licensed commercial bank established in the PRC and is principally
engaged in the banking business, retail banking and funding business.
It is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that its fair values cannot be reliably measured.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group does not intend

to dispose it in the near future.
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AR SRAT K
MoFE—ARETZA=+—H 4k
PESRAT F okt A R AR U A5 T 8RAT
BWN4H Z180H (ZF—T4E7H &
50 H ) BLAM iR 2R S 1 45 REHESRA T
TR (AT Ak ]) - AREEAHER
Wik > 45 W PESRAT A2 3HK0.35% £1.8%
(ZF—TAF03%2035% ) Z RS H
R HRKAEZE AR F29%%
4.0% (ZF— 4 22%533%) (T
FSE A GBS - 8] i P
) AE P ANRWEFHE B %% AT
FRHLER  ARAFIERTR L - IALTA
TR F-(8 358 4 5 T 10 S 268 % B s
R DL A 2 o K 2 o

2 PR SR AT Ak

HoAth 32 R 773K (HfiEa)
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25. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

D

vy

Other restricted deposits

(note a)

i R B 19
7k (HiiEb)
HLGRAT S A 19 773K

customers (note b)

(B 5EC)
AT Analysed as:
E) Current
FE T H Non-current
EX

o SERORIE R BN BT HRATHY
N B W SRAT A7 3 B M4 T S A 4 T
T TR B FR T B BRI o

Structured bank deposits

At 31 December 2016, structured bank deposits represent foreign
currency or interest rate linked structured bank deposits (“SBDs”)
placed by the Group to a number of banks for a term of 14 days
to 180 days(2015: 7 days to 50 days). Pursuant to the relevant
underlying agreements, the SBDs carry guaranteed interest rates
from 0.35% to 1.8% (2015: from 0.3% to 0.35%) and maximum
variable rates from 2.9% to 4.0% (2015: from 2.2% to 3.3%)
per annum with reference to the performance of exchange rate or
interest rate during the investment period and the principal sums
are denominated in RMB fixed and guaranteed by those banks.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
of embedded derivatives does not have material impacts on the

results and financial position of the Group.

Restricted bank deposits

Deposits pledged for guarantees granted to

Deposits pledged for bank loans (note c)

SF-nE SFA

2016 2015

AR T ANR¥T T

RMB’000 RMB'000

376,408 112,247

1,199 1,537

300,850 475,850

678,457 589,634

678,457 523,784

- 65,850

678,457 589,634

Notes:

a. The amounts represent bank deposits in RMB placed with certain

banks in the PRC and the usage of which are restricted to certain of the

Group's property development projects in the PRC.
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25. X RBERBESFEY @) 25. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)
Q) ZMREIRITER (47) (2)  Restricted bank deposits (Continued)
B 5k (4F) Notes: (Continued)
b. %5 B R SRR T SRATAE 2 A S b. The amounts represent bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as
& FBRATE T4 T 18 S R0 4 security for certain mortgage loans granted by the banks to the Group's
0 AN B W SRAT A7 3K o 32 IR A 4R customers. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon receiving
FTHE O AE SR AT UL B % 5 10 R AT 48 the building ownership certificate of the respective properties by the
LMY ENE R GRS AR banks from the customers as a pledge for security to the mortgage
4 4 B 2 A AR AR loans granted. In the opinion of the directors, the building ownership
RS R I A RE R IR Rk certificates will be granted within the next twelve months.
A R
c. %55 AR IR T R AT 2 T 4R c. The amounts represent bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as
A7 8 SR HE A AN B SR AT AR security for certain bank borrowings.
3 BRI SRAT A7 3K A 6 7 B 2 0 T The restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rates as follows:
L T
2016 2015
AR AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
A ) 2R 4 [E Range of interest rate per annum 0.3%-3.3% 0.35%-3.44%
G) BeRBE&EEY (3) Cash and cash equivalents
& MBS EY aIERATA B A Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash held
B B P B4 - DA B i T S A R by the Group, and short-term deposits placed at banks that bear
wh SR R SRAT A7 3 BT A A7 AR interest at prevailing market interest rates. All deposits are with
WA A=MWA ST an original maturity of three months or less.
Ba kB ESFEY LT O g Cash and cash equivalents denominated in currencies other than
W Ashz W EHE - the functional currencies are set out below:
ZR N “F-LF
2016 2015
AR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ST Us$ 358,382 380,917
opIw HK$ 48,040 13,711
406,422 394,628
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G) BeRBE&EEY (4)
AT BRI AR T -

A ] e o [ Range

26. ¥ 5 B I R4 3k
— T 7 - BT S M SR R
R4 2 T 5 S8 BB K160K B3
F o TS HE AT SORBRB S HTRENS 25140 F
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25. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

(3) Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

The bank balances carry interest rates as follows:

SRAE B RE

2016 2015

ARWTL ANR¥T T

RMB’000 RMB 000

of interest rate per annum 0.01%-5.00% 0.01%-5.50%

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Generally, the average granted credit period for trade payables and
retention money payable to contractors is about 60 days and 1 to 3 years

respectively. Details of the aging analysis of trade payables are presented

below:

¥ 5 A3k 0H Trade payables
RN el
2016 2015
AR #F AR #F L
RMB’000 RMB 000
02 60K 0 to 60 days 286,752 133,147
612180k 61 to 180 days 668 366
1818365k 181 to 365 days 376 1,387
TAERL k= Over 1 year 47,830 77,327
& 5 REA 2 E M %R Total trade payables 335,626 212,227

BRoFE—NEFH=1—H > BHERK
T (BEERS) %5 NR¥70,909,00000 (=
F—HA NR¥56,262,00070) » 1A #IER
15%210% °

At 31 December 2016, trade payables include retention money of
approximately RMB70,909,000 (2015: RMB56,262,000), which relates

to 5% to 10% of the contract prices.
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26. RS B ILAUMEAT K (42) 26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
At JBE A5 3K T Other payables
SF-RE SERE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRH T AR¥T T
CH g% Rental deposits received 37,847 36,936
A A1 B 1 Other taxes payable 13,836 3,817
JAE A5 1 6L Interest payable 16,435 19,463
Al JRE AT I T MR B S Other payables and accrued expenses 14,916 15,267
A 1 5T 2 T A Total other payables 83,034 75,483
27. BUTAEX 27. BANK BORROWINGS
= =
2016 2015
AR¥ T ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Secured 818,844 1,270,302
41 HE H Unsecured 228,921 107,144
1,047,765 1,377,446
R R R Carrying amount repayable based on
JRE i 752 M T (- repayment terms:
— VFE R B K — Within 1 year or on demand 872,400 974,532
— 1R 24F N — After 1 year but within 2 years 61,665 87,442
—2AERERSEN — After 2 years but within 5 years 113,700 315,472
1,047,765 1,377,446
BB AR Less: Amounts due within one year shown
— £ K 3| 49 #0H under current liabilities (872,400) (974,532)
B 5 I T B B 1R 0 B OE Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 175,365 402,914
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AGEBRATREIAE LB AR (ST 497
) FEW

SE BT K
7R SRAT I K

DA R S DASM Y 8 W o 8RAT s i3
I

E US$
iESTH HK$

FUA AR R T K I S G B B R R E TS
A EE13 - 14 > 18~ 195425 o

Fixed-rate bank borrowings

Variable-rate bank borrowings
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BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The ranges of annual effective interest rates (which are the contracted

interest rates) on the Group's bank borrowings are as follows:

ZENE R —-HAE
2016 2015
AR¥TI ARWTIC
RMB’000 RMB 000
10.08% 10.08%

1.9% - 6.18%  1.9% — 7.48%

Bank borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than RMB are

set out below:

SENE L
2016 2015
ARMTFE — ARKTTE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
33,000 258,086
586,947 308,900

Details of the assets pledged and guarantees for the secured bank

borrowings are set out in notes 13, 14, 18, 19 and 25.
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28. BEETEYE

28. SENIOR NOTES

— N —E—hF
2016 2015
ARH T ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
w—H—H As at 1 January 1,441,609 894,089
AT B 15 5K H 1 8 Net proceeds from issuing 682,108 628,036
A F B Interest for the year 128,236 119,706
FENEAT A FLE Interest paid/payable for the year (118,637) (99,900)
AF 1 [T 5 s 48 Exchange loss for the year 44,163 7,851
Jiid [E]/Ei'é'j In] {5 s ZE 42 Senior notes repurchase/redemption - (108,173)
BEA S Repayment of principal (561,200) -
wnt-HA=+—H As at 31 December 1,616,279 1,441,609
15 - Represented by:
T — A 9 3R 40 J5 A LAt A+t Interest payable within one year reclassified
FIEIE R 3 B) & 5 0 A S as current liabilities under other payables 14,706 16,646
B Senior notes 1,601,573 1,424,963
1,616,279 1,441,609
5 B A Shown as current liabilities:
— RN — Repayable within 1 year 918,905 558,922
5 5 FE B A Shown as non-current liabilities:
— VR A A S 48 A 1 72 — Repayable after 1 year but within 5 years 682,668 866,041

ﬁﬁgﬂ?\géiﬂlﬂ A H > A R (E

T2 4 HEH N B 600,000,000 19 18 50 22
3‘7%”? [EHMELEERE]) - EHEEFEUAR
Wt (B 06 i B U AS B BT o M e
PR AR R 11.25% 00 B o AR S
A E A =N AE A A H B - it
BRI B AR R 12.62%5 B - BT H
AR SR B A R RE AT A BB £ E H 1
GRS R — A A RN EEFT R R
F— 1A REFURBERBEHEIEE
SH R N R 38 ,800,00070 2 B B SE 224 -
AEEPEE F—AFETA=+—HIE
AERECREME LR BT RERS
%o

On 25 April 2013, the Company issued at par senior notes in an
aggregate principal amount of RMBG600,000,000 (the “First Senior
Notes”). The First Senior Notes are RMB denominated and listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The First Senior Notes carry interest at a
nominal rate of 11.25% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears,
and has matured on 25 April 2016. First Senior Notes carry effective
interest rate of 12.62% per annum. The purpose of the First Senior
Notes is to satisfy funding requirements for the capital expenditures
relating to new properties projects and general corporate purposes. In
2015, the Group repurchased RMB38,800,000 the First Senior Notes
out of cash from internal resources. The Group repaid the remaining
outstanding amount of the First Senior Notes during the current year
ended 31 December 2016.
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12.11% 518 » 84758 M E 48 B 7E AT
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B & TR o i B — AR A4 [E DA NP
VR A T [ 6 2 A\ R 65,000,0000T
2R B

RT—HAEF A NH > A T E 5
117K 4 #8%8100,000,00055 TC A B S 05 (156

SHEBERERE]) = ME R TR
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SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

On 17 December 2014, the Company issued at par senior notes in an
aggregate principal amount of RMB300,000,000 (the “Second Senior
Notes”). The Second Senior Notes are RMB denominated and listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Second Senior Notes carry interest
at a nominal rate of 10.80% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears, and will mature on 16 December 2017, unless earlier redeemed
or repurchased in the events as stated below. The effective interest rate
of the Second Senior Notes is 12.11%

Second Senior Notes is to satisfy funding requirements for the capital

per annum. The purpose of the

expenditures relating to new properties projects and general corporate
purposes. In 2015 the Group repurchased RMBG65,000,000 the Second

Senior Notes out of cash from internal resources.

On 8 December 2015, the Company issued at par senior notes in an
aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000 (the “Third Senior
Notes”). The Third Senior Notes are US$ denominated and listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Third Senior Notes
carry interest at a nominal rate of 9.50% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears, and will mature on 8 December 2017, unless earlier
redeemed or repurchased in the events as stated below. The effective
interest rate of the Third Senior Notes is 10.67% per annum. The
purpose of the Third Senior Notes is to refinance existing indebtedness,
and to satisfy funding requirements for the capital expenditures relating

to new properties projects and general corporate purposes.

On 13 November 2016, the Company issued at par senior notes in an
aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000 (the “Fourth Senior
Notes”). The Fourth Senior Notes are US$ denominated and listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Fourth
Senior Notes carry interest at a nominal rate of 8.25% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears, and will mature on 13 November
2019, unless earlier redeemed or repurchased in the events as stated
below. The effective interest rate of the Fourth Senior Notes is 8.90%
per annum. The purpose of the Fourth Senior Notes is to refinance
existing indebtedness, and to fund new property projects and for general

corporate purposes.
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28.

23

BEREYE #)

fif A ] (HEE A FERA (B R AR
B R AT R B 23 1) ) R AR RE B
B A T B B E 7 L T
B UM% 5 I TR R A T e
11T B B 7 S (B0 Hh i R R A A
SEAES B A7 ) R b~ 1 PR &) TS
R T BN > A2 F AR AR S5 IR A
1009 0 I > 5 I A 2 v P A T
I8 B R MR AT ALE, () S (2
1M JE F50) B B e 52 4% - BT A B e S 980
ST BT A 5 i B A I RE S B 1Y
F > AR A A S 101K B H
B> 7 mEEREE B R ) (R
MARMALE (A0A) > Bt ZA DU 23R
Jdul - S

28.

SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

All Senior Notes are subject to redemption at the option of the
Company, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100%
of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the date fixed by the Company for redemption, if
the Company, a subsidiary guarantor (i.e. subsidiary other than the
one organized under the laws of PRC) would become obliged to pay
certain additional amounts as a result of certain changes in specified tax
laws or any change in the existing official position or the stating of an
official position regarding the application or interpretation of such laws,
regulations or rulings (including a holding, judgment or order by a court
of competent jurisdiction). All Senior Notes also contain a provision for
repurchase, upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event,
the Company has to make an offer to repurchase all outstanding Senior
Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal amount plus

accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the repurchase

date.
¥ % 29. BONDS
=
2016 2015
ABRWTF T ANR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB000
w—H—H As at 1 January 231,361 -
AT BT 15 K IH 1 A Net proceeds from issuing 19,064 221,324
HERFIE Interest for the year 25,558 3,150
FEREAT A FLE Interest paid/payable for the year (26,073) -
AF 1 T 31 s 48 Exchange loss for the year 15,162 6,887
1 5 B 1] Bonds redemption (87,168) =
it —-H=+—H As at 31 December 177,904 231,361
15 - Represented by:
A — 5 9 R 40 J % LAt A+t Interest payable within one year reclassified
FIETE R I B) & A as current liabilities under other payables 1,729 2,817
i % Bonds 176,175 228,544
177,904 231,361
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29.

BONDS (Continued)

On 23 October 2015, 11 November 2015, 10 December 2015
and 18 November 2016, the Company issued at par bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$43,600,000, HK$106,400,000,
HK$135,500,000 and HK$22,200,000 respectively (the “Bonds”).
The Bonds are HK$ denominated and are unlisted. The Bonds carry
interest at a nominal rate of 10.90% per annum, 10.90% per annum,
10.90% per annum and 6.5% per annum respectively, payable quarterly
in arrears, and will mature on 22 October 2018, 10 November 2018,
9 December 2018 and 18 November 2018 unless earlier redeemed
or repurchased. The purpose of the Bonds is to refinance existing

indebtedness and to satisfy for general corporate purposes.

The Company may, at each anniversary date of the issue date of the
Bonds by serving at least three months’ prior written notice on the
bondholder, redeem the Bonds (in whole or in part), at 100% of the
principal amount together with payment of interests accrued and unpaid
up to the date of such early redemption. During the current year ended
31 December 2016, the Group exercised the early redemption option to
redeem HK$99,300,000, approximately equivalent to RMB87,168,000

of the Bonds out of cash from internal resources.

30. SHARE CAPITAL
PN/
The Company
JBe i 8 A JRE A
Number of Share
shares capital
E
Us$
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
Authorized:
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016
3,000,000,000 30,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016
1,802,456,000 18,024,560
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30. H,X'"ZIK (%) 30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
IERE_Z-AFET A=t —HIEFE There is no movement of authorized and issued capital during the year
E RO BT IR B A ) ended 31 December 2016.
AR T
RMB 000
RERE BRI K2 Shown on the consolidated statement of financial position
NZF—ANETZA=+T—HR at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015
—F-HETZA=1—H 113,099
31, i 31. RESERVES
e L Aok A Special reserve
e
2016 2015
A BT AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
R R ) Deemed distributions (a) (25,296) (25,296)
BAMEE D) © Deemed contributions (b) (c) 78,629 78,629
FHESZ R Amount arising on Reorganisation
(EF RT3 (d) (as defined below) (d) 105,936 105,936
Wi B = T AR 2 FKTE (o) Amount arising from acquisition () 393,332 395,332
1 9=Y0) Dividends (f) (224,009) (199,135)
330,592 355,466
AR Tl 45 TR DA 5 T A ) 0 - Special reserve comprises amounts arising as a tesult of the followings:
@ REF-FERZF——F HEN () In 2010 and 2011, deemed distribution of RMB12,113,000 and
RS A N R 12,113,00000 B R RMB13,183,000 respectively representing the difference between
13,183,0007C - 45 B 1K 7 2 <& i 5 3t the principal amount of the amount due from Nanjing Golden
BHEEA PR A ([ R i e 1) 30 Wheel Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Golden
YA A 4 50 BLH A0 WERR N TE 2. Wheel Real Estate”) and its fair value at initial recognition
PR 2 0 o TR P A S o A T{EL TS were charged to the special reserve. The fair value is determined
TR AT R R AR T AR (B by discounting the estimated future cash flows throughout the
B AF s A ETEEE H ) N expected life of the advance (that is, from date of advance to
At R SR BB 4 U 2 T i E expected repayment date).

1 7 4 \ 4l KP4 R AW \ GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED \



31. Gl )
YeR e ()

(b)

©

it VA S I ANE R4 08
BRELSEAH RAF ([SimE PRI ) &
HHHE A 7l A AR > A
i et S E R U e
mEERE-BE T+
A=+—H L fe o A 51 iR
£ RE S e 4 i 5 7 2V L
FI AR A A 5 T 0 2 AR G B 2 T
25 N R #11,597,0007C A B3 By AL
1) 4 £t £ PR o

R E— T NR#67,032,00002
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B B R 1o 5 B et 1AL 2 o

T By Bt A v Ay 1A A W T 22 BT b
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HBERAAEBZ BRAF - REE
—F -+ A=+ —HIEEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+ZA=+—B 1% E For the year ended 31 December 2016

RESERVES (Continued)

Special reserve (Continued)

(b)  Subsequent to the acquisition of Golden Wheel International
Corporation Limited (“Golden Wheel International Corporation”)
and its subsidiary Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate on 18 June
2012, the Group waived Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate
from repaying the amount due from Nanjing Golden Wheel Real
Estate. The difference between the amount due from Nanjing
Golden Wheel Real Estate carried at amortized cost and the
principal amount of the amount due by Nanjing Golden Wheel
Real Estate to the Group at date of waiver of RMB11,597,000 was
credited as deemed contribution to the special reserve during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

(¢)  An amount of RMB67,032,000 due to the then shareholders was
waived from repayment and was credited as deemed contribution

to special reserve in 2012.

(d)  As part of the reorganization for preparing for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Reorganization”), Golden Wheel Jade Company Limited
(“Golden Wheel Jade”) acquired 100% equity interest in Golden
Wheel International Investment Limited (“Golden Wheel
International Investment”) on 18 June 2012 through issuance
of 1,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company to the then
shareholders, and the Company became the holding company of
the Group thereafter. The amount of RMB105,936,000 credited
to special reserve during the year ended 31 December 2012
represented the difference between the nominal value of share
capital of the Company of approximately RMB64,000 and the
nominal value of the share capital of Golden Wheel International

Investment of approximately RMB106,000,000.
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31. Gl f ()

Yol (Al

© MRER-F—FNHTNHZ &R
I % L 3 % i i S b i
TH > B8\ ] %5395,332,0007T (B < ()
AR ) BB AT IR A TH {1 L 5 ) L
% LR R AR E S EERE
NVEZ A8 N = & i
ENFFA R E R e mEERA R
A ([F 33 &) 7.50% M HE B4
N 5 b B AT BRA A (T80 4
5 |) 3.75% 2 ATE) s K
(i) 2 A AR B 2 e P i 22 R
O ) P R i A o VR (2 AR T
HZ EZHOFHABZE-Z——F1+=
A =4 —H LB 2 R Rl el -

O REE_F-=F1+-A=t—H"
“E—EF A=A 2R
Et+A=Z+t—HE-F-AE+Z
H=+—HI¥E EEREEAR
#100,000,0007% + A K %63,987,0007C »
N E35,148,00070 S A R 24,874,000
TG > 3 R 2 Bl et e 2 A o

74 Bk
e AR B e A B B e B 4
AL TR A0

@)  REMZ b B A R A
Al :
R% 5 v B Y B A ) ] RS H A g
S AR 8 e It ) SR o
IR 2 132 2 B35 R AR 10 T 2 A o
045 i 1 ) — 0 7 438 2 0 B AH A4

31.

RESERVES (Continued)

Special reserve (Continued)

(e)

Pursuant to the acquisition of Golden Wheel International
Corporation and Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate on 18 June
2012, an aggregate amount of RMB395,332,000 being (i) the
difference between the nominal value of share capital issued by
the Company and the fair value of the consolidated net assets of
Golden Wheel International Corporation and Nanjing Golden
Wheel Real Estate (excluding fair value of 7.50% equity interest
in Nanjing Jade Golden Wheel Realty Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Jade
Golden Wheel”) and 3.75% equity interest in Yangzhou Golden
Wheel Real Estate Development Co., Led. (“Yangzhou Golden
Wheel Real Estate”) held by Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate);
and (ii) the difference between the consideration paid and the
carrying amount of net assets attributable to non-controlling
interests in subsidiaries being acquired from the non-controlling
shareholder, was credited to special reserve during the year ended
31 December 2012.

Dividends of RMB100,000,000, RMB63,987,000,
RMB35,148,000 and RMB24,874,000 were declared and
recognised as deduction against special reserve in the year ended
31 December 2013, 31 December 2014, 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016.

Surplus reserve

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and the

articles of association of the PRC subsidiaries:

(a)

PRC subsidiaries registered as sino-foreign joint venture:

The PRC subsidiaries may, at the discretion of board of directors
of the PRC subsidiaries, transfer a portion of their profit after
taxation reported in their statutory financial statements prepared
under the applicable PRC accounting standards to the surplus

reserve.

1 7 6 \ 4l KP4 R AW \ GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED \



31

32.

it (49)
BeRftt (2)

(b) 75 5P P e B A 2 1 1A PR A
A 2 ] i 2
%56 v I I 2 ) ZR 1 HCAR SRR o
I 1 ) A S 1125 B S R R O BT
SR BRBUAR Ui B D 1098 8 2 4
BTk

Ak 2 5 2 o . 22 A D R I A W
& A 1509 » 7] £ 11 1) 28 B gt

5L A 4 D R0 e 1 A 5 A o 4K
B AN RERAMMER > BB 2 m) T % L
IR B FCAS T T L L 5 R o i
FBEAS o SR > 7E M I A 0 ) 5
W T A > (R G O S5 BR A 15
R H R B A K259 -

Yk JB¢ R it

R0 —F— "+ "+ B2 AR E
S e (TR RERTE)) > AR R A
O Y BCHAT: ] 2 ) s 2 ) A e
5 BTSSR TE R ST TR A (4
i AT EHE) A 2 ) 2 R 1 R
E A B0 A4 LB B R AT A AL
([2HL% |) 5 TR - LI A O A
fE1oovs LAY AU FRIE A 2 e fr > £ H
(KR B8 2 B o WA RERT & h — % — 4
T A+ Bl AR A R

fon 0 Wl B ¥R Bl 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—X"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

31.

32.

RESERVES (Continued)

Surplus reserve (Continued)

(b)  PRC subsidiaries registered as wholly-foreign invested
enterprise or domestic limited liability company:

The PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10% of
their profit after taxation reported in their statutory financial
statements prepared under the applicable PRC accounting

standards to the surplus reserve.

The appropriation to surplus reserve may cease if the balance of the
surplus reserve has reached 50% of the relevant PRC subsidiaries’

registered capital.

The surplus reserve can be used to make up losses or for conversion into
capital. The PRC subsidiaries may, upon the approval by a resolution of
the owners, convert their surplus reserves into capital in proportion to
their then existing capital contribution. However, when converting the
PRC subsidiaries’ surplus reserve into capital, the balance of such reserve
remaining unconverted must not be less than 25% of their registered

capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme approved on 10
December 2012 (the “Share Option Schemes”), the Company has the
right to grant options to any executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive directors or any employees (whether full-time or
part-time) of the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies or any other person whom the directors of the Company
considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed or will contribute
to the Group (“Participants”) to subscribe for shares in the Company
for a consideration of HK$1.00 for each lot of share options granted
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to Participants. The
Share Option Schemes will remain effective for a period of ten years

commencing from 10 December 2012.
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32.

U DB M it ()

FEREEA AR B SERAEE VLT HRIR
FEHER 3 T R A32 2 B AR M ) 17 4
A5 HR A 2 R AT o] 15 2 L B AT R
10% © £ R BA N T R S e UEF VLT »
T feT— 47 PRy B 48 K m] R 1o A fe 18 A\ 42
PRI T 2 8847 Bt T3 AT 2 I
H o R15 8 A 7 AT T Ry 2 2 AT
B2 19 o 4% T E BRSO v R T S H
AR A B e AR0.19 35 B (E R s s o 2
I SRR I ZE B A5 A A ) PR R S St of o

FEEmAL R EREE > WAER TR
R A R AR ) H A A
A AR R i Wi 8 5 R
F IR T8 3 > A2 ) 2 PO TE 7 s
S F AR ik 2 SN AE 5 R diiy A
O F A B T {E

AR5 i PR R 452 L) W PO RE 2 B A R A
N o AR LU 77 24T (ol H AR -

LA SRR 2 B e 3 b

Maximum percentage of options exercisable
2596 B HE

25% of the options

HIh25 % MBI

Additional 25% of the options

HIN25% Jk R

Additional 25% of the options
BN 259% B I HE

Additional 25% of the options

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Schemes is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Company'’s shareholders.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the ordinary
shares of the Company as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the ordinary shares of the Company as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of ordinary

shares of the Company.

All holders of options granted under the Share Option Schemes may only

exercise their options in the following manner:

it 190

Vesting period

il B — 4

Upon the first anniversary of the date of grant
i B A

Upon the second anniversary of the date of grant

i H =84

Upon the third anniversary of the date of grant
i F YA AR

Upon the fourth anniversary of the date of grant
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Unless otherwise determined by the directors of the Company and
specified in the offer letter to be given to the Participant at the time
of the offer of the option, there is neither any performance target that
needs to be achieved by the grantee before an option can be exercised
(the “Performance Target”) nor any minimum period for which an option

must be held before the option can be exercised.

On 23 July 2014, the Company granted 8,700,000 share options (the
“2014 Options”) to certain key management personnel and employees
with certain Performance Target determined by the directors of the

Company as follows:

o If the audited net profit of the fiscal year immediately preceding
to the period when the tranche of the 2014 Options become
“Vested Tranche”) is RMB200 million or more, the

portion of the Vested Tranche will be completely exercisable.

vested (the

o If the audited net profit of the fiscal year immediately preceding
to the period when the Vested Tranche is more than zero but less
than RMB200 million, the portion of the Vested Tranche will be
not exercisable, and will be automatically deferred to the next year
of vesting period and so forth until the audited net profit meets
the required RMB200 million.

o If the audited net profit of the fiscal year immediately preceding
to the period when the Vested Tranche is negative (i.e. audited
net loss), the portion of the Vested Tranche will be cancelled

immediately.
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32.

U DB M it ()

TERBBALNABE T AE+_H
=t—HIEFERBRE-Z—HFETA
=t —HIEFERE R B 2 =%
— U R R 2 S )

SN E i frfid

Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period

FEEMAL 23.7.2014 23.7.2015-22.7.2024
Key management

E& 23.7.2014 23.7.2015-22.7.2024
Employees

AR FAT

Exercisable at the end of the year

RoF—ANEF A=+ —HE - F—H
FAZA=1—H o BIEREE R C 8
T i RAT 0 B I HEE BT 0 B 2 I 84 4%
8,700,000 » 1 A A Al A % H B 847 e fr 4
#110.48% °

REE-Z—-ANF+_A=1+"HE_-F
—THFET A=+ — B IRAERE A w) i
TR ISR B 1~ A7 (8 S B B A A

TR VA R R A TE T R H
PR CHC 45 M 50 — &7 78 B i 1 v 1
A o AR T S HEE 0% A A 5 0 R AE 432 1
F RS 1A B S 0 doc A T 5 i LA R
T o 4 H R R HE 1) £ 5 AT (E 4
{E752,032,0009 70 (741 AR #1,603,000
) REE_F—ANET_A=+—HIE
AR > ARG RIRRAR N W45 2 I PR e
Je A8 B S A R #5229,0000C (= F— 4 A
R #229,0007C)

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
The following tables disclosed movements of the 2014 Options granted
under the Share Option Schemes during the year ended 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015:
REZ—AE RZF-A
—A—Hk FZAZ—HR
e S TS “Bhif
iR A=
Tofiit WAL ERREA LR LTS AT
Outstanding as at
Exercise  Outstanding as at Grant during Exercised Forfeited 31.12.2016 &
price  1.1.2016&1.1.2015 the year during the year during the year 31.12.2015
HKS$1.00% 7T 2,800,000 = = = 2,800,000
HKS$1.007 ¢ 5,900,000 = = = 5,900,000
8,700,000 - - - 8,700,000
8,700,000

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the number of shares
in respect of which options under the Share Option Schemes had been
granted and remained outstanding was 8,700,000, representing 0.48%

of the total shares of the Company in issue at that date.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, no
share options were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under

the Share Option Schemes.

The fair value of the 2014 Options was determined at the date of
grant using, among others, the Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing
Model based on the respective vesting period of the share options in
accordance with the variables and assumptions based on the directors’
best estimate upon the grant date. The total estimated fair value of the
share options granted on the grant date was HK$2,032,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,603,000). During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Company recognised share option expenses of RMB229,000
(2015: RMB229,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.
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BEREURSE 33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
AR AR Ry AR AL The Group as lessee
=
2016 2015
A RWTF T AR ¥ T
RMB’000 RMB 000
FRNREHERTEMZ Minimum lease payments paid under
AR AR & 15 3K operating leases in the year 28,455 27,789

TR 5 1 7 S ARG A A R A R
T B B A9 A S S AR 5 5 FoR o
T

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating lease

which fall due as follows:

SR CELk

2016 2015

AR FFIL ANR¥T T

RMB’000 RMB'000

—4ER Within one year 41,400 35,017
B_FREAT (BHEERWE) In the second to the fifth years inclusive 215,307 192,795
AR After the fifth years 341,684 352,335
598,391 580,147

AT EAT R AR BT B A 952
R o FH B AE P 7 7 2 104F 154 o

The operating lease payments represent fixed rentals payable by the
Group for retail spaces. The lease is negotiated for terms of 10 and 15

years.
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33. BBREARE @) 33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)
AR AR R AL The Group as lessor
NS R > AR B B AL S T4 AR R At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with
LB ST I tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:
ZEF A Bt S
2016 2015
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
—4EN Within one year 101,049 102,269
FOERHE (HEEREME) In the second to the fifth years inclusive 233,355 258,560
R After the fifth years 25,724 53,853
360,128 414,682
AEERELEHE B HREYELHEY The Group leases out investment properties and rented properties,
% (BIZEMIE) - ey AP K being retail outlets, under operating leases. All the properties held have
A1 & 154 - committed tenants from 1 to 15 years.
Bk bt B AAE B o kA » A B2 B B A Other than the abovementioned minimum lease payments, the Group
Fal i AHESA Kb e AHE also entered into contingent lease contracts with certain tenants,
SRR P AR B S B R & T I which stipulate monthly lease payments to be calculated in accordance
At BE_E-ANFET A=t —HILE with certain ratios on the tenants’ net annual sales. Contingent rents
JE 5 R A e RR I SRR & A 2 N R recognised in income during the year ended 31 December 2016 was
139,0007C ( —F—F4F : AR #848,0007C) ° approximately RMB139,000 (2015: RMB848,000).
34. JAbR A 34. OTHER COMMITMENTS
e
2016 2015
AR AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000

A S HEOT T AERR S A Commitments contracted for but not provided

S 55 R A0 PR R4S in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of:
—ER AR EYE — Construction of properties under
development for sale 536,864 521,603
—REE AR ZBE — Investment in an associate 240,900 -
—FEEBHEE DAL O FHL B Tt — Leasehold land held for development
for sale 81,237 =

859,001 521,603
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35.

36.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Mortgage loan guarantees provided

by the Group to banks in favor of

TR N ZE— A
2016 2015
AREFIT NR BT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
1,101,024 296,329

These guarantees will be released upon receiving the building ownership
certificate of the respective properties by the banks from the customers
as a pledge for security to the mortgage loans granted. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the fair values of these financial guarantee
contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and the
directors of the Company consider that the possibility of default by the
purchases of the Group's properties is remote, accordingly, no value has
been recognised at the inception of the guarantee contracts and as at 31

December 2015 and 31 December 2016.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to shareholders through
the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes the
borrowings, senior notes and bonds as disclosed in notes 27, 28 and 29, net of
structured bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained

earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of

existing debt.
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37. WA 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
37a. SR T H A8

37a. Categories of financial instruments

BN e
2016 2015
AR WFor AR BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEE Financial assets

A % M e 2K IR Loans and receivables 2,084,833 1,575,476
At ERE AFS investments 122,488 26,488
FEEERE Held-for-trading investments 3,697 18,262
itk 4 Mg E Derivative financial assets - 2,161
2,211,018 1,622,387

B Financial liabilities
RiNackd =L Derivative financial liabilities 51,266 103,059
G 1A Amortized cost 3,230,337 3,384,007
3,281,603 3,487,066

37b. 4l B A B R R BOOR

37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

AEENEESM T RAEE S EH
Tl REWGHIE ~ B 5 B HLAMRE A 30H -~ 1
W,/ TEA G A SRR - AT
B/ A RE R i B
B RATHE R BERE B KW
PEERATAE > 2 BRI SRAT Ak D S B
ERBEEEY - ZF S TR
T AR REBAY o 38 %

B 6 4 T EL A R 0 L B B A Tl 4
JEL gy (B R~ A R L) £
Wi B B S A B a0 e ARG % %
JE B ) BBOSREHROR 3« A 38R R
B 2 % 26 e DAt i A S PR B
T

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, amounts due from/to joint
ventures, derivative financial assets/liabilities, held for trading
investments, AFS investments, bank borrowings, senior notes,
bonds, structured bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents. Details of these financial instruments are

disclosed in respective notes.

The risk associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.
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ST H ) 37.
37b. 4 il B A PR AR X BUK (48)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

A I B
A IR > £ W O R AL
TER) FEACIEREE I B > T 2 20
’*E‘ﬁﬁ%‘?‘%}\%%oﬁﬁﬁ AL T
ELBEFEY) L ERE R
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(Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The primary economic environment which most of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company operate is in the PRC and their
functional currency is RMB. However, certain cash and cash
equivalents, AFS investments, bank borrowings, senior notes
and bonds are denominated in United States Dollars (“US$”) and
Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”), which are currencies other than the

functional currency of the relevant group entities and expose the

Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end

of the reporting period are as follows:

TR N A
2016 2015
AR T ANRBFir
RMB’000 RMB 000
%E Assets

ESH US$ 358,382 380,917
W HK$ 48,040 13,711
406,422 394,628

AT Liabilities
EH US$ 1,611,801 894,965
ESTH HK$ 701,199 537,444
2,313,000 1,432,409

BrARERT L2 5T ARE £
BB B 4 L oA 42 I DA S Tt
EL A SRAT fi R T B 2 S BEE JL P 41 >
AR B ) i SN BB © SR -
Y AL 4 R e A 6 B
SRR NI

Except for certain RMB/US$ cross currency rate swaps the Group
entered in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk of the
Group’s US$ denominated bank borrowings exposed, the Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in place.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
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(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% change
in RMB against US$ and HK$. 5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of year for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A negative number below indicates a decrease in post-tax profit
for the year where the relevant foreign currencies strengthen 5%
(2015: 5%) against RMB. For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of the
relevant foreign currencies against RMB, there would be an equal

and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

ZR N —E—HAE
2016 2015

AR FL NRWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
(62,688) (25,977)
(32,658) (26,187)
(95,346) (52,164)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year

end exposure does not represent the exposure during the year.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed rate restricted bank deposits, bank borrowings, senior notes
and bonds. Currently, the Group does not have a specific policy to
manage its interest rate risk, but will closely monitor the interest
rate risk exposure in the future. The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable rate bank borrowings,

structured bank deposits and bank balances.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable rate restricted bank deposits,
bank balances and variable rate bank borrowings. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 10 basis point increase or decrease in interest rate on variable
rate restricted bank deposits and bank balances and a 50 basis
point increase or decrease in interest rate on variable rate bank
borrowings are used which represent management’s assessment of

the reasonably possible changes in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2015: 10 basis points)
higher/lower for variable rate restricted bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents with all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2016 would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB1,272,000 and RMB1,204,000.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points)
higher/lower for variable rate bank borrowings with all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 would decrease/increase
by approximately RMB2,327,000 and RMB1,266,000.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
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(Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and

financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

(a)  the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position; and

(b)  the amounts of contingent liabilities in relation to financial

guarantees issued by the Group as disclosed in note 35.

After obtaining a minimum of 25% to 50% (2015: 25% to 50%)
down payment from its customers for property sale business, the
Group would usually provide guarantees to banks in connection
with its customers’ mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the
properties, for the period before property certificates are issued to
the relevant customers. If a customer defaults on the payment of
his mortgage during the term of guarantee, the bank may demand
the Group to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and any
accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to forfeit the customer’s deposit and re-sell the property to
recover any amounts payable by the Group to the bank. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
respect of trade receivable in respect of the rental income, with
exposure spread over a large number of customers in the PRC. In
order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group
continuously monitors the level of exposure by frequent review of
the credit evaluation of the financial condition and credit quality
of its customers to ensure that follow-up actions and/or corrective
actions are taken promptly to lower the risk exposure or to recover

overdue balances.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
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(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of bank
balances, structured bank deposits and restricted bank deposits.
At 31 December 2016, approximately 61% (2015: 69%) of the
total bank balances, structured bank deposits and restricted
bank deposits were deposited at 3 (2015: 4) banks, representing
deposits at each bank with a balance exceeding 10% of total bank
balances, structured bank deposits and restricted bank deposits.
The credit risk of these liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are state-owned banks located in the PRC or banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for short-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by

continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows.

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they full due for the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period after
taking into consideration internal generated funds from operating
activities, including proceeds from sales and pre-sales of properties

and rental income, and the unutilised banking facilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are for floating rate
instruments, the undiscounted amount is derived based on interest

rate outstanding at the end of each reporting period.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

R BB
Undiscounted cash flows

MY REkESR  AMANE  —EUEE REBBSE

HBME ARAMA  BEAR—-F  AREE REEW R T e
Weighted Over six Over one

average  Ondemand  months but year but Total
effective  or less than less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate six months one year five years cash flow amount
ARBTT ARWTE ARWTT ARFTT ARKTZT
% RMB000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
- 404,824 - - 404,824 404,824
4.19 835,454 62,247 186,192 1,083,893 1,047,765
8.88 72,150 969,200 808,161 1,849,511 1,601,573
10.90 8,931 8,931 189,743 207,605 176,175
- 1,101,024 - - 1,101,024 -
2,422,383 1,040,378 1,184,096 4,646,857 3,230,337
= 283,893 = = 283,893 283,893
- 69,161 - - 69,161 69,161
419 878,914 164,148 437,718 1,480,780 1,377,446
10.52 636,302 43,535 971,429 1,651,266 1,424,963
10.90 13,036 13,036 265,264 291,336 228,544
- 296,329 = - 296,329 =
2,177,635 220,719 1,674,411 4,072,765 3,384,007

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included

in the “on demand or less than six months”

time band in the

above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate

3 P B ()

N At 31 December 2016

+ H EJr A
B 5 B LA e 1 3R Trade and other payables
AR Bank borrowings
BRER Senior notes
% Bonds
IR A4 Financial guarantee contracts
i S At 31 December 2015
+=A=+—H
B 5 B A 30 Trade and other payables
AT —RAEAEHIE  Amount due to a joint venture
@Eﬁ{a K Bank borrowings
R Senior notes

ﬁ#’ Bonds
BB IR 4 Financial guarantee contracts
WS A SR A R A AT R U
LEkFE A ﬁ*ﬁﬂF EI’J H"’E?EETE
AR R B =% /\Ei‘ FJ
=B RSB RN
F5 N R H538,056,0007C ( 4$—£$ :
AR H731,879,00070) © #E5t KA 4 ]

AR » B F RS > SRAT AR TR
A7 o L 95 0 R U 2 o B AT
{5 RZAESRAT I ORI Bk s T
B R A R R AR AR A 1R
i o Y > ¢%&$U&Ei{ﬁﬁ%fﬁﬂ%
iy N H551,613,00000 ( —ZF—HAF
N B #768,206,0007C)

principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
RMB538,056,000 (2015: RMB731,879,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid within two years after
the end of the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
RMB551,613,000 (2015: RMB768,206,000).
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

37c.

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The total undiscounted cash flows of financial guarantee contracts
disclosed above was the maximum amount the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount was claimed by the counterparties to the
guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the

counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of

interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of Financial Instruments

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined as follows:

(a)  the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

(b)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial

liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow

analysis.
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37. 2WTH ) 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
37¢. &M TRZ A PEF& (4) 37c. Fair value measurements of Financial Instruments
(Continued)
LA P 7 i AR SE & R Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that
AR FE are measured at fair value
AL T E g AR R Some of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are measured at
REENTAEF & o T RAB A B o fair value at the end of reporting period. The following table gives
EE 2 B R B A TAE (R information about how the fair values of these financial assets are
fir FA AR AL B A %) (&R > determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs
ARG AF(E 5 i 0 i A B i v 38 used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
BRER DA EETEZ A T EHER fair value measurements are categorized (levels 1 to 3) based on
K (1235 - the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.
SREE TROAT H AT AFEER R YELT TN ¢
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
e SE-RETZAZTR
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
P B A d A (a7 i3 B (R RS R SRSB4 o AR B T2 T AR B SN B RE 3R (R
= AR W51,266,00078 — NR#2,161,0007% BB T ) BT 4 E R
A R E FfES) il F SOBOR TR 7 {7 LR B9 L R B
— NE103,059,0007E
Cross currency rate swaps Liabilities (not designated Assets (not designated for hedging) Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated
for hedging) - RMB2,161,000 based on forward currency exchange rates (from
- RMB51,266,000 Liabilities (not designated for hedging) observable forward exchange rates at the end of the
- RMB103,059,000 reporting period) and contracted currency exchange

rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of

various counterparties.

FHER R LT A RH3,697,00078 AR #18,262,00078 B T R I 5o 4 R A
A %
Held-for-trading investments RMB3,697,000 RMB18,262,000 Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets

representing listed equity

securities

A E R L N BH14,088,0007 AR H14,088,00070 F—% T35 B 135 o B 4R
i 4
AFS investments representing RMB14,088,000 RMB14,088,000 Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets

listed debt securities

AR B ORI S — R There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the current and
A2 T A A RS prior years.
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37. &WTH (@) 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
37¢. &M TRZ A PEF& (4) 37c. Fair value measurements of Financial Instruments
(Continued)

WA T L AT (7 (A Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that
EE LA ) 19 K 2E B 5 il 1 3 e are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair
EA P value disclosures are required)

PR R E AN A R E R Sl Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the
B A RS A MBREARZ SHE Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
7 S M 2 R T (B B P (E AR and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair values:

REB=AFEFZAZ+—H REZF-HEFZA=+—H

As at 31 December 2016 As at 31 December 2015
=Lt B
e T i A FE R (E AFE
Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of
liability liability
component Fair value component Fair value
ARETFLE ARWTZ ARETT ARKTZ
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
E NN Financial liabilities
P 5E % (B R EAT AR Senior notes (including
interest payable) 1,616,279 1,588,537 1,441,609 1,435,309
1 BB — AR B RAE 1 level 1: based on quoted price.
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38.
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SRR B AR e R A i P
A B R B sar — TR AT R
([amEEatE ) - sHElNEE ALY E
T B > A7 BUR 3 RE AERII 24 o
g LR e S e SbAnE A e
HpiiE 8 —2-

R BRI 2 ) 18 B 2 B BURF B B K
B R AR At B R o o B R 2 R A 9
i B T B A9 H AR g e AR AR A
Ko LA % TEURR 1 B 75 19 0« A 42
AR RARA B — R AR % T A
H BT o

TS S > A SR B A SR R T BR Y SR A

1 Je v B (A e R S AR SR R A B
BB E 1Y 2 R BT A (13 s T -

JA 18 i 11 R 1 86 5 4 7

REF—AREFZA=Z+—H o R m %
B AR R (R — AR - ) -

38.

Amount contributed and charged to profit or loss

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the

scheme, which contributions is matched by employees.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute specified rate of the
employees’ salaries to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

During the reporting period, the total amounts contributed by the
Group to the MPF Scheme and the PRC Scheme charged to profit or loss
represent contribution payable by the Group at rates specified in the

rules of the respective schemes and are as follows:

SRR e Sl a2
2016 2015
ARBTT ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
8,296 7,401

As at 31 December 2016, there was no outstanding contributions
payable to the Scheme (2015: nil).
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BRAE A BATS TR oA R 25 B 48 5 3 41 - i AR Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
SRS AR O BB RS R AI3E S - during the year, the Group has entered into the following transactions

o HEWA:

F AR (— B A )

BN EmE R
(—HEERE)

o ERFHEAEGM

with related parties:

. Rental income:

SRNE CFAE

2016 2015

ARH T ANR¥T T

RMB’000 RMB 000

Nanjing Pocui, an associate 2,660 3,382
Yangzhou Golden Wheel Powerlong Realty,

a joint venture 1,194 1,160

3,854 4,542

e Compensation of key management personnel

JA AR B - 3 = % H At B T The remuneration of the directors and other members of key

BRFMT -

e
FEEHERAE :

B 4 e H A AR A1

B RAR A w1 K

LU 45 B 14 32 A5 3K

management during the year are as follow:

e L T

2016 2015

AR T ANRET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Directors’ remunerations 6,717 13,682
Members of key management:

Salaries and other benefits 5,451 5,131

Retirement benefit scheme contributions 335 353

Equity-settled share-based payments 82 95

12,585 19,241
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HE-Z—R"FE+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

40. A2 ) BB R 40. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

FRAXFAR-F—ARETA=1+—HK
SR -HET A= HRMBIRILRR

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 includes:

v ki
RN TR AR
2016 2015
AR FFL AR BT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FER B E Non-current assets
T B B A W) 2 3 Investments in subsidiaries and
JRE WS 6 JE /A ) Kk IR amounts due from subsidiaries 2,505,666 2,196,918
hEEAEZRE Investments in joint ventures 272,600 185,716
L EN NS Property, plant and equipment 1,384 1,632
2,779,650 2,384,266
TR Current assets
L Al e 2K A Other receivables 113,894 1,534
A HE 4 & Derivative financial assets - 2,161
At R E Available-for-sale investments 14,038 14,088
&5 MR SR AT AR K Structured bank deposits 13,887 -
% BB il SR AT A7 3k Restricted bank deposits - 300,000
R RAEEEED Cash and cash equivalents 381,848 629,391
523,667 947,174
S B= R Current liabilities
oAt A 3K0H Other payables 16,436 19,464
SRAT IS 3K — — 4R N 2 ) Bank borrowings — due within one year 690,025 739,934
BREE——FNEM Senior notes-due within one year 918,905 558,922
T ) & Derivative current liabilities 51,266 71,510
1,676,632 1,389,830
Fe 3 B £ £ Non-current liabilities
WAT R ——ERFI M Bank borrowings — due after one year 61,665 121,846
A 4 A B & Derivative financial liabilities - 31,549
BRI — — R B Senior notes-due after one year 682,668 866,041
&% Bonds 176,175 228,544
920,508 1,247,980
B A Net assets 706,177 693,630
A Share capital 113,099 113,099
fi Reserves 593,078 580,531
M Total equity 706,177 693,630
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HE-_ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

40. AR B R () 40. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
A5 ) it 5 2 52 Movement in Company’s reserves
A Jhe i BRIRE RATMNEE  WRAERS RitkH At
Investment Share
Share Share Special  revaluation option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

ARETLE  ARETEZ  ARKTZ ARWTTE ARKFTT  ARETT ARKTE
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMBU0O RMBU0O RMB 000

(HiE32)
(note 32)

R-Z—HF—H—H At 1 January 2015 113,099 476,143 534,215 = 177 (210,271) 913,363
T8 (H3E12) Dividends (note 12) = = (35,148) = = - (35,148)
TERR DA A 45 5 Recognition of equity-settled

TR (Hfzk32) share based payments (note 32) - - - - 229 - 229
FENEH Loss for the year = = = = = (183,892) (183,892)
Hi 2% Other comprehensive expenses - - - (922) - - (922)
BREF T+ =+ H Ac 31 December 2015 113,099 476,143 499,067 (922) 406 (394,163) 693,630
B E (k) Dividends (note 12) = = (24,874) = = = (24,874)

AR DA B R Recognition of equity-settled

TR (Wzk32) share based payments (note 32) - - - - 229 - 229
AERFE Profit for the year = = = = = 37,192 37,192
R=F =A%+ =+ At 31 December 2016 113,099 476,143 474,193 (922) 635 (356,971) 706,177
B 5E - Note:
AR R SR AR A 98 AT AR A IR AR Special reserve of the Company represents the difference between par value of ordinary
) B WA 1 T B 2 D S o R A I shares issued by the Company and the equity of subsidiaries recognised, in respect
4 iy [ 0 L 3 ) A R e s AR R T AT A TR of the acquisitions of Golden Wheel International Investment and Golden Wheel
(L B 0 A 2 ) B 2 TR R A B o International Corporation by two directly owned subsidiaries of the Company through

the issuance of the Company’s shares.

WAREE CHBE E—AEASAZTHIEAS During the current year, a final dividend to shareholders of RMB0.0138 per share,
ENOE/NGE 2 PN RS N3-S 3 I approximately amounted to RMB24,874,000, in respect of the six months ended 30
#0.013870 ML /5 N R ¥24,874,00000 (=% June 2016 was distributed to the owners of the Company (2015: RMB0.0195 per
— A HEE S E-WET A = —H IR share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014, approximately amounted to
243 IR A B B A R 0.0195 78 » BB A I AR T RMB35,148,000).

35,148,00070) ©
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HE-Z—R"FE+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

41.

AR ) W 4 w1 A

TR 5 IR B 2 R AR S A0 T

EEa

Name of company

SRERARA

Golden Wheel Jade Company Limited'
ERERAMAR)

SRVHARAR

Golden Wheel Pearl Company Limited'
(&8 IRARAR)

EREAARAR

Golden Wheel Diamond Company Limited'
(EREAARAR)

eRAAARAR

Golden Wheel Jewel Company Limited!
EREAARA)

KA RAT

Golden Wheel Crystal Company Limited'
@HKRERAT)

SREHARAT

Golden Wheel Amber Company Limited'
ERFHERA)

EHRATHRAR

Golden Wheel Tourmaline Company Limited'
EHBEHRA)

SRAEARAT

Golden Wheel Opal Company Limited"
ERAEARAR)

SRAEARA

Golden Wheel Ruby Company Limited'
ERAEARAR)

SREEARAT

Golden Wheel Emerald Company Limited'
@HATHRA)

EHEMER

Form of
business structure

ARRAELR

Limited liability company

LA

Limited liability company

ARRAELT

Limited liability company

AR

Limited liability company

ARE LT

Limited liability company

AREMLAT

Limited liability company

LS LA

Limited liability company

AR

Limited liability company

HREAL L

Limited liability company

AREAL L

Limited liability company

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries at end of the reporting period are as follows:

D#ITR

Ak /ot BehA/
BENH AR A A
Issued and paid

Place and date of incorporation/
establishment/operation

share capital/
registered capital

KRR LR 170
“EF-ZHFRANH

BVI Us$1
8 May 2012

KRR LR 170
“Z-CEEANA

BVI Us$1
8 May 2012

KRR LR 1%
“E-"ERAZTAHE

BVI Us$1
26 June 2012

KRELHE %7
“F-=FZA-H

BVI Us$1
1 February 2013

KRELHE 1T
SE-ZEZAZTAH

BVI US§1
28 February 2013

KRELHE LRI
“F-=FLA+=R

BVI Us§1
13 May 2013

KRELHE LRTE
ZEF-ZFAAZAIA

BVI US$1
24 June 2013

KRECHE LRTE
“E-ZEAAAR

BVI US$1
8 August 2013

KRELHE LRTE
“F-HEMA-TH

BVI USs$1
20 April 2015

KRELHE ESH
“E-HLENA-TH

BVI USs$1
20 April 2015
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55 L A e
Attributable equity
interest of the Group

“ER “Z-0f
U R =
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
% %
100

100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

FEEY

Principal activities

REER

Investment holding

85473

Investment holding

BERR

Investment holding

fid-eid e

Investment holding

fid-cid e

Investment holding

fid=eid e

Investment holding

RELR
Investment holding
RHELER
Investment holding

fazeil

Investment holding

fraceid

Investment holding
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A v B 2w i )

KRR

Name of company

SRETARA

Golden Wheel Sapphie Company Limited'
(ERETARAR)

ERFEARAT R

Golden Wheel Jasper Company Limited'*
@HFPEHRAA)

EEENERAT S

Golden Wheel Enamel Company Limited'*
(@RI ARA )

SRAEARAR S

Golden Wheel Liuli Company Limited'
ERABARAR)

SREEREARAR

Golden Wheel International Investment Limited

EREBEARAR)
B ol YA

Golden Wheel International Corporation Limited

EREBAEARAR)
SREABAZARAR

Golden Wheel International
Creation Company Limited

(ERABARARAR)
SR A A R R

Golden Wheel International

Capital Company Limited
EREABAEARAR)

SREBAEARAR

Golden Wheel International Billion Limited

EREBAEARAR)
SREMAEARAR

Golden Wheel International Wealth Limited
@ RERARERAT)

EHERER

Form of
business structure

ARFMELT

Limited liability company

HARFMELT

Limited liability company

ARRAELT

Limited liability company

ARRAELH

Limited liability company

ARRMEAR

Limited liability company

AR

Limited liability company

ARRMAELR

Limited liability company

ARALAT

Limited liability company

ARRMELT

Limited liability company

ARRAELH

Limited liability company

B WF R & B st

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY ¢ Continued)
CBITR
AR/ / BEWA/
BRI R A g A AR5 AN EL 3 31
Issued and paid
Place and date of incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity
establishment/operation registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities
“ER eSS S
ToHEF—H TZAZF-0
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
% %
KRELBE ESH 100 00 BEER
“E-RENAZHH
BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
20 April 2015
KRELRE ESH 100 TR REEK
“E-AEF-AZ1+0H
BVI US$1 100 N/A  Investment holding
29 November 2016
KRR LBE ESH 100 TR REEK
“E-AET-AZtA
BVI Uss1 100 N/A  Investment holding
29 November 2016
KRR 1€ 100 RER REER
“E-AET-AZTA
BVI Uss1 100 N/A  Investment holding
29 November 2016
ik 100,000,004 ¢ 100 00 BEEK
“ERECELATEA
Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
17 May 2002
ik 48,000,000 76 100 00 fEER
“E-TELA LR
Hong Kong HK$48,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
7 July 2010
it 30,000,000 ¢ 100 00 HEEK
ZE-CEAAZt-H
Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
21 August 2012
Hik 30,000,000 ¢ 100 00 BEER
Z“F-=F-A+EA
Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
15 February 2013
it 10,000,000% 7¢ 100 00 BEER
ZZ-ZE=AHAH
Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
18 March 2013
ik 10,000,0004 7¢ 100 00 BEER
ZZ-ZERACTAA
Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
29 May 2013
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HE_F

41. ARAFWIEA AN )

KRR

Name of company

SREBRAEARAR

Golden Wheel International Trend Limited

(EREBAEARAR)
SRARASHARAR

Golden Wheel International Success Limited

(ERBEPRAISARA )
ERARAEARAF
Golden Wheel International Glory
Company Limited
(@ HEBARERAT)
SREBEAEARAR
Golden Wheel International Idea
Company Limited
EHERARERAR)
SRARATARAF
Golden Wheel International Innovation
Company Limited
@R E AT A RAR)
SRARAYERAR

Golden Wheel International Harvest Limited®

EREBAARAR)
SREABAEARARD

Golden Wheel International Merit Limited’

EREBAERRAA)
SREABAEARARD

Golden Wheel International Excellent Limited®

G HEPENEARAR)
WASREREEARAT

Nanjing Jade Golden Wheel Realty Co., Led.?

N 8 5 L DB R 2

Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.?

EHERER

Form of
business structure

ARFELT

Limited liability company

ARRELT

Limited liability company

ARRELT

Limited liability company

AR

Limited liability company

AR

Limited liability company

AR

Limited liability company

ARREMELR

Limited liability company

AR

Limited liability company

AR E R

Sino-foreign joint venture

NEBELE

Wholly-foreign invested
enterprise

—RNFE+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

41. PARTICULARS OF
COMPANY ¢ Continued)
CBITR
Ak /i / BRmA/
BRI R REME A
Issued and paid

Place and date of incorporation/
establishment/operation

share capital/
registered capital

it 10,000,000% 7C
“E-=FLATAR

Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
18 July 2013

it 10,000,000%7C
“Z-ZEAATAH

Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
16 September 2013

i 10,000,000 7
ZE-HERANHA

Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
4 May 2015

Ei 10,000,000/ 7%
ZZ-HELANA

Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
4 May 2015

Eit 10,000,000% 7C
ZE-HERLANA

Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
4 May 2015

i 10,000,000 7
ZE-REFZATER

Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
13 December 2016

it 10,000,004 ¢
“E-AE+ZATER

Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
13 December 2016

Fi 10,000,000/ 7%
“E-AE+ZATER

Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
13 December 2016

HH 14,950,000% 7
“EREEAAZF—H

PRC US$14,950,000
21 June 2002

H 13,200,000 7
ZEENELA=TH

PRC U8$13,200,000
30 July 2004
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

AR5 AN

Attributable equity
interest of the Group

ZE-R ZE—HE

FIHZH-R FEAS R

31.12.2016 31.12.2015

% %

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

T

Principal activities

BERR
Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

fid=eid e

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

85473

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

fid=eid e

Investment holding

T M E 58
LUELN

Property development
and property leasing

7 ARE 8 R
BN

Property development
and property leasing
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41. A FI B 4w e (a1) 41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY ¢ Continued)
CEITR
FEbRaL /BT BRBA/
RS EBEWER BEMHR A AR A TR T A I FEEK
Issued and paid
Form of Place and date of incorporation/ share caplztal/ Attributable equity

Name of company

business structure

establishment/operation

registered capital

interest of the Group

Principal activities

SER “F-Rf
PRSI RS-
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
% %
BN REREREARAR: GiPIN:S §i 13,000,000 TC 100 100 FHERE
“EZAE+ZATER
Yangzhou Golden Wheel Real Estate’ Sino-foreign joint venture PRC U8§13,000,000 100 100 Property development
15 December 2006
s A A 2 By AR T A Hs500,0007 100 00 FHEEHER
~%-%5=f-H
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Business Management ~ Domestic limited liability PRC RMB500,000 100 100 Property operation
Co., Ltd. ? company 1 February 2010 management
PSR R R A IRA 7 NEBEEE i 6,130,000 ¢ 100 00 AR R
—JAEERAZ+—H b
Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate’ Wholly-foreign invested PRC U$$6,130,000 100 100 Property development
enterprise 21 April 1994 and property leasing
ARk RERARART SNEBELE Gl 28,000,000% T 100 100 FHERE
~E-ZF-f=tH
Nanjing Pearl Golden Wheel Realty Wholly-foreign invested PRC US$28,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Led.? enterprise 30 January 2013
FIRSEE FS E S B A RGTE A 7 Bl ARAR HH B 280,000,007 100 00 FFHERE
“E-"HFEAZTEA
Nanjing Metro Real Estate’ Domestic limited liability PRC RMB280,000,000 100 100 Property development
company 25 July 2012
EGCEL e YNGR NEBEEE AR H245,000,0007C 100 00 FHRERE
T—=FANA+LH
Nanjing Crystal Golden Wheel Realty Wholly-foreign invested RMB245,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd? enterprise 19 August 2013
el TE e YN iR ERE B AR 32,000,0007C 100 00 WEER
SE-ZEAAZTLR
Nanjing Golden Wheel Commercial Sino-foreign joint venture PRC RMB32,000,000 100 100 Property management
Management Corporation Company Limited 27 September 2013
Listed on the NEEQ (as defined below)
wlFERERERARAR: HEBERE i A H155,000,0007C 100 00 FHERE
“E-ZEAASTN
Zhuzhou Jade Golden Wheel Realty Wholly-foreign invested PRC RMB155,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd.? enterprise 24 September 2013
RUFREREEARAT HEBERE i 85,500,000% ¢ 100 00 FHERE
“F—Z#+-HA+ZH
Changsha Jade Golden Wheel Realty Wholly-foreign invested PRC US$85,500,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ld? enterprise 12 December 2013
EHLRFHEREARA D HEBERE i 42,000,000% 7 100 00 FHERE
“EZ-RE=ALH
Wausxi Golden Wheel Real Estate Co., Ltd.” Wholly-foreign invested PRC US$42,000,000 100 100 Property development
enterprise 5 March 2015
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41.

A v B 2w i )

41. PARTICULARS OF
COMPANY ¢ Continued)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

CH#ITR
AR/ R/ Sk /
KRR EHERER BEMH R AR ERUNCEN 755 A e TEET
Issued and paid
Form of Place and date of incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of company business structure establishment/operation registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities
ZE-R “E-fiE
TZAZ-0 FZAZt-H
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
% %
F SRR R I IR 72 AEBEEE i 200,000 ¢ 100 w0 HEEK
“F-RFAAZTEHR
Nanjing Golden Wheel Glory Commercial Wholly-foreign invested PRC US$200,000 100 100 Investment holding
management Co., Led.? enterprise 25 September 2015
EHERABHEERARA T HEBERE T B 1,000,000 100 w0 REEK
“E-nEtA=tH
Wuxi Golden Wheel Glory Commercial Wholly-foreign invested PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Co., Ld? enterprise 30 October 2015
AR S REEEARAR B AR TR A BHS,000,0007 100 TR WEHE
ZE-ANFAAZTNA
Nanjing Golden Wheel Xingzhi Hotel Co Ltd®  Domestic limited liability PRC RMB5,000,000 100 na  Property leasing
company 24 August 2016
BREREM LRARA A BlARAR il 1,000,000 100 AR WEEE
SE-REFSAZTAR
Nanjing Xinghao Decoration Engineering Domestic limited liability PRC RMBL,000,000 100 na  Property decoration
Co Ltd company 28 December 2016
! HA A A B A ! Directly held by the Company.
> I 304 RS LR - 2 English name for identification only.
2 % BB A ) T L — S AR AL ’ The subsidiary was newly established in 2016.
4 WEFE—ANELAZTEH M i Nanjing Golden Wheel Commercial Management Corporation Co., Ltd.

BB A RAF (Rl SEE )
Z B M v R 2 R e SR A
ARG (B =MD b7 B o SEAR RO
ARFARAME - F-RELA-TEHZ

R

(“Nanjing Golden Wheel Management”) is approved for the listing and
quotation of its shares on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
System(“NEEQ") in PRC on 27 July 2016. Details are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 27 July 2016.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

TR SR > WEARERRY B > m] AT AL T fe s
%,

reporting period.
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491 4 3 42. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

JA R B B DL R IE The following events occurred after the end of the reporting period:

I RE-F—tFE-H+H ARFZ 1. On 12 January 2017, Golden Wheel International Innovation

2 WA A ) <6 i T S A A PR
FE/A BRI E B A P B e o —
b 48 ARE 25 N R H605,000,0007C »
HEERAAFT A T —LE—
A+ HZ %R -

R ZF LR AL A F
REHEFRARAR ([ZHEX])
A A 3392 FBCHE - 42 SR A
B AL 2 A PR IAE A A R R B R
FE S e B

SR EARAR ([SmFEE])
W= S =5 el L B A —
F—tHF=ZA=ZHWEEmW® &
i 22 U5 (1) Double Advance Group
Limited ([Double AdvanceJ ) & E
BATIA 5 Je ) 5 A& 3K (Bl Double
Advancefit K HBUA A j%%ﬁfﬁéﬂ%
S8 ([ERESEE]) > HaRE
#) £4450,000,000% 7T (55 A 49 N R
1400,500,0007C) © Ff§ R A A F H
MAE—F—tE=ZA=ZAZA%HR-
Double Advance /s — [H] i 5 J& J& 2o B 5
AR AL 2 A BRAA B A 2T G AR
E/E

NIRRT > SRk e 2 HRRF
BT EEmAKFEER -F—LF
=H " HEHA-

Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
succeeded in a public auction to acquire land in Nanjing, PRC at
a total consideration of RMBG605million, detail of which are set

out in the Company’s announcement dated 12 January 2017.

2. In January 2017, an associate Nanjing Mingyu Real Estate Co.,
Led. B A HE EXEARAA (L HEEZE is formed in which
the Group has a 33% equity interest. %4 B3 is a limited
liability company established in PRC and is engaged in property
development in Nanjing, PRC.

3. Pursuant to an sales and purchase agreement dated 3 March
2017 entered into among Golden Wheel Jasper Limited liability
Company Limited (“Golden Wheel Jasper”) and three independent
third parties, Golden Wheel Jasper will purchase (1) the entire
issued share capital of Double Advance Group Limited (“Double
Advance”); and (2) the Shareholder’s Loan, which represents
all the outstanding amounts owing by Double Advance to its
existing parent company (“Proposed Acquisition”) for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$450,000,000(approximately
equivalent to RMB400,500,000). Details of which are set out in
an announcement dated 3 March 2017 issued by the Company.
Double Advance is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and is engaged in hotel operation

business.
4. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the liquidation

procedure of Golden Wheel Coast has been completed and Golden
Wheel Coast was closed on 2 March 2017.
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Summary of Financial Information

BREF-AZ+—HIEEE
For the year ended 31 December

“E-NE O ZE-nE ZF-NE —F-=F —F-TF
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ANRETFILE ARBFFIT ARFFT AREFIL AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
E RESULTS
A Revenue 940,765 229,514 831,116 871,275 963,717
I 8 R Profit before taxation 451,721 76,147 416,594 419,879 498,432
BLIH Taxation (186,345) (63,168) (182,199) (103,738) (213,639)
A 1A ] Profit for the year 265,376 12,979 234,395 316,141 284,793
LN AL RELS - Attributable to:
EN/NGIE: 2N Owners of the Company 265,376 12,979 234,395 316,141 276,877
R 4R Non-controlling interests - - - - 7,916
265,376 12,979 234,395 316,141 284,793
BRER > AR Earnings per share RMB
N Basic 0.147 0.007 0.130 0.177 0.205
e Diluted 0.147 0.007 0.130 0.177 0.205
R A ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEE Total assets 10,038,573 8,492,602 7,155,349 7,086,285 4,679,943
BALE Total liabilities (6,109,155)  (4,803,915)  (3,460,431)  (3,561,952)  (1,960,865)
3,929,418 3,688,687 3,694,918 3,524,333 2,719,078
EN/NE N Equity attributable to owners of
MEfEHE &5 the Company 3,929,418 3,688,687 3,694,918 3,524,333 2,719,078
I e I A Non-controlling interests - - - - -
3,929,418 3,688,687 3,694,918 3,524,333 2,719,078

204 \ 4l KP4 R AW \ GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED \



= AMER
Schedule of Principal Properties

BHYE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BR TR &Y%

Completed Investment Properties

A0 S
WmYE WEAW ok i R FIik L
Approximate Lease
No. Name of Property Location Use Type GFA sq.m. term
1 <& B R 0% oI TR P A T SR [ o e 5 i % 33,197 H
Golden Wheel No.8, Hanzhong Road, Gulou District, Commercial medium
International Plaza Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
2 <& i 3 1 2% MEVLERE o S R B AT 2,444 el
Golden Wheel Waltz No.7, Shengjuren Lane, Gulou District, Commercial medium
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
3 EX DN B TLRR & o T S R D B 10858 T 1,454 ek
Golden Wheel Building No.108, Hanzhong Road, Gulou District, Commercial medium
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
4 SRR I T8 P A R [ 3 i 45,105 H
Golden Wheel Time Chezhan Road, Lusong District, Commercial medium
Square Zhuzhou City, Hunan Province, the PRC
5 M35 R4 [ o VR e A R R [ AT A [LES 3,328 ekl
Nanjing Jade Garden Yewei Village Jianye District, Nanjing City, =~ Commercial medium
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
6 4 i 20 g (8 o VTR AT K 7R e 28 % [ES 1,021 ek
Golden Wheel Green No. 28, Wei Gang, Xuanwu District, Commercial medium
Garden Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
7 EX E L) o I TR e A VL [ R [HES 18,437 H
Golden Wheel New Metro ~ Shuanglong Avenue, Jiangning District, Commercial medium
Nanjing City, Jiangsu province, the PRC
8 SRS MELEE A R L R AR 525 el
A5 K DL medium
Golden Wheel Star Plaza South of Chengxin Avenue, east of Commercial
Pugang Street, Jiangning District,
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
9 & B = o YR 45 M T 6 B [ [LES 4,164 ekl
B F L B 22858 medium
Golden Wheel Star City No.228, Yangtze River Middle Road, Commercial

Phase IIT

Yangzhou New Development District,

Yangzhou City,Jiangsu Province, the PRC
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Schedule of Principal Properties
WIS ML 3k
No. Name of Property Location
10 Eim B o VLA R T AL A
P i P L 05 R 4
Golden Wheel Star-cube No.4, Station East Area, North Square,
Nanjing South Station, Yuhuatai District,
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
11 RN 5 i 35 22 4 [ v I 381 R b A i v R [
(—H)
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel GaoTie, WuGuang New Town, Zhuzhou
Jade Garden (Phase I) City, Hunan Province, the PRC
12 I 85 4 W 2 O 4 R o VL A 85 R [
Wuxi Golden Wheel Star New District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
Plaza the PRC
13%  HMERESREYS oI YL AR 4 N T4 T B

Yangzhou Powerlong
Golden Wheel Plaza

I 11 B 3%

?ﬁ nlh

No.

EZAT

Name of Property

ST 2R
Golden Wheel Binary Star
Plaza

4 AR 2E
Golden Wheel JinQiao
Huafu

R & B4 %
Changsha Golden Wheel

Star Plaza

A4 SRR ~ e L B g0 3 k)
West Yangzi River Road, East Weiyang Road,

South Weisi Road, and North Kaifa Xi Road,
Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

liiEe pit

Use Type
[ES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

[HES

Commercial

[HES

Commercial

R A e 8 T
Fhik
Approximate
GFA sq.m.

9,000

4,000

12,000

65,400

Investment Properties under Development

ok

Location
o B TR 7 i Y I B AR
Shuanglong Avenue, Jiangning District,

Nanjing City, Jiangsu province, the PRC

o B TR ) T Y I R RO
Longmain Road, Jiangning District,

Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

o I R R 0 i AL I R R AR R [
Lituo Xiang Township, Wuguang Area,

Yuhua District, Changsha City, Hunan
Province, the PRC

liiEe i

Use Type
EES

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES

Commercial

206 \ 4l KP4 R AW \ GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED \

HBE A s 5 1 B
FHK
Approximate
GFA sq.m.

55,754

2,500

12,000

L

Lease

term

it

medium

H 3

medium

Gt ]

medium

H 3]

medium

L

Lease

term

F

medium

gk

medium

gk

medium



7% 95 10 5 A 1 8 455 Al T 0

ETL A X

No.

10

Name of Property

2 i B R ok
Golden Wheel
International Plaza

4o i B O 35
Golden Wheel
International Plaza

&R LM
Golden Wheel Star City
Phase I & II

e 1R 3
Golden Wheel Times
Square

M3 R A
Nanjing Jade Garden

& w4 R
Golden Wheel Star Plaza

& B =
Golden Wheel Star City
Phase III

P U 45 i 285 2% 44 [
(—H)

Zhuzhou Golden Wheel
Jade Garden (Phase I)

1 39 4 B OL A
Wuxi Golden Wheel Star
Plaza

Sl AT

Golden Wheel Star-cube

THE GROUP

ik

Location

o TR T A i SR [ B s BE3 0
Level 30, No.8, Hanzhong Road, Gulou District,
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

o B VTR 6 T A T M [ O e s 23 4
Level 23, No.8, Hanzhong Road, Gulou District,
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

o I TR 45 M T 5 5B B R R 45 1 o B 228 5%
No.228, Yangtze River Middle Road,

Yangzhou New Development District,

Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

o B T8 i A A T D
Chezhan Road, Lusong District, Zhuzhou City,
Hunan Province, the PRC

o VTR A A TR R R AT A
Yewei Village Jianye District, Nanjing City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

B VT T A i U U DAOR - R KB DA TR
South of Chengxin Avenue, east of Pugang Street,
Jiangning District, Nanjing City,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

o I TR 45 M T 4 0B B R R 45 1 o B 228 5%
No.228, Yangtze River Middle Road,

Yangzhou New Development District,

Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

v 0 0 Ak O T 7 R O [

Gao Tie, Wu Quang New Town, Zhuzhou City,
Hunan Province, the PRC

B TR ) A 5 i B [

New District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC

o VLR A R T AL & [

T el G 35 0 R w45

No.4, Station East Area, North Square,
Nanjing South Station, Yuhuatai District,
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FTEMEX

Schedule of Principal Properties

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE OR OCCUPATION BY

ABE 44 2 i g
Jiip g e F-J5 K
Approximate
Use Type GFA sq.m.
WA= 2,535
Office
/N 2,022
Office
w¥/ e 7,363
Commercial/
Residential
H¥/ fE 3,446
Commercial/
Residential
[LES 2,820
Commercial
¥/ fEE 6,915
Commercial/
Residential
LEVEEE 15,695
Commercial/
Residential
[HE V&= = 17,480
Commercial/
Residential
[E Y% 36,431
Commercial/
Residential
[HES 16,817
Commercial
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Schedule of Principal Properties

B % ) 3£ PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

R A0 S i
ETL e A o hik itk it Tk
Approximate
No.  Name of Property Location Use Type GFA sq.m.
1 & A 2E o B VT A 7 i U (R OK EE 124,400
Golden Wheel JinQiao Huafu Longmain Road, Jiangning District, Residential
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
2 M EemERLE (ZH) R 99 1 O i R 3 W%,/ fEE 132,588
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Jade Gao Tie, Wu Quang New Town, Zhuzhou City, Commercial/
Garden (phase II) Hunan Province, the PRC Residential
3 RV & B4 MEMEE R TR EEEBRE R ¥ T 172,579
Changsha Golden Wheel Star Lituo Xiang Township, Wuguang Area, Commercial/
Plaza Yuhua District, Changsha City, Residential
Hunan Province, the PRC
4 15 1 3% 3 o VT 4 M T SRR B LEYA=d 32,046
Yangzhou Mobihua Road Land Mobihua Road, Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, Commercial/
Parcel the PRC Residential
ser W RUHENR KA M T P T RE R K LEV4i=a 71,400
Nanjing Longmian Road Land Longmian Road, Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, ~Commercial/
Parcel the PRC Residential

*k

FZIA H A A WA 499 1 4R 2 B

ZIEH B A EEHEA3 % 5 2

AR AR B ¢

BEMBFEME- o
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The project is developed by a JV Company which the Group has 49% interest.

The project is developed by a JV Company which the Group has 33% interest.
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